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PART I
Item 1. Business.

T. Rowe Price Group is a financial services holding company that derives its consolidated revenues and net income primarily from investment advisory
services that its subsidiaries provide to individual and institutional investors in the sponsored T. Rowe Price mutual funds and other investment portfolios.
Our investment advisory revenues depend largely on the total value and composition of assets under our management. Accordingly, fluctuations in financial
markets and in the composition of assets under management impact our revenues and results of operations.

We operate our investment advisory business through our subsidiary companies, primarily T. Rowe Price Associates, T. Rowe Price International, T. Rowe
Price Stable Asset Management, and T. Rowe Price Global Investment Services. The late Thomas Rowe Price, Jr., began our advisory business in 1937, and
the common stock of T. Rowe Price Associates was first offered to the public in 1986. The T. Rowe Price Group corporate holding company structure was
established in late 2000.

Total assets under our management increased $45.2 billion over the course of 2004 and ended the year at an all-time record of $235.2 billion, including
$152.2 billion held in retirement accounts and variable annuity investment portfolios. Assets under our management at the end of 2004 included

$176.0 billion of equity securities and $59.2 billion of debt securities. The five largest Price funds at December 31, 2004 — Equity Income, Mid-Cap Growth,
Growth Stock, Blue Chip Growth and Small-Cap Stock — account for nearly 24% of assets under management at that time and 28% of 2004 investment
advisory revenues.

Our assets under management are accumulated from a diversified client base that is accessed across four primary distribution methods. Our assets under
management are sourced approximately 20-30% from each of the following: third-party financial intermediaries that distribute our managed investment
portfolios in the U.S. and foreign countries, individual U.S. investors on a direct basis, U.S. defined contribution retirement plans, and institutional investors
in the U.S. and foreign countries. Our largest client account relationship, excluding the T. Rowe Price funds, is with a third-party financial intermediary that
accounted for less than 5% of our investment advisory revenues in 2004.

In 2001, our U.K. investment advisory subsidiary, T. Rowe Price Global Investment Services, expanded our investment advisory business to Europe where we
now offer separate account management to institutional investors, subadvisory services, and a series of Luxembourg-domiciled mutual funds with share
classes for institutional investors and for individuals reached through third party intermediaries. In 2004, we expanded our investment advisory services to
Australia with a significant new client investment mandate. These initiatives complement those that we began in 1999 in Japan, through which we subadvise
investment assets for Daiwa SB Investments. We hold a 10% interest in Daiwa SB. Our international clients account for 5.5% of our total assets under
management at December 31, 2004.

We manage a broad range of U.S. domestic and international stock, bond, and money market mutual funds and other investment portfolios that are designed
to meet the varied and changing needs and objectives of individual and institutional investors. For example, mutual fund shareholders can exchange balances
among mutual funds as permitted when economic and market conditions and their investment needs change.
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From time to time, we introduce new funds and other investment portfolios to complement and expand our investment offerings, respond to competitive
developments in the financial marketplace, and meet the changing needs of our investment advisory clients. We will open a new mutual fund if we believe
that its objective will be useful for investors over a long period. Conversely, we may also limit new investments into a mutual fund in order to maintain the
integrity of the fund’s investment strategy and to protect the interests of its existing shareholders. At present, the following funds are closed to new investors.

Fund Date Closed

Small-Cap Value May 24, 2002
Mid-Cap Growth December 8, 2003
Institutional Mid-Cap Equity Growth December 8, 2003
High Yield February 20, 2004
Institutional High Yield February 20, 2004
Small-Cap Stock February 20, 2004
Institutional Small-Cap Stock February 20, 2004
Mid-Cap Value February 25, 2005

These funds continue to accept additional investments from existing shareholders and direct rollovers from retirement plans into new IRA accounts that we
offer.

Investment objectives for our managed investment portfolios, including the Price funds, accommodate a variety of strategies. Investors select from among the
mutual funds based on the distinct objective that is described in each fund’s prospectus. Investment management of other client portfolios includes approaches
similar to those employed in the Price funds. Equity investment strategies may emphasize large-cap, mid-cap or small-cap investing; growth, value or core
investing; and U.S., global, or international investing. We also offer systematic, tax-efficient, and blended equity investment strategies as well as active,
systematic and municipal tax-free management strategies for fixed income investments. Our specialized advisory services include management of stable value
investment contracts and a managed disposition service for equity securities distributed from third-party venture capital investment pools.

We employ fundamental and quantitative security analyses in the performance of the investment advisory function. We maintain substantial internal equity
and fixed income investment research capabilities. We perform original industry and company research using such sources as inspection of corporate
activities, management interviews, company-published financial and other information, financial newspapers and magazines, corporate rating services, and
field checks with suppliers and competitors in the same industry and particular business sector. Our research staff operates primarily from offices located in
the United States and Great Britain with additional staff resident in Argentina, Hong Kong, Japan, and Singapore. We also use research provided by brokerage
firms in a supportive capacity and information received from private economists, political observers, commentators, government experts, and market and
security analysts. Our stock selection process for some investment portfolios is based on quantitative analyses using computerized data modeling.

In the past, we have made modest use of fully permissible payments by brokers to obtain third-party investment research and related services. After careful
evaluation during 2004, we decided to phase out these arrangements and to pay for all third party investment research and related services directly. The
impact of this decision to our earnings per share is less than $.01 per quarter.
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We also provide certain administrative services as ancillary services to our investment advisory clients. These administrative services are provided by several
of our subsidiary companies and include mutual fund transfer agent, accounting, and shareholder services; participant recordkeeping and transfer agent
services for defined contribution retirement plans investing in our sponsored mutual funds; discount brokerage; and trust services. About 90% of our
administrative revenues in 2004 were based on the recovery of expenses incurred to provide the related services. Administrative revenues, therefore, do not
significantly affect our net income.

Information concerning our revenues, results of operations, total assets, and investment assets under our management during the past three years is contained
in our consolidated financial statements and in note 6 thereto, which are both included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

2004 DEVELOPMENTS. Financial market results during 2004 were strong, though largely the result of a strong boost to the equity markets in the fourth
quarter. Stock indexes closed the first quarter near the levels of the beginning of the year. The second quarter saw U.S. stocks produce slightly positive returns
while third quarter losses across the markets resulted in negative returns at the end of nine months. Investor concerns about the strength of the economy, rising
interest rates, global political risks, national elections, and record high oil prices all weighed heavily on the markets. After the November elections in the U.S.,
the financial markets began rising to end 2004 on a positive note. For the first time since 1999, the stock markets in the U.S. rose for two consecutive years.
The broad S&P 500 index rose just under 9% during 2004 and the Dow Industrials finished the year up over 3%. The NASDAQ index, which is heavily
weighted with technology companies, finished up nearly 8.6%. The Federal Reserve began the first of five increases in the federal funds target rate on

June 30, 2004 — the first rate increases in four years. Despite these rate increases, yields on 10-year U.S. Treasuries were basically flat for the year.

In this financial environment, total assets under our management ended 2004 at a record $235.2 billion, up more than $45 billion during the year. Improving
financial market valuations and income added $24.5 billion to our assets under management during 2004. Further, and of significant importance to our growth
in assets under management during 2004, net cash inflows were very strong and at record levels. In total, investors entrusted $20.7 billion more to our
management during 2004, including nearly $12.7 billion into the U.S. mutual funds and $8.0 billion from across the world into the other portfolios that we
manage. The previous record net inflows to our U.S. mutual funds were $8.6 billion in 1996. Net cash flows were distributed throughout the year as follows:
first quarter, $6.4 billion; second quarter, $4.2 billion; third quarter, $5.8 billion; and fourth quarter, $4.3 billion. We believe that our strong relative
investment performance, service capabilities, and brand awareness have contributed significantly to our obtaining these new assets for investment
management.

In particular, the investment advisory results for the T. Rowe Price funds have been strong. More than 81% of the funds across their share classes surpassed
their Lipper peer group averages on a total return basis for the one- and three-year periods ended December 31, 2004, and 75% did so for the five- and ten-
year periods. In addition, 64% of our rated retail mutual funds in the U.S. ended the year with an overall rating of four or five stars from Morningstar, nearly
twice as many as the 32.5% for the overall industry.

As aresult of the disclosures of trading abuses at several investment management firms beginning in September 2003, the investment management industry
and mutual funds in particular have come under greater regulatory scrutiny. Some regulations designed to strengthen controls and restore investor confidence
in the industry were enacted in 2004 and more are expected in the coming months.
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PRICE FUNDS. We provide investment advisory, distribution and other administrative services to the Price funds under various agreements. Investment
advisory services are provided to each fund under individual investment management agreements that grant the fund the right to use the T. Rowe Price name.
The boards of the respective funds, including a majority of directors who are not interested persons of the funds or of T. Rowe Price Group (as defined in the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended), must approve the investment management agreements annually. Fund shareholders must approve
amendments to these investment management agreements. Each agreement automatically terminates in the event of its assignment (as defined in the
Investment Company Act) and, generally, either party may terminate the agreement without penalty after a 60-day notice. The termination of one or more of
these agreements could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Advisory Services. Investment advisory revenues are based upon the daily net assets managed in each fund. Additional fees are earned for advisory-related
administrative services as discussed below. Independent directors and trustees of the Price funds regularly review our fee structures.

The advisory fee paid by each of the Price funds generally is computed each day by multiplying a fund’s net assets by a specific fee. For the majority of the
Price funds, the fee is equal to the sum of a group charge that is set based on the combined net assets of those funds and an individual fund charge that is set
based on the fund’s specific investment objective. The 2004 fee rates determined in this manner varied from a low of 32 basis points for the U.S. Treasury
Money Fund to a high of 106 basis points for the Emerging Markets Stock, International Discovery, and Latin America funds. To the extent that the combined
net assets of the funds increase, the group charge component of the fee and each overall fund fee decreases. Details of each fund’s fee arrangement are
available in its prospectus.

Each of the Price funds has a distinct investment objective that has been developed as part of our strategy to provide a broad, comprehensive selection of
investing opportunities. The Investor class of all Price funds can be purchased in the United States on a no-load basis, without a sales commission or 12b-1
fee. No-load mutual fund shares offer investors a low-cost and relatively easy method of directly investing in a variety of stock and bond portfolios.

Certain of the T. Rowe Price mutual funds also offer an Advisor and/or R class of shares that are distributed to mutual fund shareholders through third-party
financial intermediaries. These share classes incur 12b-1 fees of 25 and 50 basis points, respectively, for distribution, administration, and personal services.
Our subsidiary, T. Rowe Price Investment Services, is the principal distributor of the T. Rowe Price mutual fund shares. We recognize 12b-1 fee revenue on
these classes of fund shares pursuant to the funds’ 12b-1 plans. Payment of the fee is made to each intermediary pursuant to the 12b-1 plans and each
intermediary’s agreement with T. Rowe Price Investment Services.

In accounting for the 12b-1 fees, the applicable mutual fund share classes incur the related expense and we recognize the corresponding administrative
revenue in our consolidated statement of income. We also recognize the corresponding expense for the payments to each third-party financial intermediary in
our consolidated statement of income as part of other operating expenses. The revenue that we recognize from the funds and the expense that we recognize
for the fees paid to third party intermediaries are equal in amount and, therefore, do not impact our net operating income.
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We do not receive any 12b-1 fees on the primary Investor class of T. Rowe Price mutual fund shares.

We believe that our lower fund cost structure, distribution methods, and fund shareholder and administrative services help promote the stability of our fund
assets under management through market cycles.

Each Price fund typically bears all expenses associated with its operation and the issuance and redemption of its securities. In particular, each fund pays
investment advisory fees; shareholder servicing fees and expenses; fund accounting fees and expenses; transfer agent fees; custodian fees and expenses; legal
and auditing fees; expenses of preparing, printing and mailing prospectuses and shareholder reports to existing shareholders; registration fees and expenses;
proxy and annual meeting expenses; and independent trustee or director fees and expenses.

Several of the Price funds have different fee arrangements. The Equity Market Index funds and the Summit funds each have single, all-inclusive fees covering
all investment management and operating expenses. Each of the funds in the Spectrum series and the Retirement date specific series of mutual funds invest in
a broadly diversified portfolio of other Price funds and have no separate investment advisory fee. However, they indirectly bear the expenses of the funds in
which they invest. Mutual funds for institutional investors each have separate advisory fee arrangements.

We usually provide that a newly organized fund’s expenses will not exceed a specified percentage of its net assets during an initial operating period. We
absorb all advisory fees and other mutual fund expenses in excess of these self-imposed limits.

Except as noted above for 12b-1 fees, we bear all advertising and promotion expenses associated with our distribution of the Price funds. These costs are
recognized currently, and include advertising and direct mail communications to potential fund shareholders as well as substantial staff and communications
capabilities to respond to investor inquiries. Marketing and promotional efforts are focused in the print media, television, and the Internet. In addition, we
direct considerable marketing efforts to defined contribution plans that invest in mutual funds. Advertising and promotion expenditures vary over time based
on investor interest, market conditions, new investment offerings, and the development and expansion of new marketing initiatives, including those arising
from international expansion and enhancements to our web site.

Administrative Services. We provide advisory-related administrative services to the Price funds through our subsidiaries. T. Rowe Price Services provides
mutual fund transfer agency and shareholder services, including maintenance of staff, facilities, and technology and other equipment to respond to inquiries
from fund shareholders. T. Rowe Price Associates provides mutual fund accounting services, including maintenance of financial records, preparation of
financial statements and reports, daily valuation of portfolio securities and computation of daily net asset values per share. T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan
Services provides participant accounting, plan administration and transfer agent services for defined contribution retirement plans that invest in the Price
funds. Plan sponsors and participants compensate us for some services while the Price funds compensate us for maintaining and administering the individual
participant accounts for those plans that invest in the funds.

Our trustee services are provided by another subsidiary, T. Rowe Price Trust Company. Through this Maryland-chartered limited-service trust company, we
offer common trust funds for investment by qualified retirement plans and serve as trustee for retirement plans and IRAs. T. Rowe Price Trust Company may
not accept deposits and cannot make personal or commercial loans.
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We also provide investment advisory services to shareholders and potential investors in the Price funds through our subsidiary T. Rowe Price Advisory
Services. These services currently include an Investment Checkup of an individual’s financial situation, the Retirement Income Manager for developing an
individual’s personal income and investment strategy during retirement, and a Rollover Investment Service for investing retirement plan distributions.

Another subsidiary, T. Rowe Price Savings Bank, issues federally insured certificates of deposit.

Fund Assets. At December 31, 2004, assets under our management in the Price funds aggregated $145.5 billion, an increase of $28 billion from the beginning
of the year. The following table presents the net assets (in millions) of our largest funds (net assets in excess of $250 million) at December 31, 2003 and 2004
and the year each fund was started. The Spectrum and Retirement series of funds are not listed in the table because their assets are included in the underlying

funds.

2003 2004
Stock funds:

Growth Stock (1950) $ 5,755 $ 8,788
New Horizons (1960) 4,955 5,741
New Era (1969) 1,332 2,148
International Stock (1980) 5,220 5,243
Growth & Income (1982) 1,964 1,881
Equity Income (1985) 13,756 18,376
New America Growth (1985) 915 935
Capital Appreciation (1986) 2,942 4,962
Science & Technology (1987) 5,036 4,507
International Discovery (1988) 705 1,002
Small-Cap Value (1988) 3,595 5,101
Institutional Foreign Equity (1989) 1,046 678
Equity Index 500 (1990) 3,885 4,789
European Stock (1990) 888 852
New Asia (1990) 886 997
Balanced (1991) 1,902 2,164
Dividend Growth (1992) 695 754
Mid-Cap Growth (1992) 10,221 13,219
Small-Cap Stock (1992) 5,183 6,820
Blue Chip Growth (1993) 7,072 8,263
Latin America (1993) 201 311
Media & Telecommunications (1993) 665 876
Personal Strategy Balanced (1994) 801 952
Personal Strategy Growth (1994) 525 616
Personal Strategy Income (1994) 310 348
Value (1994) 1,555 2,543
Emerging Markets Stock (1995) 440 755
Health Sciences (1995) 1,027 1,329
Financial Services (1996) 372 411
Institutional Mid-Cap Equity Growth (1996) 382 402
Mid-Cap Value (1996) 1,966 5,071
Real Estate (1997) 291 641
International Growth & Income (1998) 156 617
Total Equity Market Index (1998) 294 356
Institutional Small-Cap Stock (2000) 437 478
Other funds (16 in 2003 and 17 in 2004) 984 1,396

88,359 114,322
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2003 2004

Bond and money market funds:

New Income (1973) 2,293 2,887
Prime Reserve (1976) 5,234 4,883
Tax-Free Income (1976) 1,619 1,736
Tax-Exempt Money (1981) 714 696
U.S. Treasury Money (1982) 1,067 930
Tax-Free Short-Intermediate (1983) 583 571
High Yield (1984) 3,868 4,299
Short-Term Bond (1984) 1,294 1,517
GNMA (1985) 1,319 1,353
Tax-Free High Yield (1985) 1,139 1,220
California Tax-Free Bond (1986) 267 265
International Bond (1986) 1,357 1,731
Maryland Tax-Free Bond (1987) 1,318 1,288
U.S. Treasury Intermediate (1989) 348 291
Virginia Tax-Free Bond (1991) 417 432
Summit Cash Reserves (1993) 2,854 3,151
Summit Municipal Money Market (1993) 382 655
Emerging Markets Bond (1994) 252 278
Institutional High Yield (2002) 715 606
Other funds (16 in 2003 and 17 in 2004) 2,049 2,365

29,089 31,154

$117,448 $145,476

We invest in many of the T. Rowe Price funds through our operating subsidiaries and our investments holding company subsidiary, TRP Finance.

OTHER INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS. We managed $89.7 billion at December 31, 2004 in other client investment portfolios, up $17.2 billion from the
beginning of the year. We provide investment advisory services to these clients through our subsidiaries on a separately managed or subadvised account basis
and through sponsored investment portfolios generally organized by us such as common trust funds, partnerships, the Luxembourg-based mutual funds, and
variable annuity life insurance plans. At December 31, these portfolios included the following investment assets:

2003 2004
U.S. stocks $ 35,531 $ 50,361
International stocks 11,582 11,252
Stable value assets 10,245 11,042
Other bonds and money market securities 15,156 17,059

$ 72,514 $ 89,714

Our fees for managing these investment portfolios are computed using the value of assets under our management. In 2004, about 60% of these advisory fees
were based on daily valuations of the managed investment portfolios. About 33% of the fees were based on end of billing period valuations, while the
remainder was based on account values at the beginning of the billing period, which was generally three months.

We charge fees for investment management based on, among other things, the specific investment services to be provided. Our standard form of investment
advisory agreement for client accounts provides that the agreement may be terminated at any time and that any unearned fees paid in advance will be
refunded.
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REGULATION. T. Rowe Price Associates, T. Rowe Price International, T. Rowe Price Stable Asset Management, T. Rowe Price Global Asset Management,
and T. Rowe Price Advisory Services are registered with the SEC as investment advisers under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. T. Rowe Price Global
Investment Services, T. Rowe Price Global Asset Management, and T. Rowe Price International are regulated by the Financial Services Authority in Great
Britain and, in certain cases, by other foreign regulators. Our transfer agent services subsidiaries are registered under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
and our trust company is regulated by the State of Maryland, Commissioner of Financial Regulation. T. Rowe Price Savings Bank is regulated by the Office
of Thrift Supervision, U.S. Department of the Treasury. T. Rowe Price (Canada) is a dormant investment adviser registered with the Ontario Securities
Commission.

T. Rowe Price Investment Services is a registered broker-dealer and member of the National Association of Securities Dealers and the Securities Investor
Protection Corporation. We provide discount brokerage services through this subsidiary primarily to complement the other services provided to shareholders
of the Price funds. Pershing, a third-party clearing broker, maintains all our discount brokerage’s customer accounts and clears all their transactions.

All aspects of our business are subject to extensive federal and state laws and regulations. These laws and regulations are primarily intended to benefit or
protect our clients and the Price funds’ shareholders. They generally grant supervisory agencies and bodies broad administrative powers, including the power
to limit or restrict the conduct of our business in the event that we fail to comply with laws and regulations. Possible sanctions that may be imposed on us in
the event that we fail to comply include the suspension of individual employees, limitations on engaging in certain business activities for specified periods of
time, revocation of our investment adviser and other registrations, censures, and fines.

Certain of our subsidiaries are subject to net capital requirements including those of various federal, state, and foreign regulatory agencies. Our subsidiaries’
net capital, as defined, has consistently met or exceeded all minimum requirements.

COMPETITION. As a member of the financial services industry, we are subject to substantial competition in all aspects of our business. A significant number
of proprietary and other sponsors’ mutual funds are sold to the public by other investment management firms, broker-dealers, mutual fund companies, banks
and insurance companies. We compete with brokerage and investment banking firms, insurance companies, banks, and other financial institutions in all
aspects of our business and in every country in which we offer our advisory services. Many of these financial institutions have substantially greater resources
than we do. We compete with other providers of investment management services primarily based on the availability and objectives of the investment
portfolios offered, investment performance, and the scope and quality of our services.

We believe that competition within the investment management industry will increase as a result of consolidation and acquisition activity. In order to maintain
and enhance our competitive position, we may review acquisition and venture opportunities and, if appropriate, engage in discussions or negotiations that
could lead to acquisitions or new financial relationships.

EMPLOYEES. At December 31, 2004, we employed 4,139 associates, up 9.4% from the end of 2003. We may add additional temporary and part-time
personnel to our staff from time to time to meet periodic and special project demands, primarily for technology and mutual fund administrative services.
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SEC FILINGS. We make available free of charge through our Internet web site our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on

Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission. To obtain any of this
information, you can access our Internet home page at www.troweprice.com; select: Company Info and Press; and then select: Financial Information.

Item 2. Properties.

In 2004, we extended the lease on our primary corporate offices which will include almost 377,000 square feet at 100 East Pratt Street in Baltimore,
Maryland. The lease now expires in mid-2017. We plan to make tenant improvements to these offices over the next two to three years and the lessor will be
providing funding for some of those improvements. Our London and other international offices as well as our customer service call center in Tampa, Florida
are also leased.

Our operating and servicing facilities include properties in suburban campus settings comprising 567,000 square feet in Owings Mills, Maryland that is
owned by TRP Suburban Second and 124,000 square feet in Colorado Springs, Colorado. We also own a 46,000 square foot technology center on a separate
parcel of land in Owings Mills in close proximity to the campus facilities. Acreage that we own on which these three facilities are located will accommodate
additional future development.

We maintain investor centers for walk-in traffic and investor meetings in leased facilities located in the Baltimore; Boston (Wellesley, Massachusetts);
Chicago (Oak Brook, Illinois); Los Angeles (Woodland Hills, California); New Jersey/New York City (Short Hills, New Jersey); San Francisco (Walnut
Creek, California); Tampa; and Washington (Washington, D.C. and McLean, Virginia) areas. We also have investor centers in our owned facilities in
Colorado Springs and Owings Mills. These 11 investor centers allow us to be available to a large number of our investors.

Information concerning our anticipated capital expenditures in 2005 and our future minimum rental payments under noncancelable operating leases at
December 31, 2004 is set forth in the capital resources and liquidity discussion in Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On September 16, 2003, a purported class action (T.K. Parthasarathy, et al., including Woodbury, v. T. Rowe Price International Funds, Inc., et al.) was filed
in the Circuit Court, Third Judicial Circuit, Madison County, Illinois, against T. Rowe Price International and the T. Rowe Price International Funds with
respect to the T. Rowe Price International Stock Fund. The basic allegations in the case are that the T. Rowe Price defendants did not make appropriate value
adjustments to the foreign securities of the T. Rowe Price International Stock Fund prior to calculating the Fund’s daily share prices, thereby allegedly
enabling market timing traders to trade the Fund’s shares at the expense of the long-term mutual fund shareholders. The plaintiffs seek monetary damages.

From time to time, various claims against us arise in the ordinary course of business, including employment-related claims.

In the opinion of management, after consultation with counsel, it is unlikely that there will be any adverse determination in one or more pending claims that
would have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.
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Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
None during the fourth quarter of 2004.
Item. Executive officers of the registrant.

The following information includes the names, ages, and positions of our executive officers. There are no arrangements or understandings pursuant to which
any person serves as an officer. The first seven individuals are members of our management committee.

George A. Roche (63), Chairman and President (since 1997) and Interim Chief Financial Officer (2000-2001 and 2003-2004).

James S. Riepe (61), Vice Chairman (since 1997) and Vice President (since 1981).

Edward C. Bernard (49), Vice President (since 1989).

James A.C. Kennedy (51), Vice President (since 1981).

Mary J. Miller (49), Vice President (since 1991).

Brian C. Rogers (49), Vice President (since 1985).

David J.L. Warren (47), Vice President (since 2000).

Joseph P. Croteau (50), Vice President (since 1987) and Treasurer (since 2000).

Henry H. Hopkins (62), Vice President (since 1976).

Melody L. Jones (45), Vice President (since 2002). Ms. Jones was previously Vice President and Chief Human Resources Officer (1998-2002)
at Aon Corporation, an international provider of insurance and consulting services.

Kenneth V. Moreland (48), Vice President and Chief Financial Officer (since 2004). Mr. Moreland was previously Senior Vice President,
Treasurer, And Chief Financial Officer (1996-2004) of RTKL Associates Inc., an international architectural firm.

Wayne D. O’Melia (52), Vice President (since 1991).

Charles E. Vieth (48), Vice President (since 1985).

PART II
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.

Our common stock ($.20 par value per share) trades on The NASDAQ National Market under the symbol TROW. The high and low trade price information
and dividends per share during the past two years were:

1st 2nd 3rd 4th
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2003 — High price $ 30.61 $ 39.39 $ 4481 $ 47.59
Low price 23.72 26.20 37.41 39.34
Cash dividends declared 17 17 17 .19
2004 — High price 56.93 54.91 52.44 63.39
Low price 47.33 46.13 43.83 48.84
Cash dividends declared .19 .19 .19 .23

On February 25, 2005, there were approximately 4,100 holders of record of our outstanding common stock.
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We expect to declare and pay cash dividends at the $.23 per-share quarterly rate for the first three quarters of 2005. The increase made to our quarterly
dividend rate in December 2004 was the nineteenth consecutive annual increase since we became a public company in April 1986. There can be no assurance
that we will continue to pay dividends at increasing rates or at all.

Our common stockholders have approved all of our equity compensation plans. These plans provide for the issuance of up to 35,992,795 shares of our
common stock at December 31, 2004, including 24,130,402 shares that may be issued upon the exercise of outstanding stock options, which have a weighted
average exercise price of $36.65, and 11,862,393 shares that remain available for future issuance. The number of shares available for future issuance will
increase under the terms of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as a result of all future common stock repurchases that we make from proceeds generated by stock
option exercises that have occurred since the inception of the 2004 Plan.

During 2004, our only repurchases of common shares were in August when we repurchased 400,000 shares for $18.3 million in open market transactions. As
of December 31, 2004, a board of directors’ 1999 resolution still allowed us to repurchase up to 446,010 shares of our common stock. In addition, a 2003
board resolution added 5,000,000 shares to our authorized repurchase program.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(in millions, except per-share data)

Net revenues $ 1,154 $ 995 $ 924 $ 996 $ 1,277
Net operating income $ 409 $ 311 $ 321 $ 365 $ 525
Net income $ 269 $ 196 $ 194 $ 227 $ 337
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 323 $ 290 $ 269 $ 297 $ 374
Per-Share information
Basic earnings $ 222 $ 159 $ 158 $ 184 $ 265
Diluted earnings $ 2.08 $ 152 $ 152 $ 177 $ 251
Cash dividends declared $ 054 $ 061 $ 065 $ 0.70 $ 0.80
Weighted average shares outstanding 121.2 123.1 122.9 123.4 127.4
Weighted average shares outstanding-assuming dilution 129.6 129.0 127.7 128.3 134.1
December 31,
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
(in millions, except as noted)
Balance sheet data
Total assets $ 1,469 $ 1,313 $ 1,370 $ 1,547 $ 1,929
Debt $ 312 $ 104 $ 56 $ = $ —
Stockholders’ equity $ 991 $ 1,078 $ 1,134 $ 1,329 $ 1,697
Assets under management (in billions) $ 166.7 $ 156.3 $ 1406 $ 190.0 $ 235.2
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
GENERAL.

Our revenues and net income are derived primarily from investment advisory services provided to U.S. individual and institutional investors in our sponsored
mutual funds and other managed investment portfolios. Investors outside the United States have grown over the last four years and account for more than 5%
of our assets under management at December 31, 2004.

We manage a broad range of U.S. and international stock, bond, and money market mutual funds and other investment portfolios which meet the varied needs
and objectives of individual and institutional investors. Investment advisory revenues depend largely on the total value and composition of assets under our
management. Accordingly, fluctuations in financial markets and in the composition of assets under management impact our revenues and results of
operations.

Financial market results during 2004 were strong, though largely the result of a strong boost to the equity markets in the fourth quarter. Stock indexes closed
the first quarter near the levels of the beginning of the year. The second quarter saw U.S. stocks produce slightly positive returns while third quarter losses
across the markets resulted in negative returns at the end of nine months. Investor concerns about the strength of the economy, rising interest rates, global
political risks, national elections, and record high oil prices all weighed heavily on the markets. After the November elections in the U.S., the financial
markets began rising to end 2004 on a positive note. For the first time since 1999, the stock markets in the U.S. rose for two consecutive years. The broad
S&P 500 index rose just under 9% during 2004 and the Dow Industrials finished the year up over 3%. The NASDAQ index, which is heavily weighted with
technology companies, finished up nearly 8.6%. The Federal Reserve began the first of five increases in the federal funds target rate on June 30, 2004 — the
first rate increases in four years. Despite these rate increases, yields on 10-year U.S. Treasuries were basically flat for the year.

In this financial environment, total assets under our management ended 2004 at a record $235.2 billion, up more than $45 billion during the year. Improving
financial market valuations and income added $24.5 billion to our assets under management during 2004 while net investor inflows added a record

$20.7 billion. Year-end assets under management consist of $176 billion in equity securities and $59 billion in bond and money market holdings. These
investment assets include more than $145 billion in the T. Rowe Price mutual funds distributed in the United States and nearly $90 billion in other investment
portfolios that include separately-managed accounts, sub-advised funds, and other sponsored investment funds offered to investors outside the United States
and through variable annuity life insurance plans.

Of significant importance to our growth in assets under management during 2004, net cash inflows were very strong and at record levels. In total, investors
entrusted $20.7 billion more to our management, including nearly $12.7 billion into the U.S. mutual funds and $8.0 billion from across the world into the
other portfolios that we manage. The previous record net inflows to our U.S. mutual funds were $8.6 billion in 1996. Our strong relative investment
performance and brand awareness have contributed significantly to obtaining these new assets for investment management.
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As aresult of the disclosures of trading abuses at several investment management firms beginning in September 2003, the investment management industry
and mutual funds in particular have come under greater regulatory scrutiny. Some regulations designed to strengthen controls and restore investor confidence
in the industry were enacted in 2004 and more are expected in the coming months.

In an improving market environment for 2005, we would expect to increase our expenditures to attract new investment advisory clients and additional
investments from our existing clients. These efforts may involve significant costs that precede the recognition of any future revenues that we may realize from
increases to our assets under management.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

2004 versus 2003. Both net revenues and total revenues increased more than $281 million to nearly $1.3 billion. Net operating income increased $160 million
to $525 million from $365 million. Net income increased about $110 million to $337 million, up more than 48% from $227.5 million in 2003. Diluted
earnings per share increased nearly 42% from $1.77 to $2.51.

Investment advisory revenues were up 32% or $251 million in 2004 compared to 2003. Increased assets under management drove the change as average
mutual fund assets were more than $128 billion, almost $29 billion higher than the $99.4 billion average in 2003. Average assets in other managed portfolios
were almost $79 billion in 2004, up more than $18 billion versus the average of $60.5 billion in 2003. Total average assets under management increased
$47.0 billion during 2004 to end the year at nearly $207 million.

Investment advisory revenues earned from the T. Rowe Price mutual funds distributed in the United States increased $178 million. Mutual fund assets ended
2004 at $145.5 billion, up $28 billion from the beginning of the year. Market appreciation and income, net of dividends paid and not reinvested, added

$15.3 billion to mutual fund assets during 2004 and net investor inflows added another $12.7 billion. Net cash flows during 2004 were supported broadly by
the financial intermediary, individual direct, and defined contribution retirement plan channels, and were concentrated in the U.S. domestic stock mutual
funds. The Mid-Cap Value, Equity Income, Growth Stock, Capital Appreciation, and Mid-Cap Growth funds each added more than $1 billion of net investor
inflows and, together, accounted for $9.5 billion of the funds’ net inflows in 2004. Bond and money market funds added $1 billion of net investor flows while
the international stock funds had net outflows of less than $500 million.

Investment advisory revenues earned on the other investment portfolios that we manage increased more than $73 million to almost $293 million in 2004.
Ending assets in these portfolios were $89.7 billion, up $17.2 billion since the beginning of the year. Net inflows to these portfolios were $8 billion while
market appreciation and income added $9.2 billion in 2004. Investment activity through financial intermediaries in the United States, Japan and Europe, and
new institutional investors, including assignments from Europe and Australia, were responsible for these new investment dollars.

Administrative fees and other income increased $30 million during 2004 to nearly $248 million. The change in these revenues includes $20 million from our
mutual fund transfer agent services, including our defined contribution plan recordkeeping service. Additionally, revenues increased $7.5 million from 12b-1
distribution fees received on greater assets under management in the Advisor and R classes of our sponsored mutual fund shares. These changes
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in administrative fees are generally offset by similar changes in related operating expenses that we incur to provide these services and distribute the Advisor
and R classes of mutual fund shares through third party financial intermediaries.

Operating expenses in 2004 were $121 million more than in the prior year. Our largest expense, compensation and related costs, increased 20% or $75 million
from 2003. The number of our associates, their compensation, and the costs of their employee benefits have all increased. Our 2004 bonus program was
higher than the prior year based on our better operating results and the strong relative investment performance that our investment managers achieved. Base
salaries for our associates were increased modestly on January 1, and we added more than 350 associates during 2004, primarily to handle volume-related
activities and business growth. At December 31, 2004, we employed 4,139 associates.

Advertising and promotion expenditures during 2004 were up $15 million compared to 2003. We expect our advertising and promotion expenditures in the
first quarter of 2005 will be similar to the fourth quarter of 2004, with succeeding quarters in 2005 being higher than those of the corresponding 2004
quarters. While market conditions will dictate the exact level of our spending, we expect that our advertising and promotion expenditures for the year 2005
will be 10% to 15% higher than in 2004. We vary our promotional spending based on market conditions and investor demand as well as our efforts to expand
our investor base in the United States and abroad.

Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $5 million in 2004, offsetting the increase of $3.9 million in other occupancy and facility costs. Longer-
lived buildings and non-depreciable land account for two-thirds of the net book value of our property and equipment at December 31, 2004. Costs of rented
facilities and related operating costs were higher in 2004.

Other operating expenses in 2004 increased $32.4 million, including $7.5 million paid based on greater assets under management that are sourced through
financial intermediaries that distribute our Advisor and R classes of mutual fund shares. These costs are funded from an equal increase in our administrative
revenues recognized from 12b-1 fees as discussed above. For 2004, we increased our charitable contribution to our corporate foundation by $6 million. Other
operating expenses this year have risen to meet increased business demands. They include, among other things, travel costs, information services, and
professional fees for legal, audit, and consulting services and regulatory compliance.

In the past, we have made modest use of fully permissible payments by brokers to obtain third-party investment research and related services. After careful
evaluation during 2004, we decided to phase out these arrangements and to pay for all third party investment research and related services directly. The
impact of this decision to our earnings per share is less than $.01 per quarter.

Overall, net operating income for 2004 increased $160 million, or 44%, from 2003.

Our net non-operating income, which includes the recognition of investment gains and losses as well as interest income and credit facility expenses, increased
$8 million from 2003 to $8.5 million. Greater cash balances and higher interest rates in 2004 added $2.5 million, greater returns on fund investments added
$1.6 million, and gains recognized from the sale of investments in sponsored mutual funds added $1.2 million. Foreign currency balances produced exchange
rate gains of more than $1 million in 2004 compared with losses of $1 million on our yen-denominated debt before it was repaid in
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late 2003. Interest and related credit facility costs were down $.7 million in 2004 as we repaid all outstanding debt in 2003 and reduced the size and cost of
our credit facilities on an ongoing basis in 2004.

The 2004 provision for income taxes as a percentage of pretax income is 36.8% for 2004, down 1% from 2003. Greater tax-exempt and non-taxable dividend
income, use of foreign net operating loss carryforwards, and settlements of prior year taxes at lower rates all contributed to this lower rate. We expect our
effective tax rate to rise to 37.1% for 2005.

2003 versus 2002. Total revenues increased $73 million to $999 million and net revenues increased $72 million to $996 million. Net income increased
$33.2 million, or 17%, to $227.5 million. Diluted earnings per share increased 16% from $1.52 to $1.77.

Investment advisory revenues earned from the T. Rowe Price mutual funds distributed in the United States increased $39.2 million on higher average assets
under management which increased $7.3 billion from $92.1 billion in 2002 to $99.4 billion in 2003. Market appreciation and income, net of dividends paid
and not reinvested, added $22.7 billion to mutual fund assets during 2003 and net investor inflows added another $7.5 billion. As a result, fund assets under
management increased from $87.3 billion at the beginning of 2003 to $117.5 billion at December 31, 2003. Stock funds had net investor subscriptions of

$6.4 billion while bond and money market funds added net inflows of $1.1 billion. Investors in the Mid-Cap Growth, Equity Income, and Growth Stock funds
accounted for $3.9 billion of the net inflows during the year. Bond fund investors seeking higher yields added $.9 billion to the High Yield Fund.

Investment advisory revenues earned on the other investment portfolios that we manage increased $22.9 million to $219.2 million in 2003. Average assets for
the year were $60.5 billion, $5 billion higher than in 2002. Year-end assets in these portfolios increased $19.2 billion to $72.5 billion at December 31, 2003.
Net inflows to these portfolios were $5.8 billion in 2003. Third-party distribution efforts and additions from new institutional investors, both in the U.S. and
overseas, were responsible for the new investment dollars. Fees from our managed disposition service for equity securities distributed from venture capital
investment pools accounted for $2.2 million of the advisory revenue increase. Though recurring, these fees will vary significantly over time and through
different phases of the market cycle.

Administrative revenues and other income increased $10.1 million to $217.5 million in 2003. This increase was primarily attributable to increased 12b-1
distribution fees received based on greater assets under management in the Advisor class shares of our sponsored mutual funds and to the transfer agency and
participant recordkeeping services that we provide for defined contribution retirement plans. These revenue changes are generally offset by similar changes in
the expenses that we incur to distribute the Advisor shares through third parties and provide the services to the retirement plans. Our discount brokerage
operation added $1.5 million of the increased revenues from commissions earned on greater trading volume.

Operating expenses in 2003 were $27.5 million higher than in 2002. Our largest expense, compensation and related costs, including bonuses, increased 7% to
$383 million. At December 31, 2003, we employed 3,783 associates, up 2% over the year. Advertising and promotion expenditures were flat versus the

2002 year as we lowered spending during the first nine months of 2003 due to financial market conditions. The final quarter of 2003 saw an increase in our
advertising and promotional spending to $20.4 million, or 35% of 2003’s total expense.
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Depreciation and amortization expense decreased $5.3 million. New capital additions in 2003 were less than depreciation expense and the depreciable book
value of our property and equipment is lower than in the prior year. Other operating expenses increased $5.8 million due primarily to the $4.3 million increase
in distribution costs to third parties which offset the corresponding revenues recognized from the 12b-1 fees discussed above.

Overall, net operating income for 2003 increased nearly $45.5 million, or 14%, from 2002.

Our net non-operating results, which include the recognition of investment gains and losses as well as interest and credit facility expenses, improved from a
loss of $10.9 million in 2002 to a gain of $.5 million in 2003. During 2002, we recognized net investment losses of $10.2 million on our mutual fund
investments, private equity investments, and our investments in sponsored collateralized bond obligations. Interest and related costs were down $.9 million
from 2002 as we repaid all of our outstanding debt obligations during 2003.

The 2003 provision for income taxes as a percentage of pretax income is slightly higher than that of 2002 due primarily to credits in the 2002 year arising
from lower than previously estimated 2001 state income tax liabilities.

CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY.

During 2004, stockholders’ equity increased from $1.3 billion to $1.7 billion. Available net liquid assets, including our mutual fund investments in which
there are no unrealized losses, were nearly $600 million at the beginning of 2005. A $300 million undrawn, committed credit facility expiring in June 2007 is
available to the company.

Operating activities provided cash flows of $374 million in 2004, up $77 million from 2003, including $110 million of increased net income. Net cash used in
investing activities totaled $76 million and net cash used in financing activities totaled $35 million in 2004.

Net cash expended in investing activities increased $22 million versus 2003. Our net cash investments in sponsored mutual funds increased $25 million and
our capital expenditures increased $11 million. Offsetting these amounts was $11 million of lower net savings bank investments due to lower net depositor
inflows in 2004. Net cash used in financing activities decreased $83 million versus 2003. Increased stock option exercises due to our higher common stock
valuations generated $48 million of greater cash proceeds in 2004. In 2003 we also repaid our last outstanding debt of nearly $57 million. Offsetting these
changes were the larger $11 million of new savings bank deposits received in 2003 and $12.5 million more in dividends paid in 2004. We again increased
dividends paid to our stockholders in 2004 and raised our quarterly rate from $.19 to $.23 per share in December.

Comparatively, operating activities in 2003 provided cash flows of $297 million in 2003, up $28 million from 2002, including $33 million of increased net
income offset by lower depreciation expense of $5 million. Cash from our operating activities were used to fund $54 million of net investing activities and
$118 million of net financing activities in 2003.

Net cash expended in investing activities in 2003 decreased $41 million versus 2002 primarily due to the investment of the more than $40 million of greater
net depositor inflows made at our savings bank subsidiary in 2002. Net cash used in financing activities decreased more than $24 million versus 2002. We
repurchased fewer common shares in 2003 and funded them entirely from the
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proceeds of stock option exercises. In 2002, we expended a net of more than $70 million on greater share repurchase activity while also receiving the larger
$40 million net inflow of new savings bank deposits. We again increased dividends paid to our stockholders in 2003.

Property and equipment expenditures in 2005, including those for our build-out of business continuity facilities and supporting operations, are anticipated to
be about $62.5 million and are expected to be funded from operating cash flows.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS.

The following table presents a summary of our future obligations under the terms of existing operating leases and other contractual cash purchase
commitments at December 31, 2004. Other purchase commitments include contractual amounts that will be due for the purchase of goods or services to be
used in our operations and may be cancelable at earlier times than those indicated under certain conditions that may involve termination fees. Because these
obligations are of a normal recurring nature, we expect that we will fund them from future cash flows from operations. The information presented does not
include operating expenses or capital expenditures that will be committed in the normal course of operations in 2005 and future years.

(in millions) Total 2005 2006-7 2008-9 Later
Noncancelable operating leases $ 241 $ 21 $ 38 $ 36 $ 146
Other purchase commitments 119 76 39 2 2

$ 360 $ 97 $ 77 $ 38 $ 148

We also have outstanding commitments to fund additional equity investments totaling $5.3 million at December 31, 2004.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES.

The preparation of financial statements often requires the selection of specific accounting methods and policies from among several acceptable alternatives.
Further, significant estimates and judgments may be required in selecting and applying those methods and policies in the recognition of the assets and
liabilities in our balance sheet, the revenues and expenses in our statement of income, and the information that is contained in our significant accounting
policies and notes to the financial statements. Making these estimates and judgments requires the analysis of information concerning events that may not yet
be complete and of facts and circumstances that may change over time. Accordingly, actual amounts or future results could differ materially from those
estimates that we include currently in our financial statements and notes thereto.

We have historically presented those significant accounting policies that we use in the preparation of our financial statements as an integral part of those
statements and have done so again in this 2004 Annual Report. In the following discussion, we highlight and explain further certain of those policies that are
most critical to the preparation and understanding of our financial statements.

Other than temporary impairments of available for sale securities. We classify our investment holdings in sponsored mutual funds and the debt securities held
for investment by our savings bank subsidiary as available for sale. At the end of each quarter, we mark the carrying amount of each investment holding to
fair value and recognize an unrealized gain or loss in other comprehensive income within stockholders’ equity. We next review each individual security
position that has an unrealized loss or impairment to determine if that loss or impairment is other than temporary.
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A mutual fund holding that has had an unrealized loss for more than six months is presumed to have an other than temporary loss and an impairment is
recognized in our statement of income unless there is persuasive evidence, such as an increase in value subsequent to quarter end, to overcome that
presumption. We may also recognize an other than temporary loss of less than six months in our statement of income if the particular circumstances of the
underlying investment do not warrant our belief that a near-term recovery is possible.

A debt security held by our savings bank subsidiary that is impaired is considered to have an other than temporary loss that we recognize in our income
statement whenever we determine that we will probably not collect all contractual amounts due under the terms of the security based on the issuer’s financial
condition and our intent to hold that security. Minor impairments of 5% or less that arise from changes in interest rates and not credit quality are generally
considered temporary.

Goodwill. We evaluate the carrying amount of goodwill in our balance sheet for possible impairment on an annual basis in the third quarter of each year using
a fair value approach. We attribute all goodwill to our single reportable business segment and reporting unit, our investment advisory business. Goodwill
would be considered impaired whenever our historical carrying amount exceeds the fair value of our investment advisory business.

Our annual testing has demonstrated that the fair value of our investment advisory business exceeds the carrying amount (basically, our stockholders’ equity)
and, therefore, that no impairment exists. Should we reach a different conclusion when we conduct our evaluation in future years, additional work would be
performed to ascertain the amount of the non-cash impairment charge to be recognized. We must also perform impairment testing at other times if an event or
circumstance occurs indicating that it is more likely than not that an impairment has been incurred. The maximum possible future impairment charge that we
could incur is the total goodwill recognized in our balance sheet, $666 million.

Provision for income taxes. After compensation and related costs, our provision for income taxes on our earnings is our largest annual expense. We operate in
several states and several other countries through our various subsidiaries, and must allocate our income, expenses, and earnings under the various laws and
regulations of each of these taxing jurisdictions. Accordingly, our provision for income taxes represents our total estimate of the liability that we have
incurred for doing business each year in all of our locations. Annually, we file tax returns which represent our filing positions with each jurisdiction and settle
our return liabilities. Each jurisdiction has the right to audit those returns and may take different positions with respect to income and expense allocations and
taxable earnings determinations. From time-to-time, we may also provide for estimated liabilities associated with uncertain tax return filing positions that are
subject to, or in the process of, being audited by various tax authorities. Because the determinations of our annual provisions are subject to judgments and
estimates, it is possible that actual results will vary from those recognized in our financial statements. As a result, it is likely that additions to, or reductions of,
income tax expense will occur each year for prior reporting periods as actual tax returns and tax audits are settled.

Stock options. The summary of significant accounting policies includes certain pro forma disclosures as if a fair value based method had been used to
recognize compensation expense associated with our stock option grants. Fair value methods use a valuation model for shorter-term, market-traded financial
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instruments to theoretically value stock option grants even though they are not available for trading purposes and are of longer duration. The Black-Scholes
option pricing model that we use includes the input of certain variables that are dependent on future expectations, including the expected lives of our options
from grant date to exercise date, the volatility of our underlying common shares in the market over that time period, and the rate of dividends that we will pay
during that time. Additionally, the recognition of expense fluctuates based on the forfeiture rate for unvested options when employees leave our company. The
tax benefit will also fluctuate based on the extent to which our associates disqualify their incentive stock option grants.

Our estimates for the variables used in the valuation model are made for the purpose of estimating an expense for each reporting period and are not
subsequently adjusted. Unlike almost all other expenses, the resulting charge to earnings using a fair value based method is a non-cash charge that is never
measured by or adjusted based on a cash outflow.

NEWLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT ON STOCK OPTIONS.

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) revised Statement No. 123, Share-Based Payment, which will require us to
recognize stock option-based compensation expense in our income statement beginning in the third quarter of 2005. The calculation of compensation expense
to then be recognized is similar to that used in our pro forma disclosures discussed above, except that we will also include a reduction for estimated future
forfeitures. These estimates will be adjusted over time to reflect actual forfeitures.

At December 31, 2004, we had 9,968,550 options outstanding that will vest over the remaining period through December 2009. Compensation expense to be
recognized in future periods as these options vest, and the related tax benefits, will be amortized as follows:

Compensation Income tax
expense benefits Net effect
1st half 2005 $ 25,786,000 $ (7,859,000) $17,927,000
2nd half 2005 23,685,000 (7,188,000) 16,497,000
2006 28,485,000 (8,239,000) 20,246,000
2007 16,518,000 (4,560,000) 11,958,000
2008 8,644,000 (2,178,000) 6,466,000
2009 2,971,000 (650,000) 2,321,000
Total $ 106,089,000 $(30,674,000) $75,415,000

These amounts will change to reflect future option grants, estimated and actual forfeitures, and tax benefits that arise upon the future disqualification of
incentive stock option grants.

It is important to note that the use of the fair value method to record compensation expense for stock-based plans does not diminish total stockholders’ equity.
FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION.

From time to time, information or statements provided by or on behalf of T. Rowe Price, including those within this Annual Report, may contain certain
forward-looking information, including information or anticipated information relating to changes in our revenues and net income, changes in the amount and
composition of our assets under management, our expense levels, and our expectations regarding financial markets and other conditions. Readers are
cautioned that any forward-looking information provided by or on behalf of
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T. Rowe Price is not a guarantee of future performance. Actual results may differ materially from those in forward-looking information because of various
factors including, but not limited to, those discussed below. Further, forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and we
undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which it is made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.

Our future revenues and results of operations will fluctuate primarily due to changes in the total value and composition of assets under our management. Such
changes result from many factors including, among other things: cash inflows and outflows in the T. Rowe Price mutual funds and other managed investment
portfolios; fluctuations in the financial markets around the world that result in appreciation or depreciation of the assets under our management; our
introduction of new mutual funds and investment portfolios; and changes in retirement savings trends favoring participant-directed investments and defined
contribution plans. The ability to attract and retain investors’ assets under our management is dependent on investor sentiment and confidence; the relative
investment performance of the Price mutual funds and other managed investment portfolios as compared to competing offerings and market indices; the
ability to maintain our investment management and administrative fees at appropriate levels; competitive conditions in the mutual fund, asset management,
and broader financial services sectors; and our level of success in implementing our strategy to expand our business. Our revenues are substantially dependent
on fees earned under contracts with the Price funds and could be adversely affected if the independent directors of one or more of the Price funds terminated
or significantly altered the terms of the investment management or related administrative services agreements.

Our future results are also dependent upon the level of our expenses, which are subject to fluctuation for the following or other reasons: changes in the level
of our advertising expenses in response to market conditions, including our efforts to expand our investment advisory business to investors outside the United
States and to further penetrate our distribution channels within the United States; variations in the level of total compensation expense due to, among other
things, bonuses, changes in our employee count and mix, and competitive factors; any goodwill impairment that may arise; fluctuation in foreign currency
exchange rates applicable to the costs of our international operations; expenses and capital costs, such as technology assets, depreciation, amortization, and
research and development, incurred to maintain and enhance our administrative and operating services infrastructure; unanticipated costs that may be incurred
to protect investor accounts and the goodwill of our clients; and disruptions of services, including those provided by third parties, such as facilities,
communications, power, and the mutual fund transfer agent and accounting systems.

Our business is also subject to substantial governmental regulation, and changes in legal, regulatory, accounting, tax, and compliance requirements may have
a substantial effect on our operations and results, including but not limited to effects on costs that we incur and effects on investor interest in mutual funds and
investing in general, or in particular classes of mutual funds or other investments.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Our revenues and net income are based primarily on the value of assets under our management. Accordingly, declines in financial market values directly and
negatively impact our investment advisory revenues and net income.
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We invest in our sponsored mutual funds, which are market risk sensitive financial instruments held for purposes other than trading; we do not invest in
derivative financial or commodity instruments. Mutual fund investments have inherent market risk in the form of equity price risk; that is, the potential future
loss of value that would result from a decline in the fair values of the mutual fund shares. Each fund and its underlying net assets are also subject to market
risk which may arise from changes in equity prices, credit ratings, foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates.

The following table (in thousands of dollars) presents the equity price risk from investments in sponsored mutual funds by assuming a hypothetical decline in
the fair values of mutual fund shares. This potential future loss of value, before any income tax benefits, reflects the valuation of mutual fund investments at
year end using each fund’s lowest fair value per share during 2004. In considering this presentation, it is important to note that: all funds did not experience
their lowest fair value per share on the same day; it is likely that the composition of the mutual fund investment portfolio would be changed if adverse market
conditions persisted; and we could experience future losses in excess of those presented below.

Fair value at Potential
December 31, % of lower % of Potential
2004 Portfolio value Portfolio loss
Stock funds $ 134,445 62 $112,407 60 $ 22,038 16%
Bond funds 80,714 38 73,432 40 7,282 9%
$ 215,159 100 $185,839 100 $ 29,320 14%

The comparable potential loss of value shown in last year’s annual report was $35 million on sponsored mutual fund investments of $162 million at the end of
2003. During 2004, we actually experienced net unrealized gains of $21 million as positive market conditions significantly improved the value of our fund
investments over the course of the year.

Investments in mutual funds generally moderate market risk because funds, by their nature, are diversified investment portfolios that invest in a number of
different financial instruments. T. Rowe Price further manages its exposure to market risk by diversifying its investments among many domestic and
international funds. In addition, investment holdings may be altered from time to time, in response to changes in market risks and other factors, as deemed
appropriate by management.

The investment portfolio and customer deposit liabilities of our savings bank subsidiary are subject to interest rate risk. If interest rates change 1%, the change
in the net value of these assets and liabilities would not be material.

We also make other investments that we include in our balance sheet in other assets. We are at risk for losses on these investments should market conditions
deteriorate. At December 31, 2004, we hold a $1.2 million investment in a sponsored high-yield collateralized bond obligation and investments totaling
$5.3 million in private equity and other entities. Our risk of future loss on these investments cannot exceed the $6.5 million recognized in our balance sheet.
Additionally, we have recognized our yen investment in a 10% interest of Daiwa SB Investments (Japan) at $15 million using the historical cost basis of
accounting. Our market risk on this investment is primarily limited to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations between the U.S. dollar and the Japanese
yen.

The U.S. dollar weakened versus the currencies of several foreign countries in which we operate, most prominent among which is Great Britain. We incur
operating expenses and have foreign currency-denominated assets and
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liabilities associated with these operations, though our revenue stream is predominately realized in U.S. dollar receipts. We do not believe that foreign
currency fluctuations materially impact our results of operations.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004.
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of T. Rowe Price Group,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of T. Rowe
Price Group, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated February 4, 2005, expressed an
unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 4, 2005
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1)

Accounts receivable (Note 6)

Investments in sponsored mutual funds (Note 1)

Debt securities held by savings bank subsidiary (Note 1)
Property and equipment (Note 2)

Goodwill (Note 3)

Other assets (Notes 8 and 9)

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued compensation and related costs

Income taxes payable (Note 4)

Dividends payable

Customer deposits at savings bank subsidiary (Note 9)

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 9)

Stockholders’ equity (Notes 5 and 9)

Preferred stock, undesignated, $.20 par value - authorized and unissued 20,000,000 shares
Common stock, $.20 par value - authorized 500,000,000 shares; issued 124,932,884 shares in 2003 and 129,607,697

shares in 2004
Additional capital in excess of par value
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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12/31/2003 12/31/2004
$ 236,533 $ 499,750
121,295 158,342
162,283 215,159
110,962 114,075
201,094 203,807
665,692 665,692
48,718 72,000
$1,546,577 $1,928,825
$ 47,699 $ 54,172
36,893 37,799
12,890 9,327
23,739 29,800
96,276 100,427
217,497 231,525
24,987 25,922
131,425 250,764
1,143,913 1,378,948
28,755 41,666
1,329,080 1,697,300
$1,546,577 $1,928,825




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per-share amounts)

Revenues (Note 6)
Investment advisory fees
Administrative fees and other income
Investment income of savings bank subsidiary
Total revenues
Interest expense on savings bank deposits
Net revenues

Operating expenses
Compensation and related costs (Notes 2 and 9)
Advertising and promotion
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment
Occupancy and facility costs
Other operating expenses

Net operating income

Other investment income (loss) (Note 1)
Other interest and credit facility expenses (Note 7)

Net non-operating income (expense)

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes (Note 4)
Net income

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004

$715,365 $777,462 $1,028,831

207,409 217,483 247,743
3,055 3,910 3,775
925,829 998,855 1,280,349
2,327 3,288 3,300
923,502 995,567 1,277,049
357,586 382,956 457,905
59,056 59,005 74,268
50,578 45,289 40,018
60,788 62,538 66,420
74,983 80,739 113,159
602,991 630,527 751,770
320,511 365,040 525,279
(8,273) 2,175 9,496
2,634 1,699 992
(10,907) 476 8,504
309,604 365,516 533,783
115,350 138,029 196,523

$194,254 $227,487 $ 337,260

$ 1.58 $ 184 $ 2.65
$ 1.52 $ 177 $ 2.51




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment
Other changes in assets and liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investments in sponsored mutual funds
Dispositions of sponsored mutual funds
Investments in debt securities by savings bank subsidiary
Proceeds from debt securities held by savings bank subsidiary
Additions to property and equipment
Other investment activity
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchases of common stock
Stock options exercised
Debt principal repaid
Dividends paid to stockholders
Change in savings bank subsidiary deposits

Net cash used in financing activities

Cash and cash equivalents
Net increase during year
At beginning of year
At end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004

$ 194,254 $ 227,487 $337,260
50,578 45,289 40,018
24,466 24,179 (2,998)
269,298 296,955 374,280
(15,547) (17,423) (38,406)
5,453 10,677 6,897
(78,388) (78,590) (41,357)
17,750 58,213 36,690
(26,047) (31,742) (43,069)
1,808 5,206 3,380
(94,971) (53,659) (75,865)
(95,773) (19,963) (18,334)
25,320 27,169 75,149
(49,366) (56,699) —
(78,701) (83,672) (96,164)
55,870 14,984 4,151
(142,650) (118,181) (35,198)
31,677 125,115 263,217
79,741 111,418 236,533

$ 111,418 $ 236,533 $499,750




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (dollars in thousands)

Balance at December 31, 2001, 123,088,795 common shares
Comprehensive income

Net income

Change in unrealized security holding gains, net of taxes

Total comprehensive income
2,359,901 common shares issued under stock-based compensation plans
2,800,000 common shares repurchased
Dividends declared
Balance at December 31, 2002, 122,648,696 common shares
Comprehensive income

Net income

Change in unrealized security holding gains, net of taxes

Total comprehensive income
3,071,188 common shares issued under stock-based compensation plans
787,000 common shares repurchased
Dividends declared
Balance at December 31, 2003, 124,932,884 common shares
Comprehensive income

Net income

Change in unrealized security holding gains, net of taxes

Total comprehensive income
5,074,813 common shares issued under stock-based compensation plans
400,000 common shares repurchased
Dividends declared

Balance at December 31, 2004, 129,607,697 common shares

Additional Accumulated
capital in other com- Total
excess of Retained prehensive stockholders’
Common stock par value earnings incom equity
$ 24,618 $ 67,965 $ 973,472 $ 11,770 $1,077,825
194,254
(3,129)
191,125
472 38,952 ) 39,422
(560) (26,173) (67,937) (94,670)
(79,862) (79,862)
24,530 80,744 1,019,925 8,641 1,133,840
227,487
20,114
247,601
614 53,539 54,153
(157) (2,858) (16,948) (19,963)
(86,551) (86,551)
24,987 131,425 1,143,913 28,755 1,329,080
337,260
12,911
350,171
1,015 137,593 138,608
(80) (18,254) (18,334)
(102,225) (102,225)
$ 25922  $250,764  $1,378,948  $ 41,666  $1,697,300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

T. Rowe Price Group derives its consolidated revenues and net income primarily from investment advisory services that its subsidiaries provide to individual
and institutional investors in the sponsored T. Rowe Price mutual funds and other investment portfolios. We also provide our investment advisory clients with
related administrative services, including mutual fund transfer agent, accounting and shareholder services; participant recordkeeping and transfer agent
services for defined contribution retirement plans; discount brokerage; and trust services. The investors that we serve are primarily domiciled in the United
States of America.

Investment advisory revenues depend largely on the total value and composition of assets under our management. Accordingly, fluctuations in financial
markets and in the composition of assets under management impact our revenues and results of operations.

BASIS OF PREPARATION.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by our management in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States which require the use of estimates. Actual results may vary from those estimates.

Our financial statements include the accounts of all subsidiaries in which we have a majority or controlling interest. We are not the primary beneficiary of any
variable interest entity. All material intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

CASH EQUIVALENTS.
Cash equivalents consist primarily of short-term, highly liquid investments in sponsored money market mutual funds and in commercial paper. The cost of
these funds is equivalent to fair value.

INVESTMENTS.
Investments in sponsored mutual funds and debt securities held by our savings bank subsidiary are classified as available-for-sale and are reported at fair
value. Net unrealized security holding gains or losses are recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income.

We also hold other investments that are included in other assets and are recognized using the cost or equity methods of accounting, as appropriate.

We review the carrying amount of each investment for possible impairment on a quarterly basis and recognize a loss in our statement of income whenever an
unrealized loss is considered other than temporary.

CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK.
Concentration of credit risk in accounts receivable is believed to be minimal in that our clients generally have substantial assets, including those in the
investment portfolios that we manage for them.

Our investments in sponsored mutual funds expose us to market risk in the form of equity price risk; that is, the potential future loss of value that would result
from a decline in the fair values of the mutual funds. Each fund and its underlying net assets are also subject to market risk which may arise from changes in
equity prices, credit ratings, foreign currency exchange rates, and interest rates.

Investments by our savings bank subsidiary in debt securities expose us to market risk which may arise from changes in credit ratings and interest rates.
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PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT.

Property and equipment is stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization computed using the straight-line method. Provisions for
depreciation and amortization are based on the following weighted average estimated useful lives: computer and communications software and equipment,
3.3 years; buildings, 31.5 years; leasehold improvements, 7.6 years; furniture and other equipment, 5 years; and leased land, 99 years.

REVENUE RECOGNITION.

Fees for investment advisory services and related administrative services that we provide to investment advisory clients are recognized in the period that our
services are provided. Administrative revenues from distribution of our sponsored mutual funds’ Advisor and R class shares, and the corresponding operating
expense for payments to third-party financial intermediaries that distribute those share classes, are recognized in the period that they are earned from the
mutual funds (that is, the same period that the related funds recognize their expense).

ADVERTISING.
Costs of advertising are expensed the first time that the advertising takes place.

EARNINGS PER SHARE.

Basic earnings per share excludes the dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average common
shares outstanding of 122,876,000 in 2002, and 123,423,000 in 2003, and 127,419,000 in 2004. Diluted earnings per share reflects the potential dilution that
could occur if outstanding stock options were exercised. It is computed by increasing the denominator of the basic calculation by potential dilutive common
shares, determined using the treasury stock method, of 4,830,000 in 2002, and 4,866,000 in 2003, and 6,716,000 in 2004.

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME.
Total comprehensive income is reported in our consolidated statements of stockholders’ equity and includes net income and the change in unrealized security
holding gains or losses, net of income taxes.

STOCK OPTION GRANTS.

Our seven stock-based compensation plans (the 1990, 1993, 1996, 2001 and 2004 Stock Incentive Plans and the 1995 and 1998 Director Stock Option Plans)
are accounted for using the intrinsic value based method. Under these plans, we have granted qualified incentive and nonqualified fixed stock options with a
maximum term of 10 years to employees and directors. Vesting of employee options is based solely on the individual continuing to render service and
generally occurs over a five-year graded schedule. The exercise price of each option granted is equivalent to the market price of the common stock at the date
of grant. Accordingly, no compensation expense related to stock option grants has been recognized in the consolidated statements of income.

The following disclosures are made as if the fair value based method of accounting had been applied to our stock option grants. The weighted-average grant-
date fair value of each option awarded is estimated to be $9.42 in 2002, $13.96 in 2003, and $18.34 in 2004, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model
and the following weighted-average assumptions: dividend yield of 1.4% in 2002 and 1.5% in 2003, and 1.7% in 2004; expected volatility of 36% in 2002,
35% in 2003, and 33% in 2004,; risk-free interest rates of 4.0% in 2002, 3.6% in 2003, and 3.7% in 2004; and expected lives of 5.7 years in 2002, 5.5 years in
2003, and 5.2 years in 2004.

Page 30 of 45




The following table illustrates the pro forma effect on net income (in thousands) and earnings per share if we had applied the fair value based method,
including the estimates contained in the preceding paragraph, to our stock option grants that were outstanding and not yet vested during each of the past three
years. Forfeitures of options are recognized as they occur.

2002 2003 2004

Net income, as reported $194,254 $227,487 $ 337,260
Additional stock option-based compensation expense estimated using the fair value based method (39,369) (37,028) (42,631)
Related income tax benefits 11,985 11,248 14,167
Pro forma net income $166,870 $201,707 $308,796
Earnings per share

Basic — as reported $ 158 $ 184 $ 265

Basic — pro forma $ 136 $ 163 $ 242

Diluted — as reported $ 152 $ 177 $ 251

Diluted — pro forma $ 131 $ 159 $ 231

On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) revised Statement No. 123, Share-Based Payment, which will require us to
recognize stock option-based compensation expense in our income statement beginning in the third quarter of 2005. The calculation of compensation expense
to then be recognized is similar to that used in the calculations shown above, except that we will also include a reduction for estimated future forfeitures.
These estimates will be adjusted over time to reflect actual forfeitures.

At December 31, 2004, we had 9,968,550 options outstanding that will vest over the remaining period through December 2009. Compensation expense to be
recognized in future periods as these options vest, and the related tax benefits, will be amortized as follows:

Compensation Income tax

expense benefits Net effect
1st half 2005 $ 25,786,000 $ (7,859,000) $17,927,000
2nd half 2005 23,685,000 (7,188,000) 16,497,000
2006 28,485,000 (8,239,000) 20,246,000
2007 16,518,000 (4,560,000) 11,958,000
2008 8,644,000 (2,178,000) 6,466,000
2009 2,971,000 (650,000) 2,321,000
Total $106,089,000  $(30,674,000)  $75,415,000

These amounts will change to reflect future option grants, estimated and actual forfeitures, and any tax benefits that may arise upon the future disqualification
of incentive stock option grants.

It is important to note that the use of the fair value method to record compensation expense for stock-based plans does not diminish total stockholders’ equity.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1 - INVESTMENTS.

MUTUAL FUNDS.
Cash equivalent investments in our sponsored money market mutual funds aggregate $222,104,000 at December 31, 2003 and $469,934,000 at December 31,
2004.

Investments in our other sponsored mutual funds (in thousands) at December 31 include:

Unrealized Aggregate
Aggregate holding fair
cost gains value
2003
Stock funds $ 78,174 $ 28,554 $106,728
Bond funds 40,148 15,407 55,555
$118,322 $ 43,961 $162,283
2004
Stock funds $ 90,850 $ 43,595 $134,445
Bond funds 59,820 20,894 80,714

$150,670 $ 64,489 $215,159

The following table reconciles our unrealized holding gains (losses) on investments in sponsored mutual funds (in thousands) to that recognized in other
comprehensive income.

2002 2003 2004
Unrealized holding gains (losses) $ (10,169) $ 32,365 $ 21,367
Less gains (losses) realized in net income using average cost (3,870) (332) 839

(6,299) 32,697 20,528
Deferred tax benefits (income taxes) 2,295 (11,447) (7,230)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income $ (4,004) $ 21,250 $ 13,298

Dividends earned on our investments in sponsored mutual funds, including money market mutual funds, totaled $2,989,000 in 2002, $2,624,000 in 2003, and
$6,716,000 in 2004. There are no individual mutual fund holdings with an unrealized loss at December 31, 2003 or 2004.

DEBT SECURITIES.

Our savings bank subsidiary holds investments in marketable debt securities, including mortgage- and other asset-backed securities, that are accounted for as
available-for-sale. We generally hold these securities to their maturity which correlates to the maturities of our customer deposits. The following table details
the components of these investments at December 31.
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Investments with temporary impairment
Of less than 12 months (36 securities in 2004)
Of 12 months or more (10 securities in 2004)

Investments with unrealized holding gains
Balance at December 31
Aggregate cost

2003 2004
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair gain Fair gain
value (loss) value (loss)
$ 46,193 $ (824)  $ 36436 $  (298)
— — 16,001 (577)
46,193 (824) 52,437 (875)
64,769 964 61,638 375
$ 110,962 $ 140 $114,075 $ (500)
$ 110,822 $114,575

The unrealized losses in these investments were caused by interest rate increases and not changes in credit quality. We have the ability and intent to hold these
investments until maturity and to collect all contractual cash flows. The impairments in the portfolio are minor and in each case less than 5% at December 31,
2004. Accordingly, impairment of these investments is considered temporary. Our adoption of EITF Issue No. 03-01 as of June 30, 2004 did not impact our

financial condition or results of operations.

The following table reconciles our unrealized holding gains (losses) on the savings bank portfolio (in thousands) to that recognized in other comprehensive

income.

Unrealized holding gains (losses)
Less gains (losses) realized in net income using average cost

Deferred tax benefits (income taxes)
Unrealized holding gains (losses) recognized in other comprehensive income

NOTE 2 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT.

Property and equipment (in thousands) at December 31 consists of:

Computer and communications software and equipment
Buildings and leasehold improvements

Furniture and other equipment

Land owned and leased

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization

2002 2003 2004

$ 1,468 $ (1,750) $ (643)

20 129 3)

1,448 (1,879) (640)

(573) 743 253

$ 875 $ (1,136) $ (387)
2003 2004

$191,118 $202,641

165,127 169,416

61,479 58,683

21,503 21,503

439,227 452,243

238,133 248,436

$201,094 $203,807

Compensation and related costs attributable to the development of computer software for internal use totaling $4,639,000 in 2002, $7,034,000 in 2003, and

$7,299,000 in 2004 have been capitalized.

NOTE 3 - GOODWILL.

Goodwill arose primarily from our August 2000 purchase of the non-controlling interests in one of our consolidated subsidiaries. Goodwill has not been

amortized since the beginning of 2002 when we adopted a new financial accounting standard.
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We evaluated goodwill for possible impairment using the fair value approach on January 1, 2002 and during the third quarters of 2002, 2003, and 2004. Each
time we concluded that there was no impairment. A similar evaluation will be done at least annually in future years. We operate in one reportable business
segment - that of the investment advisory business - and all goodwill is attributed to that segment.

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAXES.

The provision for income taxes (in thousands) consists of:

2002 2003 2004
Current income taxes
U.S. federal and foreign $111,027 $128,380 $177,982
State and local 9,429 13,045 19,099
Deferred income tax benefits (5,106) (3,396) (558)

$115,350 $ 138,029 $196,523

Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences between taxable income for financial statement and income tax return purposes. Significant
temporary differences in 2002 included deferred benefits of $4,584,000 related to investment income and $2,359,000 related to depreciation and amortization
of property and equipment offset by deferred taxes of $2,346,000 related to accrued compensation. Deferred tax benefits in 2003 included $7,180,000 related
to accrued compensation offset by $3,219,000 related to investment income. Deferred tax benefits in 2004 include $4,093,000 related to investment income
offset by deferred taxes of $1,877,000 related to accrued compensation.

Our net deferred tax liability is included in income taxes payable and includes the following components at December 31.

2003 2004
Deferred tax liabilities
Arising from unrealized holding gains $ 15,346 $ 22,322
Other 675 1,069
16,021 23,391
Deferred tax assets
Related to accrued compensation 8,312 6,435
Related to investment income 5,805 9,898
Other 1,335 71
15,452 16,404
Net deferred tax liability $ 569 $ 6,987

At December 31, 2004, our deferred tax accounts include a deferred tax asset and an offsetting valuation allowance of $1.6 million that were recognized in
2002 for a foreign operating loss carryforward originating in an international subsidiary. This carryforward does not expire. Because this subsidiary is still in
its early years of operation, we cannot determine that it is more likely than not that we will be able to realize this deferred tax asset and, accordingly, provided
the offsetting valuation allowance. Changes in our valuation allowance, which first originated when this subsidiary began operations in 2001, include a
reduction in 2004 of $.9 million to offset this subsidiary’s investment gains that were taxable currently.

Cash outflows from operating activities include income taxes paid of $112,457,000 in 2002, $100,284,000 in 2003, and $164,643,000 in 2004. The income
tax benefit arising from exercises of our stock options reduced the income taxes that would have otherwise been payable by $14,102,000 in 2002,
$26,984,000 in 2003, and $63,459,000 in 2004.
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The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rate.

2002 2003 2004
Statutory U.S. federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefits 2.5 2.3 2.3
Other items (:2) .5 (.5)
Effective income tax rate 37.3% 37.8% 36.8%

NOTE 5 - COMMON STOCK AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS.

SHARES AUTHORIZED AND ISSUED.

At December 31, 2004, 35,992,795 shares of unissued common stock were reserved for issuance under our stock-based compensation plans. Additionally,
1,680,000 shares are reserved for issuance under a plan whereby substantially all employees may acquire common stock through payroll deductions at
prevailing market prices.

As of December 31, 2004, the Board of Directors has authorized the future repurchase of up to 5,446,010 common shares.

DIVIDENDS.
Cash dividends declared per share were $.65 in 2002, $.70 in 2003, and $.80 in 2004.

STOCK OPTIONS.
The following table summarizes the status of and changes in our stock option grants during the past three years.

Weighted- Weighted-
average average
exercise Options exercise

Options price exercisable price
Outstanding at beginning of 2002 27,300,787 $ 25.01 16,233,787 $ 20.03
Granted 3,970,367 27.41
Exercised (2,482,951) 11.87
Forfeited or cancelled (844,347) 33.62
Outstanding at end of 2002 27,943,856 26.25 16,759,556 $ 23.50
Granted 3,799,147 42.98
Exercised (3,981,406) 16.16
Forfeited or cancelled (335,820) 31.31
Outstanding at end of 2003 27,425,777 29.98 16,607,977 $ 27.38
Granted 4,192,433 59.88
Exercised (6,656,743) 24.24
Forfeited or cancelled (831,065) 33.07
Outstanding at end of 2004 24,130,402 $ 36.65 14,161,852 $ 31.82
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Information regarding the exercise prices and lives of stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004 follows.

Weighted-
average
Weighted remaining Weighted-
average contractual average
Range of exercise life (in exercise
exercise prices Outstanding price years) Exercisable price
$11.44 to 19.88 2,268,140 $ 15.58 1.4 2,268,140 $ 15.58
$25.36 to 35.88 10,949,288 29.57 5.6 7,577,588 30.84
$36.28 to 43.70 6,804,818 41.03 7.0 3,584,718 39.80
$43.84 to 62.74 4,108,156 59.89 8.7 731,406 53.35
$11.44 to 62.74 24,130,402 $ 36.65 6.1 14,161,852 $ 31.82

NOTE 6 - INFORMATION ABOUT REVENUES AND SERVICES.

Revenues (in thousands) from advisory services provided under agreements with sponsored mutual funds and other investment clients include:

2002 2003 2004
Sponsored mutual funds in the U.S.
Stock $411,679 $434,423 $ 602,220
Bond and money market 107,425 123,879 133,953
519,104 558,302 736,173
Other portfolios 196,261 219,160 292,658
Total investment advisory fees $715,365 $777,462 $1,028,831

The following table summarizes the various investment portfolios and assets under management (in billions) on which advisory fees are earned.

Average during December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2003 2004
Sponsored mutual funds in the U.S.
Stock $ 671 $ 712 $ 981 $ 884 $ 1143
Bond and money market 25.0 28.2 30.0 29.1 31.2
92.1 99.4 128.1 117.5 145.5
Other portfolios 55.5 60.5 78.8 72.5 89.7

$ 1476 $ 159.9 $ 206.9 $ 190.0 $ 235.2

Fees for advisory-related administrative services provided to our sponsored mutual funds were $155,771,000 in 2002, $162,853,000 in 2003, and
$188,523,000 in 2004. Accounts receivable from the mutual funds aggregate $70,127,000 and $88,659,000 at December 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. All
services to the sponsored U.S. mutual funds are provided under contracts which are subject to periodic review and approval by each of the funds’ boards and,
with respect to investment advisory contracts, also by the funds’ shareholders.

NOTE 7 - BORROWINGS AND CREDIT FACILITY.

We borrowed 1,809,500,000 yen ($15,019,000) in April 1999 from a bank. We made a principal payment in 2002 and retired the remaining loan balance in
2003. We also borrowed $300,000,000 in August 2000 to partially finance the purchase of the non-controlling interests in one of our consolidated
subsidiaries. We made principal payments over the subsequent three-year period until this borrowing was repaid in full in 2003.

On June 22, 2004, we replaced our existing credit facilities with a new three-year, $300 million syndicated credit facility with eight banks for which
JPMorgan Chase Bank serves as administrative agent. The interest rate on
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borrowings under this facility will float .27% to .575% above the Eurodollar base rate depending on our financial condition. Annual costs recognized for this
undrawn facility will be about $400,000.

At December 31, 2004, we are in compliance with the covenants contained in our credit facility agreement. Total interest expense, including amortization of
our credit facilities costs, and annual fees was $2,634,000 in 2002, $1,699,000 in 2003, and $992,000 in 2004. Foreign currency transaction losses of
$1,335,000 in 2002 and $988,000 in 2003 arising from the yen borrowing are included in non-operating investment income (loss).

NOTE 8 - VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES.

We presently hold residual interests in two variable interest entities that are high-yield collateralized bond obligations (the 1999 CBO and the 2001 CBO;
collectively, the CBOs). These entities are non-recourse, limited liability companies in which we hold a portion, though not a majority, of the interests in their
residual returns. We are also the collateral manager of each CBO and receive a base investment advisory fee for performance of that service. At December 31,
2004, the CBOs had assets of $608 million.

On May 30, 2003, we altered the fee terms of the collateral management agreements with each CBO and irrevocably waived any performance fees that we
might receive or otherwise earn in 2003 and 2004 with respect to the 2001 CBO. A similar waiver was also made for the 1999 CBO through its remaining
life. Subsequently, we determined that as of May 30, 2003, we were not the primary beneficiary of either CBO. Therefore, we do not consolidate either CBO
into our financial statements under the terms of FASB Interpretation No. 46 (revised), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.

Our maximum aggregate exposure to future losses from these CBOs is equal to the remaining 2001 CBO carrying amount of $1.2 million which is included
in other assets at December 31, 2004. The 1999 CBO was considered impaired and its carrying amount of $2.1 million expensed in 2002.

NOTE 9 - OTHER DISCLOSURES.

We occupy certain office facilities and rent computer and other equipment under noncancelable operating leases. Related rental expense was $20,636,000 in
2002, $19,710,000 in 2003, and $21,292,000 in 2004. Future minimum rental payments under these leases aggregate $20,911,000 in 2005, $19,437,000 in
2006, $18,069,000 in 2007, $17,899,000 in 2008, $18,113,000 in 2009, and $146,875,000 in later years.

Customer deposits at our savings bank subsidiary have defined maturities of up to five years. The estimated fair value of these customer deposits, based on
discounting their expected cash flows at maturity using current interest rates offered for deposits with the same date of maturity, was $100.3 million at
December 31, 2003 and $102.4 million at December 31, 2004.

Investments accounted for under the cost method are included in other assets and total $18,750,000 at December 31, 2004. At December 31, 2004, we had
outstanding commitments to fund additional investments totaling $5.3 million.

Our consolidated stockholders’ equity at December 31, 2004 includes $42 million which is restricted as to use by various regulations and agreements arising
in the ordinary course of our business.
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From time to time, various claims against us arise in the ordinary course of business, including employment-related claims. In the opinion of management,
after consultation with counsel, it is unlikely that any adverse determination in one or more pending claims would have a material adverse effect on our
financial position or results of operations.

Expenses for our defined contribution retirement plans were $24,069,000 in 2002, $24,815,000 in 2003, and $32,777,000 in 2004.

NOTE 10 - SUPPLEMENTARY QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited).

Basic Diluted
earnings earnings
Net Net per per
revenues income share share
(in thousands)
2003
1st quarter $ 218,718 $ 38,774 $ .32 $ 31
2nd quarter 237,462 53,775 .44 42
3rd quarter 258,268 66,291 .53 .51
4th quarter 281,119 68,647 .55 .53
2004
1st quarter 305,651 77,339 .61 .58
2nd quarter 309,672 80,264 .63 .60
3rd quarter 316,228 82,525 .65 .62
4th quarter 345,498 97,132 .75 71

The sum of quarterly earning per share may not equal annual earnings per share because the computations are done independently.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures
as of December 31, 2004. Our disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the information required to be disclosed
by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, including this Form 10-K annual report, is appropriately recorded,
processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based on that evaluation, our principal
executive and principal financial officers have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2004 are effective at the reasonable
assurance level.

Our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, has evaluated any change in our internal control over financial reporting
that occurred during the fourth quarter of 2004, and has concluded that there was no change during the fourth quarter of 2004 that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s report on our internal control over financial reporting and the related attestation report of KPMG LLP follow.
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Report of Management on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
To the Stockholders of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. :

We, together with other members of management of T. Rowe Price Group, are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over the
company’s financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting is the process designed under our supervision, and effected by the company’s board of
directors, management and other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the
company’s financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility that misstatements may not be
prevented or detected. Accordingly, even effective internal controls over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial
statement preparation. Furthermore, the effectiveness of internal controls can change with circumstances.

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 in relation to criteria described in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on management’s
assessment, we believe that the company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2004.

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has audited our financial statements that are included in this annual report and expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon. KPMG LLP has also expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and the effective operation of, our
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004.

February 4, 2005

/s/ George A. Roche
President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Kenneth V. Moreland
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. :

We have audited management’s assessment, included in their accompanying report on internal control over financial reporting, that T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.
maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQO). Also, in our opinion, T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
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We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets
of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated February 4, 2005, expressed an unqualified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 4, 2005
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Item 9B. Other Information.
None to be reported.

PART II1
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

Information required by this item regarding the identification of executive officers is furnished in a separate item at the end of Part I of this Form 10-K. Other
information required by this item is incorporated by reference from the definitive proxy statement required to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for the
2005 Annual Meeting of our stockholders, including the election of our directors.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Information required by these items is incorporated by reference from the definitive proxy statement required to be filed pursuant to Regulation 14A for the
2005 Annual Meeting of our stockholders, including the election of our directors.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
The following documents are filed as part of this report.

1. Financial Statements: See Item 8 of Part II.

2. Financial Statement Schedules: None.

3. The following exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are filed herewith, except for Exhibit 32 which is furnished herewith. Exhibits 10.06

through 10.17 are compensatory plans and arrangements.
3(3) Amended and Restated Charter of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. as of March 9, 2001. (Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for 2000;

Accession No. 0001113169-01-000003.)

3(ii) Amended and Restated By-Laws of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. as of December 12, 2002. (Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for
2002; Accession No. 0000950133-03-000699.)

4 $300,000,000 Three-Year Credit Agreement among T. Rowe Price Group, Inc., the several lenders, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, as
Administrative Agent. (Incorporated by reference from Form 10-Q Report for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004; Accession
No. 0000950133-04-002895.)

10.01  Representative Investment Management Agreement with most of the T. Rowe Price mutual funds. (Incorporated by reference from Form
N-1A; Accession No. 0001267862-04-000002.)
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10.02

10.03

10.04

10.05

10.06

10.07

10.08

10.09

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Transfer Agency and Service Agreement dated as of January 1, 2004 between T. Rowe Price Services, Inc. and the T. Rowe Price Funds.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 485BPOS; Accession No. 0001038490-04-000012.)

Agreement dated January 1, 2004 between T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services, Inc. and certain of the T. Rowe Price Funds.
(Incorporated by reference from Form 485BPOS; Accession No. 0001038490-04-000012.)

Representative Underwriting Agreement between each of the T. Rowe Price mutual funds and T. Rowe Price Investment Services, Inc.
(Incorporated by reference from Form N-1A; Accession No. 0001267862-03-000003.)

Second Amended, Restated and Consolidated Lease Agreement dated November 9, 2004 between East Pratt Street Associates Limited
Partnership and T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.

1995 Director Stock Option Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Form DEF 14A; Accession No. 0000933259-95-000009.)
1998 Director Stock Option Plan, as Amended and Restated effective December 16, 2004, including forms of option agreements.
Schedule of Non-Employee Director Compensation, effective January 1, 2005.

T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan.

1990 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Form S-8 Registration Statement [File No. 33-37573].)

1993 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Form S-8 Registration Statement [File No. 33-72568].)

1996 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Form DEF 14A; Accession No. 0001006199-96-000031.)

2001 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Form DEF 14A; Accession No. 0001113169-01-000002.)

First Amendment to 2001 Stock Incentive Plan dated April 8, 2004. (Incorporated by reference from Form DEF 14A; Accession
No. 0001113169-04-000023.)

2004 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference from Form DEF 14A; Accession No. 0001113169-04-000023.)
Forms of option agreements available for awards and replenishment options issued under the 2001 and 2004 Stock Incentive Plans.
Annual Incentive Compensation Pool. (Incorporated by reference from Form DEF 14A; Accession No. 0001113169-03-000001.)
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14 Code of Ethics for Principal Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002. (Incorporated by reference from Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2003; Accession No. 0000950133-04-000683.)

21 Subsidiaries of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.

23 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, KPMG LLP.
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Executive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Principal Financial Officer.

32 Section 1350 Certifications.

SIGNATURES.

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on February 28, 2005.

T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.
By: /s/ George A. Roche, Chairman and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities indicated on February 28, 2005.

/s/ George A. Roche, Chairman, Director, President and Chief Executive Officer
/s/ James S. Riepe, Vice Chairman and Director

/s/ Edward C. Bernard, Director

/s/ James T. Brady, Director

/s/ J. Alfred Broaddus, Jr., Director

/s/ D. William J. Garrett, Director

/s/ Donald B. Hebb, Jr., Director

/s/ James A.C. Kennedy, Director

/s/ Brian C. Rogers, Director

/s/ Alfred Sommer, Director

/s/ Dwight S. Taylor, Director

/s/ Anne Marie Whittemore, Director

/s/ Kenneth V. Moreland, Chief Financial Officer

/s/ Joseph P. Croteau, Treasurer (Principal Accounting Officer)
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Exhibit 10.05

EAST PRATT STREET ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

and

T. ROWE PRICE ASSOCIATES, INC., a Maryland corporation

SECOND AMENDED, RESTATED AND CONSOLIDATED
LEASE AGREEMENT

Dated: November 9, 2004

Landlord

Tenant
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SECOND AMENDED, RESTATED AND CONSOLIDATED LEASE AGREEMENT

100 EAST PRATT STREET
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND

THIS SECOND AMENDED, RESTATED AND CONSOLIDATED LEASE AGREEMENT (“this Lease”) is made as of the 9th day of November,
2004, by and between EAST PRATT STREET ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Maryland limited partnership (“Landlord”), and T. ROWE
PRICE ASSOCIATES, INC., a Maryland corporation (“Tenant”).

RECITALS:

A. Tenant and Landlord’s predecessor in interest, 100 East Pratt Street Limited Partnership, entered into an Amended, Restated and Consolidated Lease
dated May 22, 1997, which has been amended by a First Amendment to Amended, Restated and Consolidated Lease to Premises dated October 16, 1997, a
Second Amendment to Amended, Restated and Consolidated Lease to Premises dated July 27, 1998, a Third Amendment to Amended, Restated and
Consolidated Lease to Premises dated November 7, 2000, and a Fourth Amendment to Amended, Restated and Consolidated Lease to Premises dated
December 4, 2003 (collectively, the “Restated Lease”).

B. The parties desire to make certain modifications to the Restated Lease and to ease the review and administration of the Restated Lease. Accordingly,
Landlord and Tenant desire to amend, restate and consolidate the Restated Lease, as modified, into a single, integrated document and in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Lease.

C. Landlord is the owner of a twenty-eight (28) story office and retail building (the “Building”) and adjoining multi-level parking garage (the “Garage”)
located at 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore, Maryland, situated on approximately 90,724 square feet of land (the “Land”) (the Building, the Garage, and the
Land are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Project”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms, and conditions contained in this Lease, the foregoing Explanatory Statement
(which Explanatory Statement shall form an integral part of this Lease and is hereby incorporated by reference), and other good and valuable consideration,
the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant, intending to be legally bound, agree to amend, restate, and consolidate
the Restated Lease into a single, integrated document as follows:




1. EFFECTIVE DATE; THE PREMISES.

1.1 This Lease shall be binding against Landlord and Tenant upon its full execution and delivery by both parties; provided, however, that except as
otherwise expressly set forth in this Lease, the terms, conditions, covenants and agreements set forth in this Lease shall not take effect until November 1, 2004
(the “Effective Date”), and, except as such terms and conditions are expressly amended herein and specifically stated to be applicable prior to the Effective
Date, all of the terms and conditions of the Restated Lease shall continue to be effective and shall govern the relationship of Landlord and Tenant with respect
to Tenant’s lease of portions of the Building prior to the Effective Date. Promptly after the Effective Date, Landlord and Tenant shall execute and deliver a
written declaration in the form attached hereto as Exhibit Z.

1.2 Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, for the term and on the terms, conditions, covenants, and agreements herein
provided, approximately 376,964 square feet of Rentable Area described in the table set forth below (the “Premises”). The location and configuration of the
Premises are outlined in red on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof.

FLOOR NET RENTABLE AREA
First Floor of Parking 3,336 sq. ft. (Northeast Corner of Building)
Facility/Retail (“Investor Center Space”)
First Floor Lobby Area 3,200 sq. ft. *
(“TRP Lobby Area”)
First Floor TRP Mailroom 308 sq. ft. *

(“TRP Mailroom”)
31,581 sq. ft. *

41,439 sq. ft.
42,321 sq. ft.
42,321 sq. ft.
42,321 sq. ft.
42,388 sq. ft.
42,427 sq. ft.
42,539 sq. ft.
42,783 sq. ft.

TOTAL 376,964
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*Tenant shall have the right, within six (6) months after the Effective Date, to have its architect confirm the Rentable Area (as defined below) of these
portions of the Premises and at such time as the exact number of square feet of Rentable Area for such portions of the Premises is ascertained by mutual
agreement between Landlord and Tenant (and their respective architects), Landlord and Tenant shall promptly execute and deliver an amendment to this
Lease setting forth the exact number of square feet of Rentable Area included in the Premises and any other conforming modifications to this Section 1.2,
Section 3 and the Renovation Improvements Allowance and Base Building Improvements Allowance (as such terms are defined below) as may be reasonably
requested by either party in connection therewith.




Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, (i) the Premises shall not include the TRP Lobby Space until the TRP Lobby Space Delivery Date (as
defined below), (ii) Landlord’s delivery of that portion of the Premises contained on the third (3rd) floor of the Building (“3rd Floor Space”) is subject to the
relocation of the existing tenant of such space, International Business Machines, Incorporated (“3rd Floor Tenant”) as set forth below in this paragraph, and
(iii) Landlord’s delivery of the TRP Mailroom is subject to the consent of the United States Postal Service (which consent Landlord shall pursue with
commercially reasonable diligence), and if such consent is not obtained prior to the Effective Date the TRP Mailroom shall be eliminated from the Premises
and the parties shall promptly execute and deliver an amendment to this Lease reflecting that the TRP Mailroom shall not be part of the Premises (including
conforming modifications to Section 1.2, Section 3 and the Renovation Improvements Allowance and Base Building Improvements Allowance as may be
reasonably requested by either party in connection therewith). Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the 3rd Floor Tenant to be
relocated from, or to surrender, the 3rd Floor Space prior to the Effective Date; provided, however, that if Landlord is unable, despite its commercially
reasonable efforts, to deliver the 3rd Floor Space to Tenant on the Effective Date, Landlord shall not be in default of this Lease, and in such event the 3rd
Floor Abatement Period (as defined in Section 3.1 below) shall be extended by one (1) day for each day after the Effective Date that the 3rd Floor Space is
delivered to Tenant. Landlord shall deliver the 3rd Floor Space to Tenant in a broom clean condition and otherwise in its then current “AS IS, WHERE IS,
WITH ALL FAULTS” condition promptly after the relocation of, or surrender by, the 3rd Floor Tenant.

1.3 The lease of the Premises includes the right, together with other tenants of the Building and members of the public, to use the common and public areas
of the Building subject to the rules and regulations promulgated by Landlord hereunder, but includes no other rights not specifically set forth herein. The lease
of the Premises also is subject to any covenants, conditions, and restrictions of record listed on Exhibit BB attached hereto as a part hereof.

1.4 For purposes of this Lease, the “Rentable Area” of the Premises has been computed in accordance with the ANSI/BOMA 1996 standard method of
measurement modified to include a 12% common area factor for single-tenant floors (“Method of Measurement”). From and after the date of this Lease,
Landlord agrees that all space in the Building shall be measured and leased, as existing leases in the Building expire, using the Method of Measurement. A
table illustrating the Rentable Area of each of the floors of the Building calculated using the Method of Measurement is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

1.5 Landlord shall deliver the TRP Lobby Space to Tenant in its then “AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition promptly after the date that the
current tenant thereof, Sprint Spectrum, L.P., surrenders such space to Landlord (the “TRP Lobby Delivery Date”), which surrender Landlord anticipates
will occur on or around August 31, 2005). If Sprint fails to vacate the TRP Lobby Space on or before August 31, 2005, Landlord shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to cause Sprint to promptly




vacate the TRP Lobby Space. For the purposes of this Lease, the term “TRP Lobby Rent Commencement Date” means the date that is six (6) months after
the TRP Lobby Delivery Date. Promptly after the TRP Lobby Delivery Date, Landlord and Tenant shall execute and deliver an amendment to this Lease
setting forth the TRP Lobby Rent Commencement Date and amending the annual base rent schedule set forth in Section 3.1 of this Lease to reflect the
addition of the TRP Lobby Space to the Premises.

1.6 (a) In addition to the Premises, subject to the terms and conditions of this Section 1.6, during the Lease Term Tenant shall have the exclusive use of the
following areas of the Building at no additional charge to Tenant:

(i) Two (2) parking spaces located in the Garage as shown on Exhibit D attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Existing Equipment
Space”). As of the date of this Lease, Tenant’s existing HVAC unit, emergency generator, fuel storage tanks, switchgear and related equipment (“Existing
Equipment”) are located in the Existing Equipment Space. In addition to the Existing Equipment Space, Tenant shall have three (3) additional locations in
the Project to be mutually identified and reasonably agreed to by Landlord and Tenant (together with the Existing Equipment Space, collectively the
“Equipment Space”) for the installation, maintenance and operation by Tenant of such additional fuel tanks, switchgear, emergency generators and HVAC
equipment reasonably deemed necessary by Tenant for its use of the Premises and approved by Landlord in accordance with this Section 1.6 (together with
the Existing Equipment and any other improvements and equipment installed by Tenant in the Exclusive Use Space [as defined below] in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this Section 1.6, collectively the “Tenant Equipment”).

(ii) Dedicated riser space at locations in the service core with uninterrupted vertical runs from the basement of the Building through the mechanical
room on the eleventh (11th) floor of the Building (the “Riser Space™), the location of which Riser Space is more particularly shown on Exhibit G attached
hereto and incorporated herein.

(iii) [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]

(iv) Subject to the terms and conditions of subsection (n) below, roof space on the low-rise roof or the high-rise roof of the Building for the
installation, maintenance and repair of Tenant’s communications equipment (“Roof Space”), the location of which shall be mutually agreeable to Landlord
and Tenant in the exercise of each party’s reasonable discretion.

(v) Subject to the rights of other tenants of the Building, such additional vertical and horizontal conduit and piping locations in the low rise portion
of the Building not specifically identified in this Lease but reasonably necessary to support Tenant’s future technology infrastructure in locations to be
identified by Tenant and approved by Landlord in the exercise of the parties’ reasonable discretion (the “Additional Conduit Space”); provided, however,
that Tenant shall have no right to use




or occupy space in the risers, piping and conduits located in the tower portion of the Building unless Tenant is leasing and occupying a portion of the tower
portion of the Building, and in such event Tenant shall only be entitled to use or occupy a proportionate amount of the space in the risers, piping or conduits
located in the tower portion of the Building based on the proportion of Rentable Area leased by Tenant in the tower portion of the Building to the aggregate
Rentable Area of office space in the tower portion of the Building.

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions of this Section 1.6, Tenant hereby accepts, or will accept, as applicable, the Equipment Space, Riser Space, Roof
Space and Additional Conduit Space (collectively the “Exclusive Use Space”) in their “AS IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition. Except as otherwise
expressly set forth in this Lease, Landlord shall have no obligation to install any improvements or make any alterations or modifications to, on or about the
Exclusive Use Space.

(c) This Section 1.6 is for the lease of the Exclusive Use Space only. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, Landlord shall have no obligation
to provide electrical, cleaning or other utilities or services to the Exclusive Use Space. At its sole cost and expense, Tenant (a) shall pay for all lighting, bulbs,
tubes, ballasts, and starters required for the Exclusive Use Space, and (ii) may request Landlord to provide electrical and cleaning services to the Exclusive
Use Space.

(d) If Tenant is in default under this Section 1.6 with respect to all or any portion of the Exclusive Use Space and fails to cure such default within thirty
(30) days after written notice by Landlord to Tenant, Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, cure the default and charge to Tenant as Additional Rent the
costs associated with such cure (and interest shall accrue on such costs at the Interest Rate from the date Landlord incurs such costs) and Tenant hereby
releases Landlord from, and agrees that Tenant shall be liable for, any damage or injury caused, created or arising out of Landlord’s curative action regardless
of whether caused by the act or omission of Landlord or its agents, contractors or employees. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Tenant is in default under this
Section 1.6 twice in any one calendar year and Tenant fails to cure its second default within thirty (30) days after notice from Landlord, at Landlord’s option,
Landlord may cancel Tenant’s rights with respect to such Exclusive Use Space under this Section 1.6 by written notice to Tenant (and such cancellation shall
be effective upon delivery of such written notice). In such event, Landlord shall have all rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity with respect to
such uncured default.

(e) Landlord, its agents, contractors and employees, shall not be liable for loss or damage to any personal property, including, but not limited to,
Tenant’s Equipment, in, on or about the Exclusive Use Space, caused by fire, theft, explosion, strikes, riots, or by any other cause, and Tenant hereby
(i) waives any claim against Landlord in respect thereto, and (ii) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless against all claims for any loss or
damage to any such personal property from any cause whatsoever, regardless of whether caused by the act or omission of Landlord or
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its agents, contractors or employees, except to the extent caused by the negligence of Landlord or its employees, agents or contractors. The relationship
between Landlord and Tenant constitutes an agreement to use the Exclusive Use Space subject to the terms and conditions herein only, and that neither such
relationship nor the storage of any such personal property in the Building, including the Exclusive Use Space, shall constitute a bailment or create the
relationship of bailor and bailee. Tenant bears the sole risk of loss with respect to the any of its property or equipment located in the Exclusive Use Space
from any cause whatsoever, including, but not limited to, damage caused by motor vehicles in the Garage, theft or vandalism, except to the extent caused by
the negligence of Landlord or its employees, agents or contractors.

(f) Unless Landlord or Tenant terminates this Lease in accordance with the terms and conditions of Section 17 as a result of such fire or other casualty,
if all or any portion of the Exclusive Use Space shall be damaged by fire or other casualty that renders it unusable by Tenant, Landlord will cause the
Exclusive Use Space to be repaired and restored with due diligence in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in Section 17 with respect to
Landlord’s obligation to repair and restore of the Building.

(g) If any portion of the Exclusive Use Space is taken by eminent domain proceedings, then on written notice to the other, either party may terminate
this Section 1.6 with respect to such space.

(h) Tenant shall comply with all Legal Requirements (as defined below) governing the use and occupation of the Exclusive Use Space. Tenant shall not
suffer any waste, damage, disfigurement, or injury to the Exclusive Use Space or any other part of the Building, and Tenant shall not use, store or generate in
the Exclusive Use Space any Hazardous Materials (as defined below) except that Tenant may use and store such Hazardous Materials in such quantities that
are necessary for the operation of the Tenant Equipment so long as such use and storage is in strict compliance with all Legal Requirements and the terms and
conditions of Sections 6.3 and 13 of this Lease.

(i) Landlord reserves the following rights, exercisable with commercially reasonable notice to Tenant (which may be oral or by fax), without liability to
Tenant, and Tenant hereby waives any claims of an eviction, constructive or actual, or of disturbance of or interference with Tenant’s use or possession of the
Exclusive Use Space, or for setoff or abatement hereunder, in each case by reason of Landlord’s exercise of these rights:

(i) To make repairs, alterations, additions, or improvements, whether structural or otherwise, in and about all or any part of the Building, or any part
thereof, and for such purposes to enter the Exclusive Use Space and, during the continuation of any such work, to temporarily close doors, entryways, public
spaces, and corridors in the Building and to interrupt or temporarily suspend services and facilities, yet Landlord shall reasonably cooperate with Tenant so as
to avoid to the extent reasonably practical adverse effect on Tenant’s need for the Exclusive Use Space.
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(ii) To enter the Exclusive Use Space in a lawful manner for any lawful purpose.

(iii) Tenant shall perform, observe, and comply with the Rules and Regulations of the Building that form a part of this Lease, to the extent they may
affect the use or occupation of the Exclusive Use Space, as such Rules and Regulations may be amended from time to time by Landlord in accordance with
this Lease.

(iv) Except as expressly provided in this Section 1.6, Tenant shall make no alterations, modifications or improvements to the Exclusive Use Space
without Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.

(v) The subordination of this Section 1.6 and rights of Tenant granted herein to the lien, operation and effect of any mortgages, deeds of trust, or
ground leases now or hereafter placed against the Building shall be governed by the provisions of Section 21 (Subordination). Tenant shall execute and
deliver a certificate in respect to this Section 1.6 similar to the certificates required by Section 25.4 of this Lease at any time any certificate under such section
is required.

(j) Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, install the Tenant Equipment in accordance with plans and specifications approved by Landlord (in the
exercise of its reasonable discretion). The installation of the Tenant Equipment shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Lease, including, but not limited
to, Section 9 (Alterations). Without limiting the foregoing, Landlord shall have the right to review and approve all plans for the installation of any fuel tanks
or generator equipment in the Equipment Space, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. The Tenant Equipment shall remain in the
Exclusive Use Space on the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, except (i) if Landlord requests its removal in accordance with Section 9.3 of this
Lease, or (ii) as otherwise expressly set forth in Section 9.4(d) of this Lease. Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the Lease Term, Tenant shall retain all
right, title, and interest in and to the Tenant Equipment and the product contained therein, and Landlord hereby disclaims any right, title, or interest in and to
the Tenant Equipment during the Lease Term. Tenant shall deliver the Equipment Space to Landlord on the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease in
the condition required by Section 9 (Tenant Alterations) of this Lease. Without limiting Tenant’s other obligations under this Lease, Tenant shall, at its sole
cost and expense, install, maintain, and repair the Tenant Equipment in a good and workmanlike manner and keep such equipment in good order and
operating condition. Tenant shall appropriately mark or tag all Tenant Equipment, including, but not limited to, Tenant’s cabling, as reasonably required by
Landlord to identify the owner or user thereof. If any Tenant Equipment is installed without Landlord’s prior written approval or without such appropriate
identification, and Tenant fails to remove it within thirty (30) days after written notice from Landlord to do so, then Landlord shall have the right to remove
and correct such Tenant Equipment and restore the Equipment Space to its condition immediately prior thereto, and Tenant shall be
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liable for all expenses incurred by Landlord in connection therewith. Tenant shall coordinate any access to the Equipment Space with Landlord’s property
manager for the Building.

(k) Tenant hereby acknowledges and agrees that (i) Tenant assumes all liabilities and risks in connection with the quality of the air that is introduced or
delivered to the Premises by all or any part of the Tenant Equipment, (ii) Landlord shall have no responsibility or liability to Tenant for the quality of the air
introduced or delivered to the Premises by all or any part of the Tenant Equipment and Tenant hereby releases and discharges Landlord from all such
responsibility and liability and any claims relating thereto, and (iii) Landlord has made no representations or warranties as to the sufficiency or adequacy of
the location of the Exclusive Use Space for the installation, operation or use of the Tenant Equipment therein or as to the quality of the air that can be
introduced or delivered to the Premises by all or any part of the Tenant Equipment. Tenant, at its sole cost and expense, shall immediately take all necessary
actions to prevent the Tenant Equipment from causing any adverse effects to the air quality of the Building. Tenant shall not test any generators installed by
Tenant in the Exclusive Use Space except at times expressly authorized by Landlord in writing.

(1) The provisions of Sections 13 (Insurance) and 15 (Liability of Landlord) shall apply with full force and effect to the lease by Tenant of the Exclusive
Use Space, to the end and effect that the Exclusive Use Space be considered an integral part of the Premises for purposes of the provisions of Sections 13
(Insurance) and 15 (Liability of Landlord). Tenant agrees that, in addition to any indemnification provided to Landlord in this Lease, Tenant shall indemnify
and shall hold Landlord, Boston Properties Limited Partnership, Boston Properties, Inc., Landlord’s lender, Landlord’s managing agent, and their employees,
shareholders, partners, officers and directors, harmless from and against all costs, damages, claims, liabilities and expenses (including attorneys’ fees and any
costs of litigation) suffered by or claimed against Landlord, directly or indirectly, based on, arising out of or resulting from Tenant’s use of the Equipment
Space or Tenant Equipment. Tenant shall be liable to Landlord for any actual damages suffered by Landlord or any other tenant or occupant of the Building
for any cessation or shortages of electrical power or any other systems failure arising from Tenant’s use of the Equipment Space or Tenant Equipment.

(m) Whenever either party exercises a right granted in this Section 1.6 to terminate or cancel this Section 1.6, or this Section 1.6 is terminated or
expires in accordance with its terms, such cancellation, termination, or expiration shall in no way affect the validity and status of the balance of this Lease,
which balance shall remain in full force and effect without change.

(n) Subject to the satisfaction, in Landlord’s reasonable judgment, of all of the conditions set forth in this subsection (n), Tenant may, at its sole cost and
expense, install and once installed shall maintain on the roof of the Building in the Rooftop Space for use in connection with Tenant’s business in the
Premises, reasonably appropriate rooftop equipment (the “Rooftop Equipment”). Notwithstanding anything in this Section 1.6 to the contrary, Tenant shall
not be permitted to install the Rooftop Equipment unless (i) the Rooftop Equipment conforms to the specifications and
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requirements set forth in drawings and specifications prepared at Tenant’s expense by a licensed professional reasonably approved by Landlord (the “Rooftop
Equipment Drawings”), which Rooftop Equipment Drawings shall be subject to the prior written approval of Landlord (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed), (ii) Landlord approves, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed, the size,
capacity, power, location, and proposed placement of the Rooftop Equipment, and (iii) Tenant obtains and provides copies to Landlord of all necessary
governmental permits and approvals, including, but not limited to, special exception permits, if applicable, for the installation of the Rooftop Equipment in
the Rooftop Space. Tenant shall, if directed by Landlord, cause the Rooftop Equipment to be painted in a non-metallic paint selected by Landlord at Tenant’s
cost. No promotional or advertising matter or signage shall be attached to, painted, or displayed on the Rooftop Space or the Rooftop Equipment, other than
standard logos or identifications placed on such equipment in a modest and customary manner that is not visible from the ground. If the installation of the
Rooftop Equipment would penetrate the roof of the Building, then Tenant shall not be permitted to install the Rooftop Equipment unless Tenant warrants and
guaranties the roof to the extent that Landlord will lose or forfeit its existing roof warranty or guaranty and unless Landlord approves, in writing, any such
adverse effect to the Building’s structure or service systems or any such structural alteration, which approval may be granted or withheld by Landlord in its
sole and absolute subjective discretion. The Rooftop Equipment shall be installed by a contractor reasonably acceptable to both Landlord and Tenant and
thereafter shall be properly maintained by Tenant, all at Tenant’s sole expense. At the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term, the Rooftop
Equipment shall be removed from the roof of the Building at Tenant’s sole cost and expense and the roof of the Building shall be returned to the condition it
was in prior to the installation of the Rooftop Equipment. Tenant shall pay all subscription fees, usage charges, and hook-up and disconnection fees associated
with Tenant’s use of the Rooftop Equipment and Landlord shall have no liability therefor. All of the provisions of the Lease, including, without limitation, the
insurance, maintenance, repair, release, and indemnification provisions set forth in this Lease shall apply and be applicable to Tenant’s installation, operation,
maintenance, replacement and removal of the Rooftop Equipment.

Landlord shall not grant tenants who execute leases for space in the Building after the date that this Lease is fully executed and delivered the right to install
antennas, dishes, or other equipment on the roof of the Building that would, after consultation with Tenant, materially and adversely interfere with the
Rooftop Equipment. Tenant recognizes, however, that there are other tenants in the Building who have rights to install antennas, dishes, and other equipment
on the roof of the Building. Tenant agrees that until such time as the Rooftop Equipment Drawings are finalized that other tenants in the Building may
exercise their rights to install antennas, dishes, and other equipment on the roof of the Building and that the location of the Rooftop Equipment is subject to
the actions of such other tenants in the exercise of their rights. Tenant’s use of the roof of the Building is nonexclusive and that Landlord and other tenants in
the Building shall have access to the roof of the Building at all times. Landlord retains the right to grant licenses and other use and occupancy rights to other
tenants in the Building and to other third
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parties in Landlord’s sole and absolute subjective discretion. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, nothing in this subsection (n) shall restrict
Landlord’s rights to allow other tenants in the Building to install, use, maintain, repair, operate, repair, replace or remove any antenna, dish, or other
equipment on or from the roof of the Building.

During the Building Hours of Operation (as defined below), except in case of a bona fide emergency such as malfunction, and provided Tenant uses
reasonable efforts to notify Landlord (such as by fax or orally), Tenant and its agents and representatives shall be permitted use of and access to the roof of the
Building for purposes of examination, maintenance, replacement and repair of the Rooftop Equipment. Tenant shall be solely responsible for the adequacy
and safety of the installation and operation of the Rooftop Equipment on the roof of the Building .

If Landlord contemplates repairs to the roof of the Building that (i) require the temporary removal or relocation of the Rooftop Equipment or (ii) may
result in an interruption in Tenant’s telecommunications services, Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to notify Tenant promptly on Landlord’s decision to
schedule such work to allow Tenant to make other arrangements for such services, except in the event of an emergency, in which case Landlord shall give
Tenant reasonable prior written or oral notice of such work. If such temporary removal or relocation of the Rooftop Equipment is necessary, Landlord shall
use its reasonable efforts to provide alternate space to Tenant that is reasonably acceptable to Tenant for temporary Rooftop Equipment. All third party, actual
costs of removal, relocation, and re-installation shall be borne by Landlord, as well as any repairs to the roof of the Building and any equipment, machinery or
other antennas, dishes, or other items that are physically damaged by Landlord in connection with such removal, relocation, and re-installation of the Rooftop
Equipment. Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant for any cessation or interruption of Tenant’s telecommunications services, except to the extent caused by
the negligence of Landlord or its employees, agents or contractors; provided, however, that in no event shall Landlord have any liability to Tenant for any
claims based on the interruption of or loss to Tenant’s business or for any indirect losses or any consequential damages whatsoever.

Except as shown on the Rooftop Equipment Drawings, Tenant shall not make any modification to the design, structure, or systems of the Building required
in connection with the installation of the Rooftop Equipment without Landlord’s prior written approval of such modification and the plans therefor, which
approval may be granted, conditioned, or withheld by Landlord in its sole but reasonable discretion.

Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, secure all necessary permits and approvals from all applicable governmental authorities for the size, placement,
operation and installation of the Rooftop Equipment. If Tenant is unable to obtain the necessary approvals and permits from any applicable governmental
authority for the Rooftop Equipment, Tenant shall have no remedy, claim, cause of action, or recourse against Landlord, nor shall such failure or inability to
obtain any necessary permits or approvals grant Tenant the right to terminate this Lease. Landlord shall cooperate with Tenant in securing all necessary
permits and approvals for the Rooftop Equipment; provided,
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however, that Landlord shall not be obligated to spend any monies in connection with obtaining (or seeking to obtain) such permits and approvals.

Landlord makes no representations or warranties concurring the suitability of the roof of the Building for the installation operation, maintenance, repair
and replacement of the Rooftop Equipment, Tenant has had full opportunity to inspect the roof of the Building with professional consultants of its own
choosing, and Tenant acknowledges that it has satisfied itself concerning such matters. Without limiting any other obligations of Tenant set forth in the Lease,
Tenant shall, at its sole cost and expense, install, maintain, repair and replace the Rooftop Equipment and keep such equipment in good order and operating
condition.

2. THE TERM.

2.1 The term of this Lease (the “Lease Term”) shall be for twelve (12) years and eight (8) months, commencing on the Effective Date and ending on
June 30, 2017, unless the Lease Term shall be terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions hereof or extended pursuant to the terms and conditions of
Rider No. 1 attached hereto as part hereof. The term “Lease Term” shall include any and all renewals and extensions of the term of this Lease.

2.2 For purposes of this Lease, the term “Lease Year” shall mean a period of twelve (12) consecutive calendar months, commencing on the Effective Date,
and each successive twelve (12) month period.

3. BASE RENT.

3.1 Commencing on the Effective Date, during each Lease Year of the Lease Term Tenant shall pay to Landlord as annual base rent for the Premises,
without set off, deduction or demand, the amounts set forth in the table below in equal monthly installments, due and payable in advance on the first day of
each month during the applicable Lease Year:
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Lease Year Annual Base Rent (/ sq. ft.)T Monthly Installment
1 $ 7,026,763.20 ($18.80) $ 585,563.60
2 $ 7,202,432.28 ($19.27) $ 600,202.69
3 $ 7,381,839.00 ($19.75) $ 615,153.25
4 $ 7,564,983.36 ($20.24) $ 630,415.28
5 $ 7,755,603.00 ($20.75) $ 646,300.25
6 $ 7,949,960.28 ($21.27) $ 662,496.69
7 $ 8,148,055.20 ($21.80) $ 679,004.60
8 $ 8,353,625.40 ($22.35) $ 696,135.45
9 $ 8,562,933.24 ($22.91) $ 713,577.77
10 $ 8,775,978.72 ($23.48) $ 731,331.56
11 $ 8,996,499.48 ($24.07) $ 749,708.29
12 $ 9,220,757.88 ($24.67) $ 768,396.49
13 Tt $ 9,452,491.56 ($25.29) $ 787,707.63

T Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary:

(i) Tenant’s annual base rent payable to Landlord for the 3rd Floor Space shall abate (the “Third Floor Rent Abatement”) for the period from the
Effective Date through October 31, 2006 (the “Third Floor Abatement Period”). Subject to Section 1.2, the amount of the Third Floor Rent Abatement
shall be an amount equal to the product of (x) the Rentable Area of the 3rd Floor Space (i.e., 41,439 sq. ft.) and (y) the then applicable rate of annual base
rent on a square foot basis (e.g., for Lease Year 1, $18.80). The Third Floor Rent Abatement shall be applied on a monthly basis such that during the
Third Floor Abatement Period each monthly installment of annual base rent shall be reduced by one-twelfth of the amount of the Third Floor Rent
Abatement applicable to the then current Lease Year.

(ii) Tenant’s annual base rent payable to Landlord for a 26,427 square feet of Rentable Area portion of the Tenant’s Premises located on the 5th Floor
of the Building (the “5th Floor Space”) shall abate (the “Fifth Floor Rent Abatement”) for the period from the Effective Date through October 31,
2006, to the end and effect that: (A) in Lease Year 1 an amount equal to $496,827.60 shall be abated (and such abatement shall be applied on a monthly
basis such that each monthly installment of annual base rent shall be reduced by $41,402.30), and (B) in Lease Year 2 an amount equal to $509,248.29
shall be abated (and such abatement shall be applied on a monthly basis such that each monthly installment of annual base rent shall be reduced by
$42,437.36).

TT Lease Year 13 is a partial Lease Year consisting of 8 months, except that if this Lease is properly renewed, Lease Year 13 shall be a full Lease Year;
provided, however, that the annual base rent payable with respect to that portion of Lease Year 13 occurring during the first renewal term shall be determined
in accordance with Rider No. 1 to this Lease.

3.3 All rent shall be paid to Landlord in legal tender of the United States at East Pratt Street Associates Limited Partnership, c/o Boston Properties, Inc.,
P.O. Box 3557, Boston, Massachusetts 02441-3557, or to such other party or to such other address as Landlord may designate from time to time by written
notice to Tenant. If Landlord shall at any time accept rent after it shall become due and payable, such
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acceptance shall not excuse a delay on subsequent occasions, or constitute or be construed as a waiver of any of Landlord’s rights hereunder.
4. ADDITIONAL RENT.

4.1 Operating Expenses.

(a) Commencing on the Effective Date and continuing for the remainder of the 2004 calendar year, and then continuing with each calendar year
thereafter during the Lease Term, Tenant shall pay Landlord, as additional rent for the Premises, Tenant’s proportionate share of the Operating Expenses (as
defined below) incurred by Landlord in connection with the management and operation of the Building during any calendar year falling entirely or partly
within the Lease Term. For purposes of this Section 4, (i) Tenant’s proportionate share of the Operating Expenses, excluding Real Estate Taxes, shall be that
percentage that is equal to a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of square feet of Rentable Area in the Premises, from time to time, and the
denominator of which is the total number of square feet of Rentable Area in the Building, excluding the number of square feet devoted to parking in the
Garage and retail space and storage space in the Building, and (ii) Tenant’s proportionate share of that portion of the Operating Expenses consisting solely of
Real Estate Taxes shall be that percentage that is equal to a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of square feet of Rentable Area in the Premises and
the denominator of which is the total number of square feet of Rentable Area in the Building, including the number of square feet devoted to retail space and
storage space in the Building. The preceding sentences notwithstanding, Tenant’s proportionate share shall proportionately increase if Tenant expands the
Premises and shall proportionally decrease if Tenant contracts the Premises as provided in this Lease; however, it is understood that the number comprising
the denominator to determine Tenant’s proportionate share of Operating Expenses is subject to change because of changes in the use or configuration of space
in the Project or the addition of space to the Project or the deletion of space from the Project or, with respect to Operating Expenses other than Real Estate
Taxes, with respect to the amount of space leased by tenants who pay by separate meter for their electrical or separately pay for janitorial, cleaning, or other
utilities or services so that Tenant actually pays its fair share of Operating Expenses; provided, however, that any such change in Rentable Area shall be
determined in accordance with the standard set forth in Section 1.4 of this Lease. By execution of this Lease, Tenant accepts the basic obligation to pay its
proportionate share of Operating Expenses incurred by Landlord. The specific obligations of Tenant for such Operating Expenses shall be governed by the
remaining provisions of this Section 4. Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, (i) during the Third Floor Abatement Period with respect to the
3rd Floor Space and (ii) from the Effective Date through October 31, 2006 for 26,427 square feet of Rentable Area of the 5th Floor Space, Tenant’s obligation
on account of Operating Expenses, including Real Estate Taxes, with respect to the 3rd Floor Space and 26,427 square feet of Rentable Area of the 5th Floor
Space shall be abated (i.e., Tenant’s proportionate share of Operating Expense, including Real Estate Taxes, shall be calculated without regard to Tenant’s
lease of the 3rd Floor Space and such portion of the 5th Floor Space during such applicable time periods).
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(b) The Operating Expenses shall include the costs and expenses described in subsection (1) below, but shall not include the costs and expenses
described in subsection (2) below:

(1) Included costs and expenses:

(i) Gas, water, sewer, electricity and other utility charges (including surcharges) of every type and nature relating to such utilities consumed in the
Premises.

(ii) Insurance premiums paid by Landlord.

(iii) Personnel costs of the Building, including, but not limited to, salaries, wages, fringe benefits and other direct and indirect costs of engineers,
superintendents, watchmen, concierge, porters, and any other personnel related to the management, maintenance, repair and operation of the Building.

(iv) Costs of service and maintenance contracts, including, but not limited to, chillers, boilers, controls, elevators, mail chute, windows, access
systems, the SMS (as defined below), landscaping and snow and ice removal.

(v) Except to the extent specifically excluded by subsection (2) below, all other maintenance, supply, and repair expenses incurred in connection
with the Building that are deductible by Landlord in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

(vi) Depreciation (on a straight-line basis) and amortization (over the Approved Period [as defined below]), with interest at Landlord’s cost of
financing, or, if the improvement is not financed, at the prime rate reported in The Wall Street Journal on the date of such expenditure, of capital expenditures
made by Landlord (A) to reduce energy or other utility costs, or (B) to comply with applicable laws, rules, regulations (including zoning regulations and
related requirements), requirements, statutes, ordinances, codes, by-laws, orders and court decisions of the jurisdiction in which the Project is located or the
federal government (collectively, the “Legal Requirements”) enacted after the Effective Date (except that Operating Expenses shall include such
depreciation and interest with respect to improvements made to comply with Legal Requirements enacted prior to the Effective Date to the extent such
depreciation and interest was included within Operating Expenses (as defined in the Restated Lease) under the Restated Lease). For the purposes of this
Lease, “Approved Period” means the time period equal to the longest allowable useful life of the improvement permitted under generally accepted
accounting principles, except that with respect to an improvement made for the purpose of reducing energy or other utility costs, Landlord may reduce such
time period to the number of years that it will take to fully amortize the cost of the capital expenditure if the yearly amortization amount (including
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interest as aforesaid) is equal to the projected annual savings as reasonably estimated by Landlord.

(vii) The reasonable costs of any additional services not provided to the Building at the Lease Commencement Date but thereafter provided by
Landlord in the prudent management of the Building.

(viii) Real Estate Taxes (as defined below).
(ix) Common Area Electricity Charges (as defined below).
(x) Common Area Janitorial Charges (as defined below).

(xi) Management fees in an amount equal to three percent (3%) of the gross revenues received by Landlord for the office space and retail space in
the Building.

(xii) Costs of maintaining on-site management or engineering offices for the Building, including, without limitation, the costs of telephone
services, office equipment, including upgrades and replacements thereof, and office supplies, but excluding any cost for imputed rent or the initial furnishing
of such offices.

(xiii) Accounting expenses reasonably incurred by Landlord in calculating Operating Expenses and legal fees and expenses reasonably incurred
by Landlord in connection with proceedings undertaken to reduce Operating Expenses.

(xiv) The costs and expenses attributable to the operation, management, maintenance and repair of the 12th floor (amenities floor) servicing the
Building, including, but not limited to, a commercially reasonable, market rent reasonably determined by Landlord to be attributable to such floor. As of the
Effective Date, the parties agree that a commercially reasonable market rent attributable to the 12th floor (amenities floor), on an annual, per square foot basis,
is Twenty-Two Dollars ($22.00) per square foot as a stated gross rent (exclusive of Landlord’s costs of insuring the Building and the 12th floor (amenities
floor), which costs shall be passed through to Tenant in accordance with this subsection (xiv) as a part of the costs and expenses attributable to the operation,
management, maintenance and repair of the 12th floor (amenities floor).

The parties agree that such attributed rent shall increase annually by two and one-half percent (2.5%) on each anniversary of the Effective Date.
(xv) Any other reasonable costs and expenses incurred by or on behalf of Landlord in maintaining or operating the Building.
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(2) Excluded costs and expenses:
(i) Principal or interest payments on and any other charges paid by Landlord for any mortgages, deeds of trust, or other financing encumbrances.

(ii) Rental payments (including percentage rent and any increases in base rent) made under any ground lease, except to the extent such rental
payments represent payment of Real Estate Taxes (as defined below).

(iii) Leasing commissions payable by Landlord and advertising, marketing and promotional expenditures associated with marketing vacant space
or to be vacant space in the Building.

(iv) [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]
(v) Depreciation and amortization of capital improvements, except to the extent included in subsection (1)(vi) above.

(vi) The costs of special services, tenant improvements (including architectural and engineering costs) and concessions, repairs, maintenance
items or utilities separately chargeable to, or specifically provided for, individual tenants of the Building, including, without limitation, (A) the cost of
preparing any space in the Building for occupancy by any tenant or for altering, renovating, repainting, decorating, planning and designing spaces for any
tenant in the Building in connection with the renewal of its lease or costs of preparing or renovating any vacant space for lease in the Building (including
permit, license and inspection fees) and (B) costs to operate, manage, maintain and repair the 12th floor (amenities floor) which are specifically reimbursed by
users of the 12th floor (amenities floor).

(vii) Insurance premiums in excess of those for comparable first class office buildings in the Central Business District of Baltimore City,
Maryland, provided, however, that reasonable premiums for any insurance coverage that is required by any institutional lender that is the beneficiary of a
mortgage (as defined below) encumbering the Project shall not be excluded by this subsection (2)(vii); provided, however, that any premiums payable by
Landlord for terrorism insurance, if required by an institutional lender, shall be deemed reasonable under this subsection 2(vii).

(viii) Wages, salaries or other compensation of any offsite employees of Landlord or of Landlord’s manager above the level of regional property
manager (and excluding the regional manager if Landlord and its Affiliates [as defined in Section 28.2 below] do not collectively own, in the aggregate, Ten
Million (10,000,000) square feet or more of office space in the continental United States of America); provided, however, that Operating Expenses shall
include Landlord’s
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reasonable allocation (based on time spent in connection with the Building) of wages, salaries and other compensation paid to such offsite employees who are
assigned part-time to the operation, management, maintenance or repair of the Building in no event, however, shall Landlord allocate more than 100% of the
wages, salaries and other compensation for any single employee among the properties being serviced by such employee).

(ix) Wages, salaries or other compensation to any officers of Landlord.
(x) Expenditures that are reimbursed or compensated by insurance or warranties.

(xi) Late charges imposed on delinquent payments of Real Estate Taxes (except to the extent caused by Tenant’s failure to pay timely to Landlord
Tenant’s proportionate share of Real Estate Taxes as set forth below).

(xii) Landlord’s income taxes.

(xiii) Costs associated with extending the maximum life of capital equipment, structural repairs or of correcting defects in initial design or
construction.

(xiv) Costs associated with the operation of the business of the partnership or entity that constitutes Landlord as the same are distinguished from
the cost of the operation, management, maintenance or repair of the Building.

(xv) Cost and expenses incurred in detoxification or other clean-up of the Building or Land legally required as the result of the presence or effects
of any Hazardous Materials on or about the Building or Land (excluding testing and other reasonable and customary operating expenses such as periodic
radon testing, air sampling and mold investigation).

(xvi) Subject to the terms and conditions of Section 14.1(b)(i), effective as of the Janitorial Switchover Date (as defined in Section 14.1(b)(i)),
costs for providing janitorial and char services to the Project (other than those for Common Area Janitorial Charges (as defined below)).

(c) As used above, the term “Real Estate Taxes” shall mean (i) all real estate taxes, including, but not limited to, any general and special
assessments that are imposed on Landlord or assessed against all or any portion of the Project; (ii) any other present for future taxes or governmental charges
that are imposed on Landlord or assessed against all or any portion of the Project, including, but not limited to, any tax levied on or measured by the rents
payable by tenants of the Building, which are in the nature of, or in substitution for, real estate taxes; (iii) all taxes that are imposed on Landlord, and that are
assessed against the value of any improvements to the Premises made by Tenant or any machinery, equipment, fixtures, or other personal property of
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Tenant used therein, (iv) any rental or other charges or fees imposed upon Landlord in connection with the lease or use of any vault space(s); and (v) expenses
(including reasonably attorneys’ fees) incurred in reviewing, protesting, negotiating or seeking (whether formally or informally) a reduction or abatement of
Real Estate Taxes. Real Estate Taxes shall not include any income taxes, excess profits taxes, excise taxes, franchise taxes, estate taxes, succession taxes and
transfer taxes, except to the extent any of such taxes are in the nature of or are in substitution for or recharacterization or replacement of Real Estate Taxes.

(d) As used above, the term “Common Area Electricity Charges” shall consist of the actual charges for electrical power consumed in the operation
of the public and common areas of the Building, as determined by Landlord in its reasonable discretion.

(e) As used above, the term “Commeon Area Janitorial Charges” shall mean the charges for janitorial, char and cleaning services and supplies
furnished for all public and common areas in the Building.

4.2 If the average occupancy rate for the Building shall be less than one hundred percent (100%) for any calendar year, or partial calendar year, during the
Lease Term, then Operating Expenses which fluctuate in relation to the occupied portion of the Building (“Variable Operating Expenses”) for the relevant
calendar year, or partial calendar year, shall be increased by an amount equal to those Variable Operating Expenses that would have been incurred with
respect to such calendar year, or partial calendar year, as reasonably determined by Landlord, if the Building had been one hundred percent (100%) occupied
during such calendar year or partial calendar year. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall Landlord pass through to Tenant any Operating Expenses
in excess of the actual amount of the Operating Expenses incurred by Landlord. “Variable Operating Expenses” shall include, but shall not be limited to
(except as set forth in the following sentence), janitorial, utility and personnel costs, but shall exclude Real Estate Taxes and other expenses not related to
tenant occupancy of the Building. Notwithstanding anything in the previous sentence to the contrary, during the period between November 1, 2004 and
October 31, 2007, “Variable Operating Expenses” shall only mean janitorial, utility and personnel costs.

4.3 Prior to the Effective Date for the period from the Effective Date through December 31, 2004, and at the beginning of calendar year 2005 and each
calendar year thereafter during the Lease Term, Landlord shall submit to Tenant a statement setting forth Landlord’s reasonable estimate of the amount of the
Operating Expenses (other than Real Estate Taxes) that are anticipated to be incurred during such calendar year and the computation of Tenant’s proportionate
share thereof. Except as otherwise provided herein, Tenant shall pay to Landlord on the first day of each month following receipt of such statement during
such calendar year an amount equal to Tenant’s proportionate share of the Operating Expenses (other than Real Estate Taxes which shall be payable by Tenant
pursuant to Section 4.4 below) multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is 1, and the denominator of which is the number of months during such
calendar year that
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fall within the Lease Term and follow the date of the foregoing statement. By the later of: (x) May 1 or (y) the last business day of the week in which May 1
occurs, of each calendar year falling entirely or partly within the Lease Term, Landlord shall submit to Tenant: (i) a statement showing the actual amount of
Operating Expenses paid or incurred by Landlord during the immediately preceding calendar year, and (ii) the aggregate amount of the estimated payments
made by Tenant on account thereof. If the aggregate amount of such estimated payments exceeds Tenant’s actual liability for such expenses, Tenant shall
deduct the net overpayment from its next estimated payment or payments on account of Operating Expenses for the then current year, or, in the case of the
reconciliation for the calendar year in which the Lease Term expires, Landlord shall pay Tenant the net overpayment (after deducting therefrom any amounts
then due from Tenant to Landlord) promptly after determining the amount of such overpayment. If Tenant’s actual liability for such expenses exceeds the
estimated payments made by Tenant on account thereof, then Tenant shall promptly pay to Landlord the total amount of such deficiency as additional rent due
hereunder.

4.4 Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Tenant shall pay, as additional rent, its proportionate share of Real Estate Taxes (based on the formula
set forth in Section 4.1 above) on a schedule that matches Landlord’s payments of Real Estate Taxes to the taxing authority(ies). Promptly upon Landlord’s
receipt of a bill for Real Estate Taxes, Landlord shall forward a copy of the bill along with a statement setting forth a calculation of Tenant’s proportionate
share thereof. No later than thirty (30) days after receipt of such bill, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as additional rent, an amount equal to Tenant’s
proportionate share of the Real Estate Taxes as evidenced by such bill. Landlord shall have the right, for a period of twenty-four (24) months after the
rendering of any statements (or for a longer period, if reasonably required to ascertain the facts as to any change in Real Estate Taxes), to send corrected
statements to Tenant, and any rent adjustments required thereby shall be made within thirty (30) days thereafter. This provision shall survive the expiration or
earlier termination of the Lease Term.

Landlord shall, in its commercially reasonable discretion, diligently and regularly employ legal counsel to contest or appeal assessments of Real Estate
Taxes. Tenant’s proportionate share of any net refunds achieved by Landlord (after deducting, to the extent not included in Operating Expenses, all of
Landlord’s costs and expenses incurred in connection with achieving such refund, including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees) will be credited to Tenant in
cash within thirty (30) days after receipt of a refund by Landlord. Landlord’s obligation to credit Tenant such refund shall survive the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease.

4.5 If the Lease Term commences or expires on a day other than the first day or the last day of a calendar year, the Operating Expenses to be paid by
Tenant for such calendar year shall be apportioned by multiplying the amount of Tenant’s proportionate share thereof for the full calendar year by a fraction,
the numerator of which is the number of days during such calendar year falling within the Lease Term, and the denominator of which is 365.
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4.6 All payments required to be made by Tenant pursuant to this Section 4 shall be paid to Landlord, without setoff or deduction, in the same manner as
base rent is payable pursuant to Section 3 hereof.

4.7 The obligation imposed on Tenant by Section 4.3 hereof to pay for its proportionate share of Operating Expenses described in Section 4.1 hereof for
the last calendar year falling entirely or partly within the Lease Term shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term. Similarly,
Landlord’s obligation to refund to Tenant the excess, if any, of the amount of Tenant’s estimated payments on account of such Operating Expenses for such
last calendar year over Tenant’s actual liability therefor shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term.

4.8 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, for purposes of determining Tenant’s proportionate share of the Operating Expenses
during the Lease Term, Operating Expenses for any calendar year shall not include maintenance and repair costs for the line items shown on Exhibit W
attached hereto (the “Capped Costs”) in excess of the product of $0.40 multiplied by the number of square feet of Rentable Area in the Premises during such
calendar year (as escalated pursuant to the penultimate sentence of this Section 4.8, the “Annual Cap Amount”). If in any calendar year the Capped Costs
are more than the Annual Cap Amount applicable to such year, any such overage shall be carried forward to later calendar years allowing Landlord to charge
such overage in later years; provided, however, that in no event shall Tenant be liable in any year for any Capped Costs (including any overage amounts from
previous years) that exceed the applicable Annual Cap Amount. However, if in any calendar year the Capped Costs are less than the Annual Cap Amount
applicable to such year, any such shortage shall be carried forward to later calendar years allowing Landlord to credit such shortage against Capped Costs in
later years. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything to the contrary contained in the Lease, Tenant shall not be liable for any Capped Costs that exceed, in
the aggregate, the sum of (i) $6.845, multiplied by 376,964 (i.e., the amount of Rentable Area in the Premises initially leased by Tenant), plus (ii) Capped
Costs attributable to any expansion space leased by Tenant (together, the “Aggregate Cap Amount”), during the entire Lease Term. The Aggregate Cap
Amount shall be appropriately adjusted in Landlord’s and Tenant’s reasonable judgment to reflect that additional premises (e.g., any First Offer Space, as
defined in Rider No. 1 of this Lease) may be leased by Tenant pursuant to the terms of this Lease, the terms of which shall commence after the Effective Date.
Commencing on the first (1st) day of the second (2nd) Lease Year, and on the first day of each Lease Year thereafter during the Lease Term, the applicable
Annual Cap Amount shall be increased by an amount equal to five percent (5%) of the applicable Annual Cap Amount in effect immediately preceding such
date. Attached hereto as Exhibit L is an example showing the implementation of the provisions of this Section 4.8.

4.9 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease, if the aggregate Controllable Operating Expenses (as defined below) in any calendar
year commencing in 2005 increase by more than six percent (6%), on a cumulative and compounding basis, over the Controllable Operating Expenses
payable during the
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preceding calendar year, then for purposes of determining Tenant’s proportionate share of Operating Expenses for each calendar during the Lease Term, the
amount by which the Controllable Operating Expenses increase during each calendar year shall not exceed in any year an amount that such Controllable
Operating Expenses would have been if such Controllable Operating Expenses had increased by six percent (6%) during each calendar year of the Lease Term
(“Controllable Cap”). If in any calendar year the increase in Controllable Operating Expenses over the Controllable Operating Expenses for the immediately
preceding calendar year is less than or greater than the Controllable Cap for such calendar year, any such shortfall or excess shall be carried forward to later
calendar years, thereby allowing Landlord to raise the Controllable Cap for such years or apply the excess toward the Controllable Cap for such years, as the
case may be (provided that the average increase does not exceed six percent (6%) compounding per year). Tenant’s proportionate share of Operating
Expenses shall be calculated after the determination of increases in Controllable Operating Expenses has been made pursuant to this Section 4.9 (subject to
Tenant’s obligation to make estimated payments in accordance with Section 4.3 above). For the purposes of this Lease, the term “Controllable Operating
Expenses” shall mean those Operating Expenses which are not: (i) Capped Costs, (ii) Real Estate Taxes, (ii) insurance costs, (iv) costs for utilities,

(v) janitorial or char services costs, (vi) security costs, (vii) personnel costs or (viii) costs for snow removal.

4.10 If Tenant desires to review Landlord’s determination of the amounts paid by Tenant to Landlord on account of Operating Expenses during any
calendar year falling within the Lease Term, then, (a) a regular employee of Tenant or (b) an independent, certified public accountant designated by Tenant,
which shall be hired by Tenant on a non-contingency basis), shall have the right, during regular business hours and after providing ten (10) business days
advance written notice to Landlord, to inspect and audit Landlord’s books and records relating to such charges. The audit may cover the prior three (3) years
of Operating Expense charges. Landlord’s records relating to maintenance associated with capital equipment shall not be limited by time. Beginning in 2004,
Landlord shall collect and have available information that will enable Tenant to verify and measure costs associated with HVAC equipment, electrical
equipment, structural maintenance and other items that would be considered capital in nature. If Landlord agrees that such audit shows that the amounts paid
by Tenant to Landlord on account of such charges exceeded the amounts to which Landlord was entitled hereunder, or that Tenant is entitled to a credit with
respect to any such charges, Landlord shall promptly refund to Tenant the amount of such excess or the amount of such credit, as the case may be. Similarly,
if it is determined that the amounts paid by Tenant to Landlord on account of Operating Expenses were less than the amounts to which Landlord was entitled
hereunder, then Tenant shall promptly pay to Landlord, as additional rent hereunder, the amount of such deficiency. Tenant shall (and shall cause its agents to)
keep the results of such audit strictly confidential. All costs and expenses of any such audit shall be paid by Tenant, except that if such audit shows that the
aggregate amount of Operating Expenses was overstated by Landlord by more than three percent (3%), Landlord shall reimburse Tenant for the reasonable
out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by Tenant in such audit.
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5. INTENTIONALLY DELETED]
6. USE OF PREMISES.

6.1 With respect to (a) that portion of the Premises not including the Investor Center Space, the Premises shall be used and occupied by Tenant solely as
office space and for no other use or purpose, and (b) the Investor Center Space, the Premises shall be used and occupied by Tenant solely as an investor center
and for no other use or purpose. Tenant shall not use or occupy the Premises for any unlawful purpose or in any manner that will constitute waste, nuisance or
unreasonable annoyance to Landlord or other tenants of the Building. Tenant shall comply with all present and future Legal Requirements concerning the use,
occupancy, and condition of the Premises and all machinery, equipment, and furnishings therein, including, but not limited to, the Americans with Disability
Act and regulations promulgated from time to time thereunder. It is expressly understood that if any change in the use of the Premises by Tenant, or any
alterations to the Premises by Tenant, or any future Legal Requirement requires a new or additional permit from, or approval by, any governmental agency
having jurisdiction over the Building, such permit or approval shall be obtained by Tenant on its behalf and at its sole expense. Further, Tenant shall comply
with all Legal Requirements that shall impose a duty on Landlord or Tenant relating to or as a result of the use or occupancy of the Premises. Tenant shall pay
all fines, penalties, and damages that may arise out of or be imposed on Landlord or Tenant because of Tenant’s failure to comply with the provisions of this
Lease.

6.2 Tenant shall pay any business rent or other taxes that are now or hereafter levied on Tenant’s use or occupancy of the Premises, the conduct of Tenant’s
business at the Premises, or Tenant’s equipment, fixtures, or personal property. If any such taxes are enacted, changed, or altered so that any of such taxes are
levied against Landlord, or the mode of collection of such taxes is changed so that Landlord is responsible for collection or payment of such taxes, Tenant
shall pay any and all such taxes to Landlord as additional rent on written demand from Landlord.

6.3 Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Materials (as defined below) to be generated, used, released, stored or disposed of in or about the
Building, provided that Tenant may use and store in accordance with all Environmental Laws in accordance with all Environmental Laws reasonable
quantities of: (a) standard cleaning and office materials as may be reasonably necessary for Tenant to conduct normal general office use operations in the
Premises, and (b) such materials as are necessary to operate the Tenant Equipment on the terms and conditions set forth in Section 1.6(h). At the expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease, Tenant shall surrender the Premises to Landlord free of Hazardous Materials and in compliance with all Environmental
Laws. “Hazardous Materials” means (a) asbestos and any asbestos containing material and any substance that is then defined or listed in, or otherwise
classified pursuant to, any Environmental Law or any other applicable Law as a “hazardous substance,” “hazardous
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material,” “hazardous waste,” “infectious waste,” “toxic substance,” “toxic pollutant” or any other formulation intended to define, list, or classify substances
by reason of deleterious properties such as ignitability, corrosivity, reactivity, carcinogenicity, toxicity, reproductive toxicity, or Toxicity Characteristic
Leaching Procedure (TCLP) toxicity, (b) any petroleum and drilling fluids, produced waters, and other wastes associated with the exploration, development or
production of crude oil, natural gas, or geothermal resources, and (c) any petroleum product, polychlorinated biphenyls, urea formaldehyde, radon gas,
radioactive material (including any source, special nuclear, or byproduct material), medical waste, chlorofluorocarbon, lead or lead-based product, and any
other substance whose presence could be detrimental to the Building or the Land or hazardous to health or the environment. “Environmental Law” means
any present and future law and any amendments (whether common law, statute, rule, order, regulation or otherwise), permits and other requirements or
guidelines of governmental authorities applicable to the Building or the Land and relating to the environment and environmental conditions or to any
Hazardous Material (including, without limitation, CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, 42 U.S.C. §
6901 et seq., the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. § 1801 et seq., the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq., the
Clean Air Act, 33 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq., the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. § 2601 et seq., the Safe Drinking Water Act, 42 U.S.C. § 300f et seq.,
the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1101 et seq., the Occupational Safety and Health Act, 29 U.S.C. § 651 et seq., and
any so-called “Super Fund” or “Super Lien” law, any Law requiring the filing of reports and notices relating to hazardous substances, environmental laws
administered by the Environmental Protection Agency, and any similar state and local laws, all amendments thereto and all regulations, orders, decisions, and
decrees now or hereafter promulgated thereunder concerning the environment, industrial hygiene or public health or safety). Notwithstanding the expiration
or any termination of this Lease, Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord, its employees and agents harmless from and against any damage, injury, loss,
liability, charge, demand or claim based on or arising out of the presence or removal of, or failure to remove, Hazardous Materials generated, used, released,
stored or disposed of by Tenant or any Invitee in or about the Project, whether before or after Effective Date. Tenant shall give Landlord immediate oral and
follow-up written notice of any actual or threatened Environmental Default (as defined below), which Environmental Default Tenant shall cure in accordance
with all Environmental Laws and to the satisfaction of Landlord and only after Tenant has obtained Landlord’s prior written consent, which shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. An “Environmental Default” means any of the following by Tenant or any Invitee: (i) a violation of an
Environmental Law; a release, spill or discharge of a Hazardous Material on or from the Premises, the Land or the Building; or (ii) an environmental
condition requiring responsive action; or an emergency environmental condition. Upon any Environmental Default, in addition to all other rights available to
Landlord under this Lease, at law or in equity, Landlord shall have the right but not the obligation to immediately enter the Premises, to supervise and approve
any actions taken by Tenant to address the Environmental Default, and, if Tenant fails to immediately address same to Landlord’s satisfaction, to perform, at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense, any lawful action necessary to address same. If any lender or
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governmental agency shall require testing to ascertain whether an Environmental Default is pending or threatened, then Tenant shall pay the reasonable costs
therefor as additional rent. Promptly upon request, Tenant shall execute from time to time affidavits, representations and similar documents concerning
Tenant’s best knowledge and belief regarding the presence of Hazardous Materials at or in the Building, the Land or the Premises.

6.4 During the Lease Term, subject to the rights of existing tenants (i.e., tenants with leases for portions of the Building as of the date of this Lease) as set
forth in Exhibit V and provided that Tenant leases and occupies a minimum of 84,000 square feet of Rentable Area in the Building, Landlord shall not lease,
grant an occupancy license, or otherwise transfer (collectively “Landlord Transfer”) space in the Building (a) to a Mutual Fund Complex (as defined below)
other than Tenant or (b) for a retail center for the sale of financial services and products such as mutual funds and discount brokerage services. For purposes
of this paragraph, a “Mutual Fund Complex” means an entity or group of affiliated entities whose primary business is the underwriting or investment
management of mutual funds or other investment companies (regardless of whether its registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940) and having a
collective net asset value in excess of Ten Billion Dollars ($10,000,000,000) as of the date of the Transfer as reported in The Wall Street Journal or other
generally accepted industry source. If any other tenant of the Building uses the premises leased to it in violation of this Section 6, Tenant may notify Landlord
in writing of such fact and may request that Landlord enforce the provisions of such lease to prevent such use(s) that violate the provisions of this Section 6.4.
Landlord may, at its option, and in the exercise of its sole but reasonable discretion, take reasonable action to enforce the provisions of such lease within thirty
(30) days after Landlord’s receipt of the notice from Tenant. If Landlord fails or declines to take such action within such time period, Tenant may, at its
expense, bring suit against such tenant in a court of competent jurisdiction to terminate such tenant’s use(s) of its leased premises that violate this Section 6.4.
Landlord shall have no obligation to take any such action and Tenant shall have no cause of action against Landlord for Landlord’s failure or refusal to take
any such action. This Section 6.4 shall be of no force and effect if, at any time, in Landlord’s reasonable judgment, the enforcement rights granted to Tenant in
this section would violate any Legal Requirements applicable to Landlord, Tenant or the Building (or any portion thereof). Tenant shall defend, protect,
indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all liability, judgments, losses, costs (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees and court
costs), cause of action and damages arising out of or in connection with the enforcement right granted to Tenant pursuant to the provisions of this section.
This section will not apply to any lease that has been executed prior to the date of this Lease and any assignment of any such lease or any renewal, expansion,
relocation or sublease of any space that is the subject of any such lease.

7. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING.
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7.1 (a) Tenant shall not have the right to assign, transfer, mortgage, or otherwise encumber this Lease or its interest herein without first obtaining the prior
written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Unless otherwise expressly provided by this Lease,
(a) no assignment or transfer of this Lease or the right of occupancy hereunder may be effectuated by operation of law or otherwise without the prior written
consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, and (b) any attempted assignment or transfer by Tenant of
this Lease or its interest herein without Landlord’s consent shall, at the option of Landlord, terminate this Lease. However, in the event of such termination,
Tenant shall remain liable for all rent and other sums due under this Lease and all damages suffered by Landlord on account of such breach by Tenant.

(b) Landlord’s consent to an assignment or transfer that results from the merger, consolidation or other corporate reorganization of Tenant, or the sale or
transfer of the capital stock, partnership interests, membership interests or other ownership interests of Tenant shall not be required if: (i) Tenant is not in
default under any of the terms and provisions of this Lease and (ii) Tenant certifies to Landlord in writing within thirty (30) days after such merger,
consolidation, reorganization or sale of stock, partnership interests, membership interests or other ownership interests that: (A) Tenant will be able to satisfy
its financial obligations under this Lease and (B) such merger, consolidation, reorganization, or sale of stock, partnership interests, membership interests or
other ownership interests is subject to the Lease.

(c) In the event of any assignment or transfer under Section 7.1(a) or (b) above, Tenant shall remain fully liable as a primary obligor and principal for
Tenant’s obligations and responsibilities under this Lease, including, but not limited to, the payment of all rent and other charges required hereunder and the
performance of all conditions and obligations to be performed under this Lease.

7.2 Except as provided below, Tenant shall not have the right to sublease (which term, as used herein, shall include any type of subrental arrangement and
any type of license to occupy) all or any part of the Premises without first obtaining the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed; provided, however, that it shall not be unreasonable for Landlord to withhold its consent if Tenant is in default
hereunder, or if Landlord determines, in its reasonable discretion, that the character of the proposed subtenant or the nature of the activities to be conducted by
such proposed subtenant would adversely affect the other tenants of the Building or would impair the reputation of the Building as a first class office building
or that the character of the business to be conducted or the proposed use of the Premises by the proposed subtenant or assignee (i) is likely to increase the
Operating Expenses for the Building beyond that which Landlord now incurs for use of by Tenant unless such subtenant or Tenant agrees to pay for such
costs; (ii) is likely to increase the burden on elevators or other Building systems or equipment over the burden before such proposed subletting or assignment;
(iii) violates or is likely to violate any provisions or restrictions contained herein relating to the use or occupancy of the
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Premises, or (iv) provided that Landlord is a real estate investment trust, the proposed sublease may have an adverse effect on the real estate investment trust
qualification tests applicable to Landlord and its affiliates. Landlord shall have a period of ten (10) business days after receipt of Tenant’s written request for
Landlord’s approval of a sublease and all information necessary for Landlord to make a determination as set forth herein to grant or deny its approval of a
proposed sublease by Tenant. If Landlord fails to respond within the ten (10) business day period therefor, Tenant shall send a second (2nd) written request to
Landlord, which request shall include the following legend “THE FAILURE BY LANDLORD TO RESPOND WITHIN FIVE (5) BUSINESS DAYS
AFTER RECEIPT OF THIS REQUEST SHALL MEAN THAT LANDLORD SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE APPROVED THE MATTER FOR
WHICH APPROVAL IS SOUGHT AS SET FORTH IN THIS REQUEST”, and if Landlord fails to grant or deny its approval within five (5) business
days of such second (2nd) request, Landlord’s approval of such sublease shall be deemed granted. Any disapproval by Landlord of a proposed sublease by
Tenant shall be accompanied by a written notification from Landlord setting forth the reasons for such disapproval. Furthermore, Tenant shall not have the
right to sublease all or any portion of the Premises without first complying with the following:

(a) Tenant shall give Landlord at least ten (10) business days advance written notice of Tenant’s intention to sublease a portion of the Premises
(specifying the portion of the Premises proposed to be sublet), along with sufficient information about the proposed subtenant to enable Landlord to make the
determination called for by this Section 7.2.

(b) Except as set forth in this subsection (b), provided Tenant is not in default under any terms and provisions of this Lease, beyond any applicable
notice and cure period, Tenant shall be entitled to retain any profit derived from subletting the Premises or any part thereof. Any net profits received by
Tenant in connection with its aggregate subleasing of more than Forty-Two Thousand Five Hundred (42,500) square feet of Rentable Area of the Premises
will be shared evenly by Landlord and Tenant on a 50/50 basis after all transaction costs of such sublease(s) are first deducted. Sublease transaction costs may
include, but shall not be limited to, downtime, tenant improvement work or allowances, leasing commissions and the cost of any other concessions or
expenses required to sublease the applicable space. Landlord shall have the right to inspect and audit Tenant’s books and records relating to any sublease or
assignment and expenses incurred by Tenant in connection therewith. Tenant may engage any brokerage firm of its choice for the subleasing of the Premises
and shall indemnify, defend (with attorneys reasonably acceptable to Landlord) and hold Landlord harmless from and against any commissions or fees
payable with respect to any brokers or brokerage firms involved in the subleasing of space in the Premises by Tenant.

7.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.1 and 7.2 hereof to the contrary, if consent to any assignment or subletting is required by the holder of any

mortgage encumbering all or any portion of the Project, no assignment of this Lease or sublease of all or any portions of the Premises shall be permitted
without the prior
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written consent of such holder. The grounds for any holder of a mortgage secured by the Project to withhold its consent to a proposed assignment of this
Lease or sublease of all or any portion of the Premises shall be limited to those bases specifically enumerated in this Section 7. If such holder fails to grant or
deny its consent within seventeen (17) business days after receipt of Tenant’s written request for Landlord’s approval of an assignment or sublease and
Landlord’s receipt of all information necessary for Landlord to make a determination as set forth herein to grant or deny its approval of a proposed assignment
or sublease by Tenant, then the holder’s approval of such assignment or sublease in that particular instance shall be deemed to have been granted. Landlord
agrees to use its reasonable efforts to obtain promptly such required consent to any proposed assignment or subletting.

7.4 The consent by Landlord to any assignment or subletting shall not be construed as a waiver or release of Tenant from any and all liability for the
performance of all covenants and obligations to be performed by Tenant under this Lease, nor shall the collection or acceptance of rent from any assignee,
transferee, or subtenant constitute a waiver or release of Tenant from any of its liabilities or obligations under this Lease. Landlord’s consent to any
assignment or subletting shall not be construed as relieving Tenant from the obligation of complying with the provisions of Sections 7.1 or 7.2 hereof, as
applicable, for any subsequent assignment or subletting. For any period during which Tenant is in default hereunder, Tenant hereby assigns to Landlord the
rent due from any subtenant of Tenant and hereby authorizes each subtenant to pay said rent directly to Landlord. If Landlord consents to an assignment or
subleasing in any instance, Tenant shall submit any and all instruments of assignment and sublease to Landlord for Landlord’s prior written approval as to
form and substance, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, but which instruments shall provide, as an express condition
precedent to Landlord’s prior approval, that any subtenant or assignee agree to remain jointly and severally liable to Landlord for all obligations imposed by
any such agreement of assignment or sublease. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for all reasonable, out-of-pocket costs incurred by Landlord in connection
with any request by Tenant to sublease all or any portion of the Premises or to assign this Lease, plus an administrative fee of One Thousand and 00/100
Dollars ($1,000.00) per request (whether or not Landlord’s consent thereto is granted).

7.5 [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]

7.6 (a) Notwithstanding the above restrictions on subletting and assignments, Landlord’s prior consent shall not be required for any assignment or
subletting to an Affiliate of Tenant (as defined below) or a Parent of Tenant (as defined below), provided (i) that any assignee will be able to satisfy its
financial obligations under this Lease, (ii) that any assignee shall take subject to this Lease such that the assignee shall be bound by the terms and conditions
of this Lease and all of the obligations and liabilities of Tenant under this Lease so long as the applicable assignee has privity of estate with Landlord with
respect to this Lease, (iii) that any assignee or subtenant shall conduct a business which qualifies as a permitted use under this Lease, and (iv) that the
character of any assignee or subtenant and the nature of its activities on
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the Premises and in the Building will not adversely affect other tenants in the Building or impair the reputation of the Building as a first class office building.
Tenant shall notify Landlord within ten (10) business days after such assignment or sublease and deliver to Landlord a certificate executed by Tenant
certifying that, with respect to an assignment, the assignee or the assignment, as the case may be, satisfies clauses (i), (iii) and (iv) of this Section 7.6, or with
respect to a sublease, the subtenant or sublease satisfies clauses (iii) and (iv) of this Section 7.6, and (B) with respect to an assignment, evidence reasonably
satisfactory to Landlord that clause (ii) of this Section 7.6 has been satisfied (the “Notification Requirements”), and if Tenant fails to satisfy the Notification
Requirements within such ten (10) business day period and then further fails to satisfy the Notification Requirements within five (5) business days after
Tenant has received from Landlord a written inquiry as to whether an assignment or subletting under this Section 7.6 has occurred or a written demand from
Landlord that Tenant comply with the Notification Requirements, Tenant shall pay to Landlord liquidated damages, as additional rent, in an amount equal to
One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per day until Tenant satisfies the Notification Requirements. The parties agree that: (i) at Landlord’s sole option, such failure
to satisfy timely the Notification Requirements after the expiration of both the ten (10) business day period after the occurrence of the assignment or
subletting and the five (5) business day period after Landlord’s written inquiry or demand shall constitute an immediate default by Tenant with no further
grace or cure period and (ii) it would be difficult to ascertain Landlord’s actual damages in connection with Tenant’s failure to timely satisfy the Notification
Requirements and such liquidated damages are a reasonable estimate of Landlord’s damages and are not a penalty, and shall be in addition to any other rights
or remedies of Landlord under this Lease.

(b) In the event of any such assignment or subletting pursuant to this Section 7.6, Tenant shall remain fully liable as a primary obligor and principal for
Tenant’s obligations and responsibilities under this Lease, including, but not limited to, the payment of all rent and other charges required hereunder and the
performance of all conditions and obligations to be performed under this Lease.

(c) For purposes of this Section 7.6, an “Affiliate of Tenant” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, association, trust, or partnership
(i) that Controls (as herein defined) Tenant, (ii) that is under the Control of Tenant through stock ownership or otherwise, or (iii) that is under common
Control with Tenant. For the purposes hereof, a “Parent of Tenant” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, association, trust, or partnership
(i) that Controls Tenant, or (ii) that owns more than fifty percent (50%) of the issued and outstanding voting securities of Tenant. The terms “Control” or
“Controls” as used in this Section 7.6 shall mean the power to directly or indirectly influence the direction, management, or policies of Tenant or such other
entity.

7.7 Tenant represents and warrants to Landlord that Tenant is not a person or entity listed on the Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons List
pursuant to the regulations of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFAC Listed Persons”) of the
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U.S. Department of Treasury and Tenant agrees that it shall not assign its interest in this Lease or sublease any portion of the Premises to any OFAC Listed
Persons as specified in any applicable statute or executive order (including Executive Order 13224, dated September 24, 2001 and entitled “Blocking Property
and Prohibiting Transactions with Persons Who Commit, Threaten to Commit, or Support Terrorism™), or other governmental action relating thereto.

7.8 Notwithstanding anything in this Section 7 to the contrary, if Landlord advises Tenant of any potential adverse effect of any proposed sublease or
assignment on the real estate investment trust qualification tests applicable to Landlord and its affiliates, Tenant will exercise its best efforts to structure any
such proposed sublease or assignment so that the portion of the excess rents that become payable to Landlord will not have such adverse effect, and if Tenant
is unable so to structure any proposed sublease or assignment, then Landlord shall have the right in its sole and absolute discretion to withhold its consent to
the proposed sublease or assignment. No part of the rent payable under this Lease shall be based in whole or in part on the income or profits derived from the
Premises except for percentage rent based on gross (not net) receipts or sales. If the lender providing financing for all or any portion of the Project succeeds to
Landlord’s interests under this Lease and such lender’s counsel advises Landlord that all or any portion of the rent payable under this Lease is or may be
deemed to be unrelated business income within the meaning of the Internal Revenue Code or regulations issued thereunder, such lender may elect to amend
unilaterally the calculation of rent so that none of the rent payable to such lender under this Lease will constitute unrelated business income but the
amendment shall not increase Tenant’s payment obligations or other liability under this Lease or reduce Landlord’s obligations under this Lease. At such
lender’s request, Tenant shall execute any document such lender deems necessary to effect such amendment of this Lease. Any sublease of all or any portion
of the Premises shall include the foregoing provisions of this Section 7.8.

8. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS.

8.1 At Tenant’s expense, Tenant will keep and maintain the Premises, all fixtures and equipment located therein, except that if any escalators are installed
by Tenant or on Tenant’s behalf in connection with the buildout of the TRP Lobby Space as set forth in Section 9.1 of this Lease (“TRP Escalators”),
Landlord, at Tenant’s expense, will maintain the TRP Escalators, in a clean, safe and sanitary condition and make all required repairs thereto. At the
expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term, Tenant shall surrender the Premises, broom clean, in the same order and condition in which they are in on
the Lease Commencement Date, ordinary wear and tear and unavoidable damage by casualty excepted. Landlord shall install (subject to reimbursement in
accordance with Section 4) all replacement tubes for all Building standard fluorescent light fixtures in the Premises. All other bulbs, tubes, and lighting
fixtures for the Premises shall be provided and installed by Landlord at Tenant’s cost and expense and as additional rent.
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8.2 Except as otherwise provided as to casualty matters in Section 17 hereof, all injury, breakage, and damage to the Premises and to any other part of the
Building caused by any act or omission of Tenant, or of any agent, employee, subtenant, contractor, customer, client, licensee, guest or other invitee of Tenant
(each an “Invitee” or collectively, the “Invitees”), shall be repaired by and at the sole expense of Tenant, except that Landlord shall have the right, at its
option, to make such repairs and to charge Tenant as additional rent for all costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith. The liability of Tenant for
such costs and expenses shall be reduced by the amount of any insurance proceeds received by Landlord on account of such injury, breakage, or damage.

8.3 Landlord shall keep and maintain the exterior and demising walls, foundations, roof, and common areas that form a part of the Building, and the
Building standard mechanical, electrical, HVAC, and plumbing systems, elevators, escalators, windows, pipes and conduits that are provided by Landlord in
the operation of the Building or, on a non-exclusive basis, the Premises in clean, safe, sanitary, and operating condition to ensure that the working condition of
such items is in accordance with a standard at least equal to the level of quality existing on the Effective Date. All common or public areas of the Project
(including, but not limited to, the first floor lobby area and the exterior landscaping) shall be maintained by Landlord in accordance with standards
customarily maintained by first class office buildings in the Baltimore, Maryland area. Tenant shall promptly provide Landlord with written notice of any
defect or need for repairs in or about the Building of which Tenant is aware; provided, however, Landlord’s obligation to repair hereunder shall not be limited
to matters of which it has been given notice by Tenant. Notwithstanding any of the foregoing to the contrary: (a) maintenance and repair of special tenant
areas, facilities, finishes and equipment (including, but not limited to, any special fire protection equipment, telecommunications and computer equipment,
kitchen/galley equipment, or internal staircase(s) which may be installed by or at the request of Tenant, supplemental air-conditioning equipment serving the
Premises only and all other furniture, furnishings and equipment of Tenant and, except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, all Alterations, including, but
not limited to, Renovation Improvements and Base Building Improvements) shall be the sole responsibility of Tenant and shall be deemed not to be a part of
the Building structure and systems with respect to maintenance and repair responsibilities; and (b) Landlord shall have no obligation to make any repairs
brought about by any act or neglect of Tenant or any Invitee.
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9. TENANT ALTERATIONS.

9.1 The Premises shall be delivered to and accepted by Tenant in their present “AS-IS, WHERE IS WITH ALL FAULTS” condition except as otherwise
expressly set forth in this Lease. Except as otherwise expressly required by this Lease, Landlord shall not make, and is under no obligation to make, any
structural or other alterations, decorations, additions, or improvements in or to the Premises or Building.

As to any space Landlord delivers to Tenant and stated in this Lease as “AS IS WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition Landlord shall correct any
latent defects in any such space which were not readily discoverable by Tenant by a non-invasive inspection of the relevant space as of the Effective Date
(provided, however, that for any such space that Tenant has occupied prior to the Effective Date, such latent defects must not have been actually discovered
by Tenant or been readily discoverable during its occupancy) and for which Landlord is responsible for correction pursuant to the provisions of this Lease.

9.2 (a) Except as otherwise expressly set forth in this Lease, Tenant will not make or permit anyone to make any alterations, decorations, additions or
improvements (hereinafter referred to collectively as “improvements” or “Alterations”), structural or otherwise, in or to the Premises or the Building,
without the prior written consent of Landlord which may be granted or withheld in Landlord’s sole and absolute discretion; provided, however, that
improvements to the interior of the Premises that (i) are not readily visible to the exterior of the Building or the common and public areas thereof, (ii) are not
structural, (iii) do not affect the electrical, mechanical, fire or life safety systems within the Building, and (iv) are otherwise in conformance with all
applicable Legal Requirements affecting the Building, shall be subject to the prior written consent of Landlord, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed. Decoration work (i.e., work that does not require a permit) that costs less than One Dollar ($1) per square foot of the
Rentable Area of the Premises will not require Landlord’s consent, that is, $376,964 based on the current space leased by Tenant.

(b) Any Alterations made by Tenant shall be made: (i) in a good, workmanlike, first-class and prompt manner and otherwise in accordance with the
Landlord’s rules; (ii) using new materials or first class grade materials only; (iii) by a contractor, on days, at times and under the supervision of an architect
approved in writing by Landlord; (iv) after coordinating the work schedule and scope with the Building’s property manager to avoid undue interference with
the normal operations and use of the Building; (v) in accordance with plans and specifications prepared by an engineer or architect reasonably acceptable to
Landlord, which plans and specifications shall be approved in writing by Landlord; (vi) in accordance with all Legal Requirements and Insurance
Requirements (as defined below); (vii) after having obtained any required consent of the holder of any mortgage; (viii) after obtaining public liability and
worker’s compensation insurance policies approved in writing by Landlord, which policies shall cover every person who will perform any work with respect
to such Alteration; and (ix) after Tenant has obtained and delivered to Landlord written, unconditional waivers of
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mechanics’ and materialmen’s liens against the Premises and the Building from all proposed contractors, subcontractors, laborers and material suppliers for
all work, labor and services to be performed and materials to be furnished in connection with Alterations.

(c) If any lien (or a petition to establish such lien) is filed in connection with any Alteration, such lien (or petition) shall be discharged by Tenant within ten
(10) days thereafter, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, by the payment thereof or by the filing of a bond acceptable to Landlord. If Landlord gives its consent
to the making of any Alteration, such consent shall not be deemed to be an agreement or consent by Landlord to subject its interest in the Premises or the
Building to any liens which may be filed in connection therewith. If Tenant shall fail to discharge any such mechanic’s or materialmen’s lien, Landlord may,
at its option, discharge such lien and treat the cost thereof (including attorneys’ fees incurred in connection therewith) as additional rent payable with the next
monthly installment of annual base rent falling due; it being expressly agreed that such discharge by Landlord shall not be deemed to waive or release the
default of Tenant in not discharging such lien. It is understood and agreed that any improvements to the Premises shall be conducted on behalf of Tenant and
not on behalf of Landlord, and that Tenant shall be deemed the “owner” of such improvements (and not the agent of Landlord) for purposes of the application
of State of Maryland lien laws.

(d) Except as otherwise set forth in Section 9.4 of this Lease, all Alterations involving structural, electrical, mechanical or plumbing work, the heating,
ventilation and air conditioning system of the Premises or the Building, and the roof of the Building shall be performed by a contractor or subcontractor
approved by Landlord and completed at Tenant’s expense.

(e) Promptly after the completion of an Alteration, Tenant at its expense shall deliver to Landlord three (3) sets of accurate as-built drawings and one
(1) AutoCAD computer disc showing such Alteration in place.

(f) When granting its consent, Landlord may impose any reasonable conditions it deems appropriate, including, without limitation, the approval of plans
and specifications, approval of the contractor or other persons who will perform the work, and the obtaining of required permits and specified insurance. It
shall be reasonable for Landlord to insist that portions of the Premises visible to the public shall maintain a uniform appearance with the rest of the Building.
Landlord’s review and approval of any such plans and specifications and its consent to perform work described therein shall not be deemed an agreement by
Landlord that such plans, specifications and work conform with all applicable Legal Requirements and requirements of the insurers of the Building
(“Insurance Requirements”) nor deemed a waiver of Tenant’s obligations under this Lease with respect to all applicable Legal Requirements and Insurance
Requirements nor impose any liability or obligation upon Landlord with respect to the completeness, design sufficiency or compliance with all applicable
Legal Requirements or Insurance Requirements of such plans, specifications and work.
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(g) Except as otherwise set forth in Section 9.4(b) below, Landlord shall not charge Tenant a construction supervisory fee in connection with any
Alterations made by Tenant in the Premises or the Building.

9.3 Tenant shall indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and against any and all expenses, liens, claims, liabilities, and damages based on or arising,
directly or indirectly, by reason of the making of any improvements to the Premises by Tenant, or its contractors, agents, or employees. If any improvements
are made without the prior written consent of Landlord, Landlord shall have the right to remove and correct such improvements and restore the Premises to
their condition immediately prior thereto, and Tenant shall be liable for all expenses incurred by Landlord in connection therewith. All improvements to the
Premises or the Building made by either party shall remain on and be surrendered with the Premises as a part thereof at the end of the Lease Term, except that
if Tenant is not in default under this Lease, Tenant shall have the right to remove, at its expense, before the expiration of the Lease Term, all movable
furniture, furnishings, and equipment installed in the Premises solely at the expense of Tenant. All damage and injury to the Premises or the Building caused
by such removal shall be repaired by Tenant at Tenant’s sole expense. If such property of Tenant is not removed by Tenant prior to the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease, the same shall become the property of Landlord and shall be surrendered with the Premises as a part thereof.

9.4 (a) Tenant intends to perform substantial improvements to the Premises in order to renovate them for Tenant’s use during the Lease Term (the
“Renovation Improvements”). Tenant’s performance and construction of the Renovation Improvements (“Renovation Improvements Work”) shall be
subject to the terms and conditions of this Section 9. In connection with the Renovation Improvements Work, Tenant shall have the right to perform its own
construction, subject to Landlord’s prior approval of all architectural, structural and MEP plans and specifications (such approval to be granted or denied in
the exercise of Landlord’s sole but reasonable discretion) and Tenant’s proposed list of contractors. Landlord shall have the right to approve, in the exercise of
its sole but reasonable discretion, Tenant’s structural and mechanical engineers and structural contractor for any structural work to be performed in connection
with the Renovation Improvements Work. Exhibit AA attached hereto as a part hereof contains a list of structural and mechanical engineers and structural
contractors that have been pre-approved by Landlord.

During the performance of the Renovation Improvements Work Landlord and its agents shall have the right to have access to the Premises and to review
such construction to confirm that the Renovation Improvements Work is in accordance with plans and specifications approved by Landlord. Tenant will
provide Landlord with a complete set of accurate as-built drawings and one (1) AutoCAD computer disc showing the Renovation Improvements in place.

(b) Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, in addition to the Renovation Improvements, Tenant shall also have the right to perform, at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense (except as expressly set forth herein), certain alterations or
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improvements to the Building and Building systems, including, without limitation, the following items (the “Base Building Improvements™):

a. Lobby modifications to create the dedicated Tenant lobby and associated access and escalators (as generally shown on the drawings attached
hereto as Exhibit X).

b. Security desk and devices to control access to the low-rise portion of the Building.

C. Elevator cab upgrades and modifications.

d. Slab cuts, core openings or curtain wall penetrations and associated work for construction of a connecting walkway to Parking Garage on

second floor (as generally shown on the diagram/drawings attached hereto as Exhibit Y).
e. Connecting staircase for floors 7, 8, 9 & 10 and associated slab cuts.
f. Installation of sky light above connecting stair and associated roof cut.

g.  Toilet Room upgrades and refurbishment.

h. Slab cuts for vertical riser shafts and conduits.
i Structural reinforcements required to handle additional generators.
j. Convector Cover replacements.

k.  Window blind replacement.
L Cell Repeater equipment and any associated work and equipment to facilitate installation and operation of a wireless network (“WiFi”).
m. Design, engineering and drawings associated with the items a. through 1.

Subject to Landlord’s approval (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed if selected from items a. through m. set forth
above), Tenant shall have the right to select which, if any, of the Base Building Improvements it desires to have performed; provided, however, that items c.,
g., k. and m. (to the extent item m. is required) must be selected and performed in accordance with a construction schedule reasonably acceptable to Landlord
and Tenant. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary: (i) Landlord shall perform any work related to the installation of the WiFi equipment, which
shall be performed at Tenant’s expense (except that, subject to the terms and conditions of this Section 9.4, the Base Building Improvements Allowance may
be applied to such expenses), (ii) if any proposed Base Building Improvements not included in the list set forth above are structural in nature or would affect
the electrical or mechanical systems within the Building, at Landlord’s option the work for such Base Building Improvements shall be performed by Landlord
at Tenant’s expense (except as otherwise expressly set forth herein) (collectively “Landlord Base Building Work”), and (iii) no Base Building
Improvements shall be made (including, but not limited to, those listed above) if such Base Building Improvements will adversely impact the structural
integrity of the Building (as reasonably determined by Landlord). Any Base Building Improvements proposed by Tenant and not included in the list set forth
above
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shall be subject to Landlord’s approval, which approval may be granted or denied in the exercise of Landlord’s sole but reasonable discretion.

Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, to the extent the performance of the Base Building Improvements work that is not Landlord Base Building
Work (“Tenant Base Building Work”; collectively with the Landlord Base Building Work, the “Base Building Work”), the performance thereof shall be
subject to all of the terms and conditions of this Section 9. In connection with the Tenant Base Building Work, Tenant shall have the right to perform its own
construction, subject to Landlord’s prior approval of all architectural, structural and MEP plans and specifications and Tenant’s proposed list of contractors.
Landlord shall have the right to approve, in the exercise of its sole but reasonable discretion, Tenant’s structural and mechanical engineers and structural
contractor for any structural work to be performed in connection with the Tenant Base Building Work. During the performance of the Tenant Base Building
Work, Landlord shall have the right to have access to the construction areas and to review such construction to confirm that the Tenant Base Building Work is
in accordance with plans and specifications approved by Landlord. Tenant will provide Landlord with a complete set of accurate as-built drawings and one
(1) AutoCAD computer disc showing the Tenant Base Building Work in place. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Tenant shall pay to Landlord
the costs and expenses charged to Landlord for Landlord’s structural contractor and engineer to review the Tenant Base Building Work, including the plans
and specifications therefor, which costs and expenses may be funded from the Base Building Improvements Allowance.

(c) Tenant must coordinate all Renovation Improvements Work and Tenant Base Building Work with the property manager and use commercially
reasonable efforts not to disturb the other tenants and other tenants’ use of the Building. In addition, in connection with any Renovation Improvements Work
and Tenant Base Building Work, Tenant and its contractors shall comply with Landlord’s Construction Rules and Regulations for the Building attached as
Exhibit M hereto and incorporated herein. During the Renovation Improvements Work and Tenant Base Building Work, Tenant and its agents, contractors,
and architects shall have the right to use, at no additional cost to Tenant, the low-rise loading docks, freight elevators, and low-rise electrical/mechanical
systems rooms provided that the use of such docks, elevators and rooms is reasonably coordinated with the Building’s property manager.

(d) Any cabling and wiring installed by Tenant after the date of this Lease will be tagged, identified at both ends and, if required by applicable Legal
Requirements, removed by Tenant at the end of the Lease Term. Unless required by applicable Legal Requirements, Tenant shall not be required to remove at
the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease any of the Renovation Improvements or Base Building Improvements.

(e) (i) Subject to the terms and conditions of this subsection (e), Landlord shall fund an amount not to exceed Fifteen Million Seventy-Eight Thousand
Five Hundred Sixty Dollars ($15,078,560) (the “Renovation Improvements Allowance”),
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which amount is equal to Forty Dollars ($40) per square foot of the Premises, towards the performance of the Renovation Improvements Work, including,
without limitation, architectural, engineering and design costs; the purchase of materials; and the purchase and installation of signage, cabling, furniture,
fixtures and equipment for the Premises and moving expenses (collectively, “Renovation Expenses”). Notwithstanding anything in the previous sentence to
the contrary, no more than an amount equal to Three Million Seven Hundred Sixty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Forty Dollars ($3,769,640), which amount is
equal to Ten Dollars ($10) per square foot of the Premises, of the Renovation Improvements Allowance may be used, in the aggregate, for the purchase and
installation of signage, cabling, furniture, fixtures and equipment for the Premises, architectural, engineering and design fees and moving expenses. Tenant
shall be permitted to contract directly with the service providers, vendors and contractors performing the Renovation Improvements Work or providing
materials therefor and to administer the contractor payment process in connection therewith. If Tenant fails to timely pay for any Renovation Expenses,
Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to pay such Renovation Expenses on Tenant’s behalf directly to the contractor, materialmen or other
party entitled to payment, and to deduct such amount from the Renovation Improvements Allowance (to the extent there are sufficient funds remaining in the
Renovation Improvements Allowance to fund such payment), provided, however, that if there are not sufficient funds remaining in the Renovation
Improvements Allowance to fund such payment, Landlord may invoice and charge Tenant therefor, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as additional rent, the
amount of such invoice on demand, together with interest accrued on the unpaid amount, which interest shall accrue at the Interest Rate from the date paid by
Landlord until Landlord is reimbursed in full.

(ii) Landlord shall fund the Renovation Improvements Allowance to Tenant in accordance the following terms and conditions: (A) Tenant shall have the
right to make requisition (as defined below) for the payment of any of the Tenant Improvement Allowance only for the period from the Effective Date
through April 30, 2010 (the “Renovation Allowance Expiration Date”), (B) Tenant shall provide Landlord with a written requisition for payment, but in no
event shall Tenant make more than one (1) such requisition during any ninety (90) day period, and Tenant shall include with such written requisition
reasonably detailed invoices approved by Tenant (evidencing the performance of the Renovation Improvements Work or the materials therefor), and (C) with
respect to requisitions for payment of the Renovation Improvements Allowance in connection with: (x) physical improvements, Landlord shall have inspected
and approved the physical improvements for which Tenant is requesting reimbursement (or Landlord has declined in writing, or failed within ten
(10) business days of receipt of Tenant’s reimbursement request, to inspect the physical improvements, which shall be deemed an approval of the physical
improvements by Landlord solely for the purposes of payment), or (y) expenses that were not for physical improvements, Landlord shall have confirmed to its
reasonable satisfaction that the expenses for which Tenant is requisitioning payment were for Renovation Expenses; provided, however, that Landlord shall
fund approved Tenant payment requisitions within ten (10) business days after receipt thereof from Tenant. For the purposes of this subsection (e), a
“requisition” shall mean written documentation (including, without limitation, approved invoices from
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Tenant’s service provider(s), contractor(s) or vendor(s), written lien waivers from Tenant’s contractor(s), subcontractor(s) or materialmen, and such other
documentation as Landlord may reasonably request for the Renovation Improvements Work for which the requisition is being sought) showing in reasonable
detail the costs of any of the Renovation Improvements Work performed by, or on behalf of, Tenant which are to be funded from the Renovation
Improvements Allowance. Each requisition shall be accompanied by evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord that all of the Renovation Expenses
covered by previous requisitions have been fully paid by Tenant. In no event shall Landlord be responsible for any costs hereunder for Renovation Expenses
that exceed the Renovation Improvements Allowance, it being understood and agreed that Tenant shall be solely responsible for any Renovation Expenses in
excess of the Renovation Improvements Allowance.

(iii) Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, to the extent that the Renovation Expenses do not exceed the Renovation Improvements
Allowance, Tenant may apply any unfunded portion of the Renovation Improvements Allowance toward the payment of Base Building Expenses (as defined
below), the funding of which shall be subject to the terms and conditions of subsection (f)(ii) below.

(iv) Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this Lease, provided that Tenant is not then in default (beyond any applicable notice and cure period) of
any of its obligations under this Lease, Tenant may elect, by providing an irrevocable written notice to Landlord prior to the Renovation Allowance Expiration
Date, to have up to One Million Eight Hundred Eighty-Four Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty Dollars ($1,884,820), which amount is equal to Five Dollars
($5) per square foot of the Premises, of the unfunded portion of the Renovation Improvements Allowance (but only to the extent unfunded and excluding any
unfunded portion of the Renovation Improvements Allowance that Tenant has previously requisitioned payment for Renovation Expenses or Base Building
Expenses in accordance with subsections (ii) and (iii) above) (the “Maximum Renovation Allowance Credit”) to be credited against Tenant’s next monthly
installment(s) of annual base rent. If Landlord has not funded any portion of the Renovation Improvements Allowance based on requisitions submitted to it
before the Renovation Allowance Expiration Date and as long as Tenant is not then in default (beyond any applicable notice and cure period) of any of its
obligations under thus Lease, then the unfunded portion of the Maximum Renovation Allowance Credit (less any amounts credited against annual base rent
pursuant to the first sentence of this subsection (iv)) shall be credited against Tenant’s next monthly installment(s) of annual base rent.

(f) (i) Subject to the terms and conditions of this subsection (f) of this Section 9.4, Landlord shall fund an amount not to exceed Three Million Seven
Hundred Sixty-Nine Thousand Six Hundred Forty Dollars ($3,769,640) (the “Base Building Improvements Allowance”), which amount is equal to Ten
Dollars ($10) per square foot of the Premises, towards the performance of the Base Building Work, including, without limitation, architectural, engineering
and design costs and the purchase of materials (collectively, “Base Building Expenses”). Tenant shall be permitted to contract directly
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with the service providers, vendors and contractors performing the Tenant Base Building Work or providing materials therefor and to administer the
contractor payment process in connection therewith. If Tenant fails to timely pay for any Base Building Expenses, Landlord shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to pay such Base Building Expenses on Tenant’s behalf directly to the contractor, materialmen or other party entitled to payment, and to deduct
such amount from the Base Building Improvements Allowance (to the extent there are sufficient funds remaining in the Base Building Improvements
Allowance to fund such payment), provided, however, that if there are not sufficient funds remaining in the Base Building Improvements Allowance to fund
such payment, Landlord may invoice and charge Tenant therefor, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as additional rent, the amount of such invoice on demand,
together with interest accrued on the unpaid amount, which interest shall accrue at the Interest Rate from the date paid by Landlord until Landlord is
reimbursed in full.

(ii) Landlord shall fund the Base Building Improvements Allowance in accordance the following terms and conditions: (A) Tenant shall have the right
to make requisition (as defined below) for the payment of any: (x) of the Base Building Improvements Allowance as it relates solely to Base Building
Expenses related to the construction of the TRP Lobby Area only for the period from the Effective Date through October 31, 2008, or (y) of the Base Building
Improvements Allowance as it relates to Base Building Expenses other than the construction of the TRP Lobby Area only for the period from the Effective
Date through April 30, 2010, (B) Tenant shall provide Landlord with a written requisition for payment, but in no event shall Tenant make more than one
(1) such requisition during any ninety (90) day period, and Tenant shall include with such written requisition reasonably detailed invoices approved by Tenant
(evidencing the performance of the Base Building Work or the materials therefor and the amount of the applicable Base Building Expenses), (C) with respect
to requisitions for payment of the Base Building Improvements Allowance in connection with: (x) physical improvements, Landlord shall have inspected and
approved the physical improvements for which Tenant is requesting reimbursement (or Landlord has declined in writing, or failed within ten (10) business
days of receipt of Tenant’s reimbursement request, to inspect the physical improvements, which shall be deemed an approval of the physical improvements by
Landlord solely for the purposes of payment), or (y) for expenses that were not for physical improvements, Landlord shall have confirmed to its reasonable
satisfaction that the expenses for which Tenant is requisitioning payment were for Base Building Expenses, and (D) to the extent any Base Building Expenses
are incurred in connection with Landlord Base Building Work, Landlord shall fund such Base Building Expenses and provide Tenant with reasonably detailed
invoices evidencing the amount of such expenses. Landlord shall fund approved Tenant payment requisitions within ten (10) business days after receipt
thereof from Tenant. For the purposes of this subsection (f), a “requisition” shall mean written documentation (including, without limitation, approved
invoices from Tenant’s service provider(s), contractor(s) or vendor(s), written lien waivers from Tenant’s contractor(s), subcontractor(s) or materialmen, and
such other documentation as Landlord may reasonably request for the Tenant Base Building Work for which the requisition is being sought) showing in
reasonable detail the costs of any of the Tenant Base Building Work performed by, or on behalf of, Tenant that are to be
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funded from the Base Building Improvements Allowance. Each requisition shall be accompanied by evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord that all of
the Base Building Expenses covered by previous requisitions have been fully paid by Tenant. In no event shall Landlord be responsible for any costs
hereunder for Base Building Expenses that exceed the Base Building Improvements Allowance, it being understood and agreed that Tenant shall be solely
responsible for any Base Building Expenses in excess of the Base Building Improvements Allowance. All Tenant Base Building Work shall be performed by
contractors approved by Landlord (which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) and shall be subject to the provisions of this Lease.

(iii) Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, to the extent that the Base Building Expenses do not exceed the Base Building
Improvements Allowance, Tenant may apply any unfunded portion of the Base Building Improvements Allowance not in excess of Two Million Eight
Hundred Twenty-Seven Thousand Two Hundred Thirty Dollars ($2,827,230), which amount is equal to $7.50 per square foot of the Premises (“Excess Base
Building Allowance”), toward the payment of Renovation Expenses, provided that the Excess Base Building Allowance shall be applied to Renovation
Expenses for those Renovation Improvements that have the longest depreciable lives. Tenant shall have no right to apply or credit any portion of the Base
Building Improvements Allowance or the Excess Base Building Allowance towards the payment of any rent under this Lease.

(g) Tenant shall not be required to fund its share of the Renovation Expenses or the Base Building Expenses on a pari passu basis, such that Tenant shall
have the right to have the Renovation Improvements Allowance and the Base Building Improvements Allowance fully funded by Landlord prior to Tenant
funding any Renovation Expenses or Base Building Expenses, as the case may be, incurred in excess of such allowances.

(h) At any time that any Affiliate (as defined below) of Boston Properties Limited Partnership (“BPLP”), including Landlord at such time that Landlord is
an Affiliate of BPLP, owns the Building, BPLP shall guaranty the payment of the Renovation Improvements Allowance and the Base Building Improvements
Allowance in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease. BPLP has joined in the execution of this Lease solely for the purposes of evidencing its
guaranty obligation hereunder (the “BPLP Guaranty”). If at any time an Affiliate of BPLP does not own the Building prior to the earlier to occur of: (i) the
Renovation Allowance Expiration Date, or (ii) the full funding of both the Renovation Improvements Allowance and the Base Building Improvements
Allowance, then either: (x) the BPLP Guaranty shall be replaced by a letter of credit in form reasonably acceptable to Tenant, from a financial institution
reasonably acceptable to Tenant, in an amount equal to the remaining unfunded portions of the Renovation Improvements Allowance and the Base Building
Improvements Allowance, or (y) an amount equal to the unfunded portions of the Renovation Improvements Allowance and the Base Building Improvements
Allowance shall be placed in escrow by Landlord in accordance with escrow terms reasonably acceptable to Landlord and Tenant. As used in this subsection
(h), “Affiliate” means any corporation, limited liability company, association, trust, or partnership (i) that Controls (as herein
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defined) BPLDP, (ii) that is under the Control of BPLP through stock ownership or otherwise, or (iii) that is under common Control with BPLP. The terms
“Control”, “Controls” or “Controlled” as used in this subsection (h) means the power to directly or indirectly influence the direction, management, or
policies of BPLP or such other entity.

9.5 Tenant shall utilize the 3rd Floor Space and 26,427 square feet of the 5th Floor Space identified on Exhibit A (collectively, the “Swing Space”) to
facilitate a complete renovation of the Premises over a two (2) to three (3) year period. Commencing on the date that this Lease is fully executed and
delivered, Tenant may initially refurbish and conduct limited construction within the Swing Space to create so-called “swing space” for the phased
construction project in the Premises (“Swing Work”). Notwithstanding anything herein or the Restated Lease to the contrary, (a) the terms and conditions of
the Restated Lease shall be applicable to Tenant’s performance of the Swing Work prior to the Effective Date and the terms and conditions of this Lease shall
apply to Tenant’s performance of the Swing Work from and after the Effective Date, (b) the Swing Work shall be performed at Tenant’s sole cost and expense,
and (c) Tenant shall not be required to pay Landlord any construction supervisory fee in connection with the Swing Work.

10. SIGNS AND FURNISHINGS.

10.1 (a) Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, no sign, advertisement or notice referring to Tenant shall be inscribed, painted, affixed, or
otherwise displayed on any part of the exterior or the interior of the Building, except on the directories and doors of offices and such other areas as are
designated by Landlord, and then only in such place, number, size, color, and style as are approved by Landlord and are in accordance with any applicable
Legal Requirements. All of Tenant’s signs that are approved by Landlord shall be installed by Landlord at Tenant’s cost and expense. If any sign,
advertisement or notice that has not been approved by Landlord is exhibited or installed by Tenant, Landlord shall have the right to remove the same at
Tenant’s expense. Landlord’s acceptance of any name for listing on the Building directory will not be deemed, nor will it substitute for, Landlord’s consent, as
required by this Lease, to any sublease, assignment or other occupancy of the Premises. Landlord shall have the right to prohibit any advertisement of or by
Tenant which in Landlord’s opinion tends to impair the reputation of the Building or its desirability as a first class office building and, on written notice from
Landlord, Tenant shall immediately refrain from and discontinue any such advertisement. Landlord reserves the right to affix, install, and display signs,
advertisements, and notices on any part of the exterior or interior of the Building.

(b) Notwithstanding anything in subsection (a) to the contrary, (i) provided that the Tenant leases and occupies a minimum of 250,000 square feet of
Rentable Area in the Building (the “Occupancy Threshold”), Tenant shall have the exclusive right to display its corporate signage/logo on the upper facade
of the low-rise portion of the Building or on the roof of the low-rise portion of the Building, in either event in the approximate locations shown on Exhibit N
attached hereto as a part hereof (the
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“Building Signage”), and (ii) Tenant shall have the right to display: (A) signage on the fagade of the Investor Center Space identifying the Investor Center
Space as Tenant’s premises (“Investor Center Signage”), and (B) Tenant identification at the exterior main entry door for the Premises (“Main Entry
Identification). The exact location, size, color, style and design of the Building Signage and Investor Center Signage and Main Entry Identification shall be
mutually agreed to by Landlord and Tenant in the exercise of the parties’ reasonable discretion; provided, however, that in all events the Building Signage,
Investor Center Signage and Main Entry Identification must be consistent with building and facade signage and tenant entry identification for a first class
office building in the Central Business District of Baltimore City, Maryland and shall not include any flashing lights or neon illumination, although, subject to
Legal Requirements and Landlord’s approval, normal or back lighting may be acceptable. The manufacture and installation of the Building Signage, Investor
Center Signage and Main Entry Identification shall be at Tenant’s sole cost and expense (except that payment therefor may be funded out the Renovation
Improvements Allowance); provided, however, that Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to perform, or to contract for, the installation of the
Building Signage, Investor Center Signage and Main Entry Identification, or any of them, and to supervise such installation. The Building Signage, Investor
Center Signage and Main Entry Identification shall be subject to all Legal Requirements, including, without limitation, any necessary approvals by the City of
Baltimore. At the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term, Tenant shall remove, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, the Building Signage, Investor
Center Signage and Main Entry Identification and shall reimburse Landlord for any costs and expenses incurred by Landlord in repairing or restoring the
Building’s facade or rooftop to its condition immediately preceding the installation of the Building Signage, Investor Center Signage and Main Entry
Identification. The Building Signage, Investor Center Signage and Main Entry Identification shall be maintained, repaired and replaced by Tenant in a state of
good condition and repair (consistent with the appearance of a first class office building in the Central Business District of Baltimore City, Maryland) at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense. Subject to the Tenant’s satisfaction of the Occupancy Threshold, during the Lease Term: (i) the name of the Building shall not
be changed from “100 East Pratt Street,” unless it is named for Tenant, and (ii) no other tenant of the Building shall be permitted to have facade or roof-top
signage on the Building, except that any tenants (existing or future) of the retail portions of the first floor of the Building shall be permitted to have signage
located on the facade of the Building.

Subject to Legal Requirements, if during the Term Landlord makes available to the Building’s office tenants any monument signage located on the exterior
of the Building, Landlord shall make such monument signage available to Tenant on substantially the same terms and conditions as it is made available to the
other office tenants of the Building, including, but not limited to, the terms and conditions for removing Tenant’s monument signage at the expiration or
earlier termination of this Lease.

Subject to Legal Requirements and Landlord’s approval of such signage, including, without limitation, the location, size, color, style and design thereof,
Tenant
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shall have the right to have prominent signage in the TRP Lobby Space and at the entrances on any floor of the Building in which the Tenant occupies the
entire Rentable Area of such floor (collectively “Interior Signage”), provided that all such Interior Signage is: (i) consistent with signage for a first class
office building in the Central Business District of Baltimore City, Maryland and (ii) repaired, maintained and replaced by Tenant in a state of good condition
and repair at its sole cost and expense. At the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term, Tenant shall remove, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, any
Interior Signage and repair any damage to the Building caused by or arising from the installation, existence or removal of the Interior Signage.

For any floor of the Building that Tenant partially occupies, Tenant shall have the right to install lobby/corridor signage in compliance with the Building’s
standards. Tenant may install additional signage inside the Premises without Landlord approval, provided (i) such signage is not visible from the exterior of
the Premises, and (ii) at the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term, Tenant shall, at Tenant’s sole cost and expense, remove such signage and
repair any damage to the Building caused by or arising from the installation, existence or removal of such signage.

10.2 Landlord shall have the right to prescribe the weight and position of safes and other heavy equipment and fixtures, which, if considered necessary by
the Landlord, shall be installed in such manner as Landlord directs to distribute their weight adequately. Any and all damage or injury to the Premises or the
Building caused by moving the property of Tenant into or out of the Premises, or due to the same being in or on the Premises, shall be repaired at the sole cost
of Tenant. No furniture, equipment, or other bulky matter of any description will be received into the Building or carried in the elevators except as approved
by Landlord, and all such furniture, equipment, and other bulky matter shall be delivered only through the designated delivery entrance of the Building and
the designated freight elevator. All moving of furniture, equipment and other materials shall be under the supervision of Landlord, who shall not, however, be
responsible for any damage to or charges for moving the same. Tenant agrees to remove promptly from the sidewalks adjacent to the Building any of Tenant’s
furniture, equipment, or other material there delivered or deposited.

11. TENANT’S EQUIPMENT.

11.1 Tenant will not install or operate in the Premises any electrically operated equipment or machinery that exceeds the allowable load of the Base
Building Electrical System (as defined below) or exceeds normal electrical usage without first obtaining the prior written consent of Landlord. Landlord may
condition such consent on the payment by Tenant of additional rent in compensation for the excess consumption of electricity, to the extent the Premises are
not separately metered for electricity usage, or other utilities and for the cost of any separate metering or sub-metering of any such equipment that is required
and the cost of any additional wiring or apparatus that may be occasioned by the operation of such equipment or machinery. Landlord shall purchase primary
voltage power from the utility company and shall provide transformation and distribution of
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power to all Building systems and the Premises as described in Exhibit EE attached hereto as a part hereof (“Base Building Electrical System”). Tenant
shall not install any equipment of any type or nature that will or may necessitate any changes, replacements, or additions to, or in the use of, the water system,
heating system, plumbing system, air conditioning system, or electrical system of the Premises or the Building, without first obtaining the prior written
consent of Landlord. Business machines and mechanical equipment belonging to Tenant that cause noise or vibration that may be transmitted to the structure
of the Building or to any space therein to such a degree as to be objectionable to Landlord or to any tenant in the Building shall be installed and maintained by
Tenant, at Tenant’s expense, on vibration eliminators or other devices sufficient to reduce such noise and vibration to a level satisfactory to Landlord. For the
purposes of this Lease, “normal electrical usage” means the use, for normal general office purposes, of copying machines, personal or desk-top computers
and other standard office equipment, but excludes the use of any machine that uses electrical capacity in excess of that provided to the Premises.

12. INSPECTION BY LANDLORD .

12.1 Tenant will permit Landlord, or its agents or representatives, to enter the Premises, without charge therefor to Landlord and without diminution of the
rent payable by Tenant, to examine, inspect, and protect the Premises and the Building, to make such alterations or repairs as in the sole judgment of Landlord
may be deemed necessary, or to exhibit the same to prospective tenants during the last one hundred eighty (180) days of the Lease Term. In connection with
any such entry, Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to: (a) provide twenty-four (24) hours prior notice to Tenant (except in the case of an
emergency for which Landlord shall provide notice as promptly as practicable), which notice may be provided by fax or orally, and (b) minimize the
disruption to Tenant’s use of the Premises.

13. INSURANCE .

13.1 Tenant shall not conduct or permit to be conducted any activity, or place any equipment in or about the Premises or the Building, which will in any
way increase the rate of fire insurance or other insurance on the Building. If any increase in the rate of fire insurance or other insurance is stated by any
insurance company insuring the Building or by the applicable Insurance Rating Bureau to be due to any activity or equipment of Tenant in or about the
Premises or the Building, such statement shall be evidence that the increase in such rate is due to such activity or equipment and, as a result thereof, Tenant
shall be liable and pay on demand, as additional rent, the amount of such increase; provided, however, that Tenant may make such payment under protest if
Tenant has a reasonable belief that such statement was incorrect and Tenant may thereafter, at is sole cost and expense, protest or dispute such statement.
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13.2 Throughout the Lease Term, Landlord shall insure the Building of which the Premises are a part against loss due to fire and other casualties included
in standard “all risk” extended coverage insurance policies in an amount equal to at least 90% of the replacement cost thereof, exclusive of architectural and
engineering fees, excavation, footings, and foundations. Such insurance shall also cover the Renovation Improvements constructed in the Premises in amount
not to exceed the Renovation Improvements Allowance, but shall not cover: (i) any amount to restore the Renovation Improvements in the Premises in excess
of the Renovation Improvements Allowance, or (ii) Tenant’s furniture, fixtures, equipment, or other personal property of Tenant on the Premises to the extent
such items were not purchased with the Renovation Improvements Allowance. Throughout the Lease Term, Landlord shall maintain (a) commercial general
liability insurance (written on an occurrence basis) covering the common areas of the Building (including, without limitation, contractual liability coverage
and broad form property damage) in amounts at least as high as the greater of (x) that required of Tenant under this Lease and (y) that required by Landlord’s
lender; (b) worker’s compensation insurance with respect to any employees of Landlord as required by applicable Legal Requirements; (c) business
interruption or rent loss insurance; and (d) automobile liability insurance with respect to employees of Landlord, each in amounts not less than that which is
customarily maintained by owners of other first class office buildings in downtown Baltimore, Maryland. Landlord shall be entitled to maintain commercially
reasonable deductibles in connection with all of its insurance coverages.

13.3 (a) Throughout the Lease Term, Tenant shall obtain and maintain (1) commercial general liability insurance (written on an occurrence basis) including
contractual liability coverage insuring the obligations assumed by Tenant under this Lease, premises and operations coverage, broad form property damage
coverage and independent contractors coverage, and containing an endorsement for personal injury, (2) business interruption, extra expense or similar
reimbursement insurance, (3) all-risk property insurance, (4) comprehensive automobile liability insurance (covering any automobiles owned or operated by
Tenant, if any), (5) worker’s compensation insurance, (6) employer’s liability insurance and (7) excess/umbrella liability insurance (written on an occurrence
basis). Such commercial general liability insurance shall be in minimum amounts typically carried by prudent tenants engaged in similar operations, but in no
event shall be in an amount less than Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence with a Four Million Dollar ($4,000,000) annual
aggregate. Such business interruption, extra expense or similar reimbursement insurance shall be in minimum amounts typically carried by prudent tenants
engaged in similar operations, but in no event shall be in an amount less than the Base Rent and Additional Rent then in effect during any Lease Year. Such
property insurance shall be in an amount not less than that required to replace all of the Renovation Improvements installed in the Premises at Tenant’s
expense (i.e. those that are over and above the Renovation Improvements Allowance), all Alterations and all other contents of the Premises (including,
without limitation, Tenant’s trade fixtures, decorations, furnishings, equipment and personal property not covered by Landlord’s insurance described in
Section 13.2). Such automobile liability insurance shall be in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each accident. Such worker’s
compensation insurance shall carry

47




minimum limits as defined by the law of the jurisdiction in which the Building is located (as the same may be amended from time to time). Such employer’s
liability insurance shall be in an amount not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for each accident, One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) disease-policy
limit, and One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) disease-each employee. Such excess/umbrella liability insurance shall be in minimum amounts typically carried
by prudent tenants engaged in similar operations, but in no event shall be in an amount less than Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00) annual aggregate.

(b) All such insurance shall: (1) be issued by a company that is licensed to do business in the jurisdiction in which the Building is located, that has been
approved in advance by Landlord and that has a rating equal to or exceeding A- VIII from Best’s Insurance Guide (if Best’s Insurance Guide is discontinued,
Landlord shall identify a reasonably equivalent method of rating insurance companies); (2) with the exception of worker’s compensation, name Landlord, the
managing agent of the Building, the holder of any mortgage (as defined in Section 21.1), and any other person or entity reasonably designated by Landlord in
a written notice provided to Tenant from time to time as additional insureds or loss payees, or both (as applicable), including, but not limited to, naming
Boston Properties LL.C, Boston Properties Limited Partnership and Boston Properties, Inc.; (3) contain an endorsement that such policy shall remain in full
force and effect notwithstanding that the insured may have waived its right of action against any party prior to the occurrence of a loss; (4) with the exception
of workers’ compensation, provide that the insurer thereunder waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against Landlord, its partners, agents,
employees, representatives and mortgage holders and all trustees and beneficiaries with respect thereto, in connection with any loss or damage covered by
such policy; (5) be acceptable in form and content to Landlord; (6) be primary and noncontributory; (7) contain an endorsement prohibiting cancellation,
failure to renew, reduction of amount of insurance or change in coverage without the insurer first giving Landlord thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of such
proposed action and (8) not contain any deductible provision unless such provision is first approved in writing by Landlord (which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed). Landlord reserves the right from time to time to require Tenant to obtain higher minimum amounts of
insurance. Tenant shall deliver a certificate of all such insurance and receipts evidencing payment therefor (and, upon request, copies of all required insurance
policies, including endorsements and declarations) to Landlord not less than thirty (30) days prior to the Lease Commencement Date and at least annually
thereafter.

13.4 Except with respect to workers’ compensation, Landlord and Tenant hereby waive their right of recovery against each other and release each other
and the holder of any mortgage from any and all liabilities, claims and losses for which Landlord or Tenant is or may be held liable to the extent either is
required to maintain insurance pursuant to this Section 13 or receives insurance proceeds on account thereof. Both parties shall secure waiver of subrogation
endorsements from their respective insurance carriers as to the other party.
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14. SERVICES AND UTILITIES; COVENANTS OF LANDLORD .

14.1 (a) During the Building Hours of Operation (as defined below), Landlord shall furnish to the Premises year-round ventilation and air conditioning and
heat during the seasons when they are required, as determined in Landlord’s reasonable judgment; provided, however, that the following performance
specifications shall serve as a minimum standard for the heating, air conditioning and heating system serving the Premises (“HVAC System”): the HVAC
System shall maintain a uniform (1) indoor temperature of 78 degrees F.D.B. at 50% R.H. + 5% automatic control in summer based on the local 1% outdoor
design condition as specified in the latest edition of the “ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals” and (2) indoor temperature of 72 degrees F.D.B. at 30% R.H.
minimum in winter based on the local 99% outdoor design condition as specified in the latest edition of the “ASHRAE Handbook of Fundamentals.”
Whenever heat generating machines or equipment or lighting fixtures other than Building standard lighting fixtures are used in the Premises and affect the
temperature otherwise maintained by the Building HVAC system, Landlord may install supplementary air conditioning units in or for the full benefit of the
Premises, and the cost of installation, operation, and maintenance thereof shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord as a part of Operating Expenses on demand by
Landlord as additional rent.

The normal hours of operation of the Building will be 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday (except legal holidays), and 8:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m.
on Saturday (except legal holidays) (“Building Hours of Operation”). There will be no Building Hours of Operation on Sundays or legal holidays and
Landlord shall not be obligated to maintain or operate the Building at such times except as set forth below or unless special arrangements are made by Tenant.
Landlord shall furnish HVAC beyond the Building Hours of Operation, provided that Tenant provides notice requesting such service to Landlord before noon
on the business day when such service is required for that evening, and by noon of the preceding business day when such service is required after-hours on
Saturday or on Sunday or holidays. Landlord shall furnish this service at “Landlord’s Costs”. For purposes of this Lease, “Landlord’s Costs” means the
actual labor and utility costs incurred by Landlord to provide such overtime service, plus an additional surcharge to cover the additional wear and tear on the
HVAC system as a result of such overtime service. As of the Effective Date, the current labor and utility cost for such service in the north portion of the
Building is as follows: (i) the summer rate is $49.50 per hour per zone, and (ii) the winter rate is $31.50 per hour per zone. As of the Effective Date, the
current labor and utility cost for such service in the south portion of the Building is as follows: (i) the summer rate is $29.50 per hour per zone, and (ii) the
winter rate is $21.50 per hour per zone. As of the Effective Date, each full floor of the low-rise portion of the Building contains two (2) zones. Tenant
acknowledges that the rates set forth above and the configuration of the Building’s zones may change from time to time.

Landlord’s Costs shall be paid by Tenant or, alternatively, shall be shared proportionately (based on Rentable Area serviced by this overtime HVAC and
hours of
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use requested) between Tenant and other tenants, if any, located in the same HVAC zone who are enjoying the benefit of the service at the same time as
Tenant. Landlord shall bill Tenant on or before the last day of the month following the month in which Landlord’s Costs are incurred, and shall submit with its
invoice a tabulation of the hours and the dates on which the overtime HVAC was furnished. Tenant shall reimburse Landlord therefor, as additional rent,
within thirty (30) days after receipt of the invoice and other data supporting the charges that Tenant may reasonably request.

(b) (i) Landlord shall also provide reasonably adequate electricity, water, exterior window-cleaning service, as determined in Landlord’s reasonable
judgment, and in accordance with standards customarily provided in first class office buildings in the Central Business District of Baltimore City, Maryland.
Subject to this subsection (b)(i), Landlord shall provide reasonable char and janitorial service after 6:00 p.m. on Monday through Friday only (excluding legal
holidays) in accordance with the standards set forth in Exhibit H attached hereto and incorporated herein. Landlord agrees that, prior to the Janitorial
Switchover Date, it will bid out its janitorial and char services contract for the Building on an annual basis to not less than three (3) contractors. Prior to
requesting bids from such contractors Landlord will provide Tenant with a list of the proposed contractors and Landlord will reasonably consider any good
faith and compelling objections that Tenant has to any of Landlord’s proposed contractors.

Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, subject to the terms and conditions of this subsection (b)(i), Tenant shall have the right to employ
its own contractor to furnish janitorial and char service to the Premises, including without limitation, the TRP Lobby Space and the Low-Rise Elevators, in
which event (A) Tenant shall pay for such services directly to the janitorial contractor employed by Tenant for such purposes, (B) Tenant’s janitorial
contractor, the contract with such janitorial contractor, and such other information (including, without limitation, insurance coverages in amounts reasonably
satisfactory to Landlord) regarding such janitorial contractor as reasonably requested by Landlord, shall be subject to Landlord’s prior written approval (not to
be unreasonably withheld), and (C) the level and quality of janitorial and char service provided by such janitorial contractor shall be equivalent or superior to
standards set forth in Exhibit H attached hereto. If Tenant exercises its right to employ its own contractor to furnish janitorial and char services to the
Premises, Tenant shall provide Landlord not less than one hundred (120) days prior written notice of the date such service shall commence (the “Janitorial
Switchover Date”). If the Janitorial Switchover Date occurs prior to the scheduled expiration of Landlord’s then current contract for janitorial and char
services for the Building and Landlord incurs a termination fee or penalty as a result of Tenant exercising its right to contract for janitorial and char services
for the Premises in accordance with this subsection (b)(i), Tenant shall pay to Landlord, on demand and as additional rent, any termination fee or penalty
payable by Landlord under its contract; provided, however, that Tenant shall have the right, at its option, to delay the Janitorial Switchover Date to a date that
corresponds with the expiration of Landlord’s then current contract or to a date that would not cause Landlord to incur a termination fee or penalty). So as to
allow reasonable coordination of a Janitorial Switchover Date, Landlord will refrain from entering into a janitorial service
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contract in excess of one (1) year, or, instead, shall provide for termination of the janitorial contract as to the Premises after one (1) year, without penalty and
exercise such termination at the request of Tenant for purposes of the Janitorial Switchover Date, After the Janitorial Switchover Date, Tenant shall provide a
staging area for Tenant’s janitorial service personnel in the Premises and Landlord shall work with Tenant to locate an area for such staging. If, at any time
after the Janitorial Switchover Date, Landlord reasonably determines that the level and quality of service provided by Tenant’s janitorial contractor is not at
least equivalent to that set forth in Exhibit H attached hereto, then, after Tenant’s failure to cause its contractor to satisfy such standards within thirty

(30) days after written notice from Landlord, Landlord shall have the right to cause Tenant to terminate, at Tenant’s cost, its contract with such janitorial
contractor, Landlord shall resume providing the janitorial and char services to the Premises in accordance with the standards set forth in Exhibit H and
thereafter Section 4.1(b)(2)(xvi) of this Lease shall be null and void. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that if Tenant has exercised its right to contract for
janitorial and char services for the Premises as set forth in this subsection (b)(i) that Tenant, and not Landlord, shall be solely responsible for supervising and
paying for the services provided by Tenant’s janitorial and char services contractor.

(ii) Landlord will also provide elevator service; provided, however, that Landlord shall have the right to remove elevators from service as may be
required for moving freight, or for servicing and maintaining the elevators or the Building. Landlord shall clean the exterior of the Building’s windows not
less than three (3) times per year and clean the interior of the Building’s windows not less than two (2) times per year. At least two (2) elevator cabs shall be
available for use by Tenant at all times, except in the event of an emergency or for required testing. The services and utilities required to be furnished by
Landlord, other than electricity and water, will be provided only during the Building Hours of Operation, except as otherwise specified herein.
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, provided that Tenant is then leasing and occupying at least floors 1 through 9 (inclusive) of the low-rise
portion of the Building, Tenant shall have the exclusive use of the low-rise elevator bank (“Low-Rise Elevators”) during the Lease Term; provided, however,
that the service elevators within the Low-Rise Elevators may also be utilized by: (i) all Building tenants and cleaning staff only for the purpose of gaining
access to the high-rise tower portion of the Building, and (ii) Landlord’s employees and service providers to service the low-rise and high-rise portions of the
Building. The Low-Rise Elevators will be controlled by an electronic access system to be installed by Landlord, at Landlord’s expense, pursuant to which
Tenant will have the ability to prevent access to its floors, including the ground floor of the Building.

(iii) At Tenant’s sole cost, Landlord shall maintain and repair the Low-Rise Elevators during the Lease Term, the cost of which shall be payable by
Tenant as part of the Operating Expenses, except, at Tenant’s election pursuant to Section 14.1(b)(i), Tenant may perform, at its cost, the janitorial cleaning of
the Low-Rise Elevators (if Tenant only occupies the low-rise portion of the Building). So long as Tenant only occupies space served by the Low-Rise
Elevators, Tenant shall not be responsible for costs relating to the maintenance, operation and repair of the High-Rise Elevators. If Tenant exercises Tenant’s
contraction option, or otherwise leases less than
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all of the space served by the Low-Rise Elevators, Landlord shall allocate on a pro-rated basis costs relating to the operation, maintenance and repair of the
Low-Rise Elevators.

(c) Tenant shall pay all direct electricity costs by separate metering or submetering for all electricity provided in the Premises and Tenant’s proportionate
share of the cost of operation of the Building systems. Subject to applicable Legal Requirements, Tenant will have the right to install at its own cost and
expense separate metering for its electrical supply and shall have, upon the expiration of Landlord’s then-existing contract with its electric provider and with
at least twelve (12) months prior written notice to Landlord, the ability to contract directly with the electrical provider of its choice. Landlord shall keep
Tenant reasonably informed of the expiration date of future electricity contracts so that Tenant will have at least thirty (30) days to make its decision to
contract directly with the electrical provider of its choice. As of the date of this Lease, Landlord’s current contract with its electricity provider expires July 31,
2005. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Lease to the contrary, if Tenant fails to pay any electric bill that is provided directly to Tenant by the electric
utility as and when due, such failure shall constitute a default hereunder. If any such default is not cured within ten (10) days following written notice from
Landlord, then Landlord shall have the right, but shall not be obligated, to pay the delinquent amounts, and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord therefor within
five (5) business days after receiving notice of such payment by Landlord; provided that, Landlord may act without notice to Tenant if delay would cause an
interruption of utility services, an emergency or similar situation. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, if electric service to the Premises is
separately metered, Tenant shall not be relieved of its obligation to pay its proportionate share of Operating Expenses attributable to Common Area Electricity
Charges pursuant to Section 4. In addition to any other rights or remedies of Landlord set forth herein, if: (i) in accordance with the terms hereof Tenant has
separately contracted with an electric utility provider other than the utility provider with whom Landlord has contracted for electric utility service for the
Building, and (ii) Tenant is delinquent in paying any electric utility bill that is provided directly to Tenant by the electric utility more than twice in any
calendar year, Landlord shall have the right, but not the obligation, to cause Tenant’s electric utility provider to send Tenant’s electric bills directly to
Landlord and Landlord may pay such bills on Tenant’s behalf and charge any amounts paid by Landlord to Tenant as additional rent (which additional rent
shall be due and payable on demand, and after the fifth (5th) day after demand therefor shall bear interest at the Interest Rate until paid).

(d) Landlord shall provide an access system in the Building comparable to access systems in first class office buildings in the Baltimore, Maryland area,
which shall permit Tenant to have access to the Premises on a 24-hour, seven-days-a-week basis.

(e) Attached hereto as Exhibit O are the standards and procedures for the operation, maintenance and security of the Garage.

(f) As part of the Base Building Improvements, Tenant may elect to have a first floor lobby and reception area constructed in the TRP Lobby Space, with
escalators leading to the second floor of the Building. Tenant shall, at its costs, cause the TRP
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Lobby Space to be secured from the public lobby of the Building outside of the Building Hours of Operation. Subject to Landlord’s approval thereof (which
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld), Tenant shall, at its cost, be permitted to install security equipment in the TRP Lobby Space and, if constructed
in connection with the Base Building Improvements, in the skywalk connecting the Garage to the Premises.

(g) Landlord and Tenant hereby agree to use commercially reasonable efforts to obtain the City of Baltimore’s approval: (i) to place physical barriers on
Light Street in locations protective of the entrance area of the Building and mutually agreeable to Landlord and Tenant in the exercise of each party’s
reasonable discretion, with due consideration given to the extent and cost of the work required to be performed (and also subject to governmental approvals),
and (ii) of a curb cut for limousines at such location. Upon obtaining such approvals from the City of Baltimore, Landlord will promptly commence action to
erect, construct and install such physical barriers and curb cut, and all costs associated with obtaining and constructing such physical barriers and curb cut will
be borne by Landlord. While the parties recognize that the primary purpose of the barriers is to prevent any vehicle, including trucks, to reach the sidewalk
adjacent to the Building, the Building, or the lobby of the Building, Landlord makes no representation, warranty or guaranty, and hereby disclaims any
representation, warranty or guaranty, that such barriers will adequately or sufficiently accomplish such purpose and Landlord shall have no liability to Tenant
for any costs, claims, damages, injuries, costs or expenses of any kind if such barriers fail to prevent any vehicle, including trucks, to reach the sidewalk
adjacent to the Building, the Building, or the lobby of the Building.

(h) Tenant shall have the right to approve any contractor providing security personnel to the Building and common areas, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Any provider of security services shall be required to screen all personnel employed by such provider in a
manner to be reasonably approved by Tenant (and in all events in compliance with applicable Legal Requirements), but shall expressly include: prior
employment history, reference checks, credit history, criminal record check, address verification, fingerprinting, and drug screening. The scope of security
services will be mutually agreed upon between Tenant and Landlord in the exercise of the parties’ reasonable discretion.

(i) Landlord shall, at its cost, furnish and install not later than December 31, 2005 (subject to Tenant’s good faith and timely cooperation) and thereafter
maintain and operate as part of Operating Expenses, a computer based Security Management System (“SMS”) providing centralized and distributed
monitoring and access control for the Building. The SMS will be state of the art when installed. Provided Landlord is able to obtain competitive bids, as
reasonably determined by Landlord, such system will be compatible with Tenant’s current security system (Simplex Card Access System) and shall connect
with Tenant’s current Simplex system at Tenant’s option and expense. Tenant acknowledges that the following systems are compatible with Tenant’s current
Simplex system:

- InfoGraphics: Diamond III, Sapphire Pro, Topaz, Secure Perfect 5.0
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- Software House: C-Cure 800
—  Andover Controls: Custom system
—  Checkpoint: Pinnacle v. 2.1

The SMS will include Card Access Control Points at locations in the Building including elevators, stairs and Garage as reasonably determined by Landlord
and Tenant. The SMS will include Alarm Monitoring Points at locations reasonably determined by Landlord and Tenant. The SMS system will include CCTV
cameras for recording purposes and not for constant monitoring. Tenant will be permitted to connect into such CCTV feed to provide live monitoring at
Tenant’s option and cost. Landlord’s system will be capable of such function.

Landlord will contract with a third-party service to monitor the alarms for the SMS system, twenty-four (24) hours per day, three hundred and sixty-five
(365) days per year. Access to the Low-Rise Elevators will require card key access on the second floor of the Building. Subject to applicable Legal
Requirements, Tenant shall have the right, at its sole cost and expense, to cause the elevator access from the first floor of the Building to the Premises to be
completely restricted, provided, however, that in connection therewith Tenant shall make all necessary accommodations to comply with the Federal
Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended from time to time.

(j) At Landlord’s cost, lighting in the Garage is currently being upgraded. Landlord anticipates that such upgrade work will be completed by December 31,
2004. Standards acceptable to Landlord and Tenant for the Garage lighting levels are set forth in Exhibit Q attached hereto as a part hereof.

(k) Landlord will terminate access to the 10th floor from the Building’s high-rise tower elevators (i.e., signage on the ground floor will state that access to
the 10th floor will be changed and access from the ground floor to the 10th floor shall be terminated). Subject to the approval of the Baltimore City Fire
Marshall, tenants of the high-rise tower portion of the Building will not be permitted to congregate on the 10th floor or in any portion of the Premises during
fire drills.

14.2 Landlord shall not have any liability to Tenant whatsoever as a result of Landlord’s failure or inability to furnish any of the utilities or services
required to be furnished by Landlord hereunder, whether resulting from breakdown, removal from service for maintenance or repairs, strikes, scarcity of labor
or materials, acts of God, governmental requirements or from any other cause whatsoever. Except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, any such failure or
inability to furnish the utilities or services required hereunder shall not be considered an eviction, actual or constructive, of Tenant from the Premises or a
violation of the covenant of quiet enjoyment and shall not entitle Tenant to terminate this Lease or to an abatement of any rent payable hereunder.

14.3 (a) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 14.2 to the contrary, if (i) either (x) the services described in Sections 14.1(a) or (b) hereof are
interrupted or (y) there is unreasonably restricted access to the Premises or Building, for a period of more
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than five (5) consecutive business days and such interruption or restricted access is not the result of strikes, unavailability of parts or other materials, or any
other cause beyond Landlord’s reasonable control, (ii) such interruption was not caused by the acts or omissions of Tenant and (iii) such interruption renders
all or a substantial portion of the Premises unusable by Tenant, then Tenant shall be entitled to a pro rata abatement of rent beginning on the sixth (6th)
consecutive business day that the Premises are unusable and continuing until the use of all or a substantial portion of the Premises is restored to Tenant. If the
interruption described in the preceding sentence continues for a continuous period of one hundred eighty (180) consecutive days, Tenant shall have the right,
without penalty, to terminate this Lease by written notice to Landlord at any time prior to the end of such interruption.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 14.2 to the contrary, if (i) either (x) the services described in Sections 14.1(a) or (b) hereof are interrupted or
(y) there is unreasonably restricted access to the Premises or Building, for a period of more than eight (8) consecutive business days without regard to whether
the interruption or restricted access is the result of causes within or beyond Landlord’s control, (ii) such interruption was not caused by the acts or omissions
of Tenant and (iii) such interruption renders all or a substantial portion of the Premises unusable by Tenant, then Tenant shall be entitled to a pro rata
abatement of rent beginning on the ninth (9th) consecutive business day that the Premises are unusable and continuing until the use of all or a substantial
portion of the Premises is restored to Tenant. If the interruption described in the preceding sentence continues for a continuous period of one hundred eighty
(180) consecutive days, Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease by written notice to Landlord at any time prior to the end of such interruption.

(b) Landlord will use its reasonable and good faith efforts (including, in Landlord’s sole discretion, reasonable expenditures of money) to cause the
restoration of any interrupted utility services; further, should any equipment or machinery in the Building break down so as to render the Premises unusable
by Tenant, Landlord shall promptly repair or replace it (subject to delays that result from strikes, unavailability of parts or other materials, or other matters
beyond Landlord’s control).

14.4 The parties hereto agree to comply with all mandatory energy conservation controls and requirements applicable to office buildings that are imposed
or instituted by any public authority, including, but not limited to, controls on the permitted range of temperature settings in office buildings, and requirements
necessitating curtailment of the volume of energy consumption or the hours of operation of the Building. Any terms or conditions of this Lease that conflict or
interfere with compliance with such controls or requirements shall be suspended for the duration of such controls or requirements. Compliance with such
controls or requirements shall not be considered an eviction, actual or constructive, of Tenant from the Premises or a violation of the covenant of quiet
enjoyment, and shall not entitle Tenant to terminate this Lease or to an abatement of any rent payable hereunder.
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14.5 Tenant’s water usage in the Premises shall not exceed a connected load of thirty (30) tons of water per floor of the Premises (calculated in the
aggregate over the entire Premises). If Landlord reasonably determines that Tenant has exceeded such usage during any billing period, Tenant shall reimburse
Landlord, on demand and as additional rent, the costs associated with such excess usage (as reasonably computed by Landlord).

14.6 A list of base building items that are the responsibility of Landlord to maintain and replace as capital items is attached hereto as a part hereof as
Exhibit R (the “Capital Improvements List”). Landlord shall replace or refurbish the items contained in the Capital Improvements List in accordance with a
specific schedule as determined by Landlord when, in Landlord’s prudent judgment, it is required to satisfy Landlord’s obligation to operate and maintain the
Building as a first class office building in Baltimore City, Maryland market. Additionally, attached hereto as a part hereof as Exhibit S is Landlord’s capital
plan for calendar years 2004 through 2008, it being acknowledged and agreed that such capital plan is merely Landlord’s current capital plan as of the date of
this Lease and that such plan may change over time in the exercise of Landlord’s sole discretion, but in keeping with Landlord’s obligation to operate and
maintain the Building as a first class office building in the Baltimore City, Maryland market. On Tenant’s written request, Landlord shall provide Tenant with
a copy of Landlord’s annual capital budget for the calendar year in which Tenant makes such request.

14.7 (a) During the Lease Term, Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to lease space in the Building to a high-quality deli suitable to a first
class office building located in Baltimore City, Maryland. Tenant shall be consulted (but shall not have approval rights) prior to Landlord executing a lease
with any food service operation.

(b) Landlord shall provide space for a second point of entry for telecommunications providers in the approximate location shown therefor on Exhibit T
attached hereto as a part hereof. Contracts with any such service providers and the installation of any associated equipment in connection therewith shall be at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense.

(c) Landlord shall be responsible for the installation of cell repeater equipment and any associated work and equipment to facilitate the operation of a
wireless network (“WiFi”) to serve the Building and its tenants, including Tenant, in accordance with plans and specifications reasonably agreed upon
between Landlord and Tenant. The costs, including, but not limited to, the costs of the design and installation of such WiFi system, shall be funded from the
Base Building Improvements Allowance. Landlord and Tenant shall use reasonable efforts and shall cooperate with one another to cause the WiFi system to
be designed to each party’s reasonable satisfaction prior to October 31, 2008.
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14.8 Landlord will upgrade the existing fitness facility located in the Building with new commercial grade equipment in reasonable variety and quantity
for the size of the facility and audio visual upgrades that will permit FM broadcast for individual reception of audio for the video. The quality of such new
equipment will be consistent with similar facilities located in a first class office building located in Baltimore City, Maryland. The upgrades contemplated by
this Section 14.8 shall be completed by Landlord on or before December 31, 2005.

Landlord agrees that during the Lease Term: (a) unless required by Applicable Law to discontinue operation, Landlord shall operate a fitness facility in the
Building, (b) for so long as Tenant is a tenant in the Building, Tenant shall have the right, along with other tenants in the Building, and subject to Tenant
paying the additional rent described in Section 4.1(b)(1)(xiv) above and complying with all applicable rules governing the use of the fitness facility, to use the
fitness facility and (c) Landlord shall maintain and operate the fitness facility in a manner substantially similar to the manner in which the fitness facility is
operated at the time of the execution of this Lease (e.g. cleaning, heat, air conditioning and ventilation, availability of water, etc.). Landlord retains the right,
in its sole discretion, to increase or to decrease the services provided to the fitness facility in the prudent management of the fitness facility and in accordance
with standards generally prevailing for fitness facilities of similar size and character to the fitness facility in Baltimore, Maryland. Tenant and its employees,
agents, subtenants, invitees and licensees shall use the fitness facility at their own risk and assume all liability therefore. Neither Landlord nor Boston
Properties Limited Partnership nor Boston Properties, Inc. shall have any liability to Tenant or its employees, agents, invitees or licensees for any damage,
injury, loss, expense, compensation or claim whatsoever arising out of the use of the fitness facility and exercise facilities in and around the Building by
Tenant or its employees, agents, invitees, and licensees. Further, Tenant agrees to indemnify and save harmless Landlord, Boston Properties Limited
Partnership and Boston Properties, Inc. from and against any and all such damages, injuries, losses, expenses, compensation or claims (including, as
additional rent, reasonable attorneys’ fees) arising from the use of the fitness facility or exercise facilities by Tenant or its employees, agents, invitees and
licensees, the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord and its employees, agents and contractors excepted. Landlord may specifically condition the use
of the fitness facility by any person upon such person’s execution of a written waiver and release holding Landlord harmless from any and all liability,
damage, expense, cause of action, suit, claim, judgment and cost of defense arising from injury to such employee or guest occurring in the fitness facility or
resulting from the use thereof.

14.9 Subject to Section 4.1, Landlord shall be responsible for compliance, at Landlord’s expense, with any Legal Requirements in effect with respect to the
ownership and operation of the Building and the Project as of the Effective Date (but Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has no responsibility for compliance
with any Legal Requirements as they relate to Tenant’s use or occupancy of the Premises or any improvements or alterations located therein).
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15. LIABILITY OF LANDLORD .

15.1 To the extent permitted by applicable Legal Requirements, Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant or its Invitees for, and Tenant releases Landlord and
Landlord’s agents, servants and employees, and Landlord’s building manager of the Building, and its agents, servants, and employees from, and waives all
claims for, the following: any damage, injury, loss, compensation, or claim, including, but not limited to, claims for the interruption of or loss to Tenant’s
business, based on, arising out of, or resulting from any cause whatsoever, including, but not limited to, the following: repairs, or lack thereof, to any portion
of the Premises or the Building; interruption in the use of all or any part of the Premises; any accident or damage resulting from the use or operation (by
Landlord, Tenant, or any other person or persons) of elevators, or of the heating, cooling, communication, electrical, or plumbing equipment or apparatus; the
termination of this Lease by reason of the destruction of the Premises or the Building; any fire, robbery, theft, mysterious disappearance, or any other
casualty; the actions of any other tenants of the Building or of any other person or persons; and any leakage in any part or portion of the Premises or the
Building, or from water, rain, or snow that may leak into, or flow from, any part of the Premises or the Building, or from drains, pipes, or plumbing fixtures in
the Building. Any goods, property, or personal effects stored or placed by Tenant or its employees in or about the Premises or the Building shall be at the sole
risk of Tenant, and Landlord shall not in any manner be held responsible therefor. It is understood that the employees of Landlord are prohibited from
receiving any packages or other articles delivered to the Building for Tenant, and if any such employee receives any such package or articles, such employee
shall be acting as the agent of Tenant for such purposes and not as the agent of Landlord. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section 15.1,
Landlord shall not be released from liability to Tenant for damage or injury caused by the willful misconduct or negligence of Landlord or its employees,
contractors or agents; provided, however, in no event shall Landlord have any liability to Tenant for any claims based on the interruption of or loss to Tenant’s
business or for any indirect losses or any consequential damages whatsoever.

15.2 To the extent permitted by law, Tenant hereby agrees to indemnify and hold Landlord harmless from and against all costs, damages, claims, liabilities,
and expenses (including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and any costs of litigation) suffered by or claimed against Landlord, directly or indirectly, based
on, arising out of, or resulting from (i) Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Premises or the business conducted by Tenant therein, (ii) any accident, injury or
damage whatsoever caused to any person, or the property of any person, occurring on or about the Premises during the Lease Term, except for the negligence
or willful misconduct of Landlord or its employees, contractors or agents, (iii) any act or omission to act by Tenant or its Invitees, (iv) any breach or default
by Tenant in the performance or observance of its covenants or obligations under this Lease or (v) the towing of any car or other vehicle as provided in
Section 24.3 hereof.
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15.3 If at any time Landlord shall sell or transfer title to the Building, provided the purchaser or transferee assumes all of the obligations of Landlord
hereunder, Landlord named herein shall not be liable to Tenant for any obligations or liabilities based on or arising out of events or conditions occurring on or
after the date of such sale or transfer. Furthermore, Tenant agrees to attorn to any such purchaser or transferee on all the terms and conditions of this Lease.

15.4 If at any time during the Lease Term Tenant shall have a claim against Landlord, Tenant shall not have the right to deduct the amount allegedly owed
to Tenant from any rent or other sums payable to Landlord hereunder, it being understood that Tenant’s sole remedy for recovering on such claim shall be to
institute an independent action against Landlord.

15.5 Tenant agrees that if it is awarded a money judgment against Landlord, Tenant’s sole recourse for satisfaction of such judgment shall be limited to
execution against the estate and interest of Landlord in the Building and insurance proceeds payable to and actually received by Landlord. In no event shall
any other assets of Landlord, any partner of Landlord, the holder of any mortgage (or anyone claiming by or through such holder), or any other person or
entity be available to satisfy, or be subject to, such judgment nor shall any partner of Landlord or any other person or entity be held to have any personal
liability for satisfaction of any claims or judgments that Tenant may have against Landlord or any constituent partner of Landlord in such partner’s capacity as
a partner of Landlord.

16. RULES AND REGULATIONS.

16.1 Tenant and its Invitees shall at all times abide by and observe (i) the rules and regulations attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof, and
(ii) all other rules or regulations that Landlord may promulgate from time to time for the operation and maintenance of the Building, provided that notice
thereof is given to Tenant and such rules and regulations are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Lease. Nothing contained in this Lease shall be
construed as imposing on Landlord any duty or obligation to enforce such rules and regulations, or the terms, conditions, or covenants contained in any other
lease, as against any other tenant, and Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant or its Invitees for the violation of such rules or regulations by any other tenant or
such other tenant’s employees, agents, invitees, licensees, customers, subtenants, contractors, clients, family members, or guests. Landlord shall use
commercially reasonable efforts to enforce all such rules and regulations, including any exceptions thereto, uniformly and in a manner which does not
discriminate against Tenant, or increase Tenant’s monetary obligations under this Lease, although it is understood that Landlord may grant exceptions to such
rules and regulations in circumstances in which it reasonably determines such exceptions are warranted. If there is any inconsistency between this Lease and
the Rules and Regulations set forth in Exhibit B, this Lease shall govern.
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17. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION.

17.1 If, during the Lease Term, the Premises or the Building are totally or partially damaged or destroyed from any cause, thereby rendering the Premises
totally or partially inaccessible or unusable, Landlord shall diligently (taking into account the time necessary to effectuate a satisfactory settlement with any
insurance company involved) restore and repair the Premises and the Building to substantially the same condition they were in prior to such damage;
provided, however, if in the sole and reasonable judgment of Landlord the repairs and restoration cannot be completed within one hundred eighty (180) days
after the occurrence of such damage, including the time needed for removal of debris, preparation of plans, and issuance of all required governmental permits,
Landlord shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate this Lease by giving written notice of termination to Tenant within forty-five (45) days after the
occurrence of such damage. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts not to discriminate against Tenant in determining whether to exercise its right to terminate
this Lease in accordance with the provisions of this Section 17.1.

17.2 If Landlord determines, in its sole but reasonable judgment, that the repairs and restoration cannot be substantially completed within one hundred
eighty (180) days after the date of such damage or destruction, Landlord shall promptly notify Tenant of such determination. For a period of thirty (30) days
after receipt of such determination, Tenant shall have the right, without penalty, to terminate this Lease by providing written notice to Landlord. If Tenant
does not elect to terminate this Lease within such thirty (30) day period, and provided that Landlord has not elected to terminate this Lease, Landlord shall
proceed to repair and restore the Premises (including the means of access thereto) and the Building utilizing the proceeds of Landlord’s and Tenant’s
insurance (covering damage to the Building and to the Premises, respectively), and Tenant shall be required to repair and restore at its sole expense all such
decorations, alterations, or improvements to the Premises and Building previously made by or at the expense of Tenant and all such trade fixtures, furnishings,
equipment and personal property belonging to Tenant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant shall not have the right to terminate this Lease if the damage or
destruction arose out of the willful act or gross negligence of Tenant or its employees unless Landlord determines, in its sole but reasonable judgment, that the
repairs and restoration cannot be substantially completed within three hundred sixty (360) days after the date of such damage or destruction.

17.3 If this Lease is terminated pursuant to Section 17.1 or Section 17.2 above, all rent payable hereunder shall be apportioned and paid to the effective
date of the occurrence of such damage or destruction, and Tenant shall have no further rights or remedies as against Landlord pursuant to this Lease, or
otherwise. If this Lease is not terminated as a result of such damage, and provided that such damage was not caused by the act or omission to act of Tenant or
its Invitees, until the repair and restoration of the Premises is completed Tenant shall be required to pay base rent and additional rent only for that part of the
Premises that Tenant is able to use while repairs are being made, based on the ratio that the amount of usable Rentable Area bears to the total Rentable Area
in
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the Premises. Landlord shall bear the costs and expenses of repairing and restoring the Premises utilizing the proceeds of Landlord’s and Tenant’s insurance
(covering damage to the Building and to the Premises); provided, however, that Landlord shall not be obligated to restore the Premises or the Building if

(i) the destruction was not caused by an insurable event or (ii) the estimated cost of such restoration, as determined by Landlord’s architect, exceeds the
amount of insurance proceeds available to Landlord for such restoration by more than ten percent (10%) of such amount.

17.4 If Landlord repairs and restores the Premises as provided in Section 17.1, Landlord shall not be required to repair or restore any decorations,
alterations, or improvements to the Premises previously made by or at the expense of Tenant or any trade fixtures, furnishings, equipment, or personal
property belonging to Tenant. It shall be Tenant’s sole responsibility to repair and restore all such items. If the Lease is not terminated pursuant to this
Section 7, Tenant shall be required to repair and restore at its sole expense all such decorations, Alterations, or improvements to the Premises or Building
previously made by or at the expense of Tenant and all such trade fixtures, furnishings, equipment and personal property belonging to Tenant.

17.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if the Building is damaged or destroyed from any cause to such an extent that the costs of
repairing and restoring the Building would exceed fifty percent (50%) of the replacement value of the Building, regardless of whether the Premises are
damaged or destroyed, Landlord shall have the right to terminate this Lease by written notice to Tenant, provided the leases of all other tenants in the Building
are similarly terminated. This right of termination shall be in addition to any other right of termination provided in this Lease.

18. CONDEMNATION.

18.1 If the whole or a substantial part (as defined below) of the Building or Premises, or the use or occupancy of a substantial part of the Premises, shall be
taken or condemned by any governmental or quasi-governmental authority for any public or quasi-public use or purpose including a sale thereof under threat
of such a taking), then this Lease shall terminate on the date title thereto vests in such governmental or quasi-governmental authority, and all rent payable
hereunder shall be apportioned as of such date. If less than a substantial part of the Premises, or the use or occupancy thereof, is taken or condemned by any
governmental or quasi-governmental authority for any public or quasi-public use or purpose (including a sale thereof under threat of such a taking), this Lease
shall continue in full force and effect, but the base rent and additional rent thereafter payable hereunder shall be equitably adjusted (on the basis of the ratio of
the number of square feet of Rentable Area taken to the total Rentable Area in the Premises before such taking) as of the date title vests in the governmental
or quasi-governmental authority. For purposes of this Section 18.1, a substantial part of the Building or Premises shall be considered to have been taken if
more than one-four (1/4) of the Building or Premises is rendered unusable as a result of such taking.
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18.2 All awards, damages, and other compensation paid by the condemning authority on account of such taking or condemnation (or sale under threat of
such a taking) shall belong to Landlord, and Tenant hereby assigns to Landlord all rights to such awards, damages, and compensation. Tenant agrees not to
make any claim against Landlord or the condemning authority for any portion of such award or compensation attributable to damages to the Premises, the
value of the unexpired Lease Term, the loss of profits or goodwill, leasehold improvements, or severance damages. Nothing contained herein, however, shall
prevent Tenant from pursuing a separate claim in the condemnation proceeding against the condemning authority for the value of furnishings, equipment, and
trade fixtures installed in the Premises at Tenant’s expense, including for the then depreciated value of Renovation Improvements and Base Building
Improvements actually paid for by Tenant and not reimbursed by Landlord (which shall be depreciated on a straight-line basis), and for relocation expenses.

19. DEFAULT BY TENANT.
19.1 The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute a default by Tenant under this Lease:

(a) If Tenant shall fail to pay any installment of base rent or additional rent when due, or shall fail to pay when due any other payment required by this
Lease and such failure shall remain uncured for a period of five (5) days after Landlord notifies Tenant of such failure; provided, however, that Landlord shall
not be required to give Tenant more than two (2) such notices in any twelve (12) month period (i.e., upon the third failure to pay when due in any 12-month
period, a default shall occur on the date the payment is due an unpaid).

(b) If Tenant shall violate or fail to perform any other term, condition, covenant, or agreement to be performed or observed by Tenant under this Lease and
such violation or failure shall continue uncured for a period of twenty (20) days after Landlord notifies Tenant in writing of such violation or failure. If such
violation or failure is not capable of being cured within such twenty (20) day period, Tenant shall not be deemed to be in default hereunder if Tenant
commences curative action within such twenty (20) day period and proceeds diligently and in good faith thereafter to cure such violation or failure until
completion.

(c) If Tenant shall abandon the Premises.

(d) If an Event of Bankruptcy, as defined in Section 20.1 of this Lease, shall occur.

(e) [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]

(f) The failure to maintain any insurance required to be maintained by Tenant under the terms and conditions of this Lease.
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19.2 If there shall be a default, then the provisions of this Section 19.2 shall apply. Landlord shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate this Lease.
In addition, with or without terminating this Lease, Landlord may reenter, terminate Tenant’s right of possession and take possession of the Premises. The
provisions of this Section shall operate as a notice to quit, and Tenant hereby waives any other notice to quit or notice of Landlord’s intention to reenter the
Premises or terminate this Lease. If necessary, Landlord may proceed to recover possession of the Premises under the applicable Legal Requirements, or by
such other proceedings, including reentry and possession, as may be applicable. If Landlord elects to terminate this Lease or elects to terminate Tenant’s right
of possession, everything contained in this Lease on the part of Landlord to be done and performed shall cease, without prejudice, however, to Tenant’s
liability for all base rent, additional rent and other sums specified herein. Whether or not this Lease or Tenant’s right of possession is terminated, Landlord
shall have the right, at its sole option, to terminate any renewal or expansion right contained in this Lease and to grant or withhold any consent or approval
pursuant to this Lease in its sole and absolute discretion. Landlord may relet the Premises or any part thereof, alone or together with other premises, for such
term(s) (which may extend beyond the date on which the Lease Term would have expired but for Tenant’s default) and on such terms and conditions (which
may include any concessions or allowances granted by Landlord) as Landlord, in its sole and absolute subjective discretion, may determine, but Landlord
shall not be liable for, nor shall Tenant’s obligations hereunder be diminished by reason of, any failure by Landlord to relet all or any portion of the Premises
or to collect any rent due upon such reletting. Whether or not this Lease or Tenant’s right of possession is terminated or any suit is instituted, Tenant shall be
liable for any base rent, additional rent, damages or other sum which may be due or sustained prior to Tenant’s default, and for all costs, fees and expenses
(including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs, brokerage fees, expenses incurred in enforcing any of Tenant’s obligations under the Lease or in
placing the Premises in first class rentable condition, advertising expenses, and any concessions or allowances granted by Landlord) incurred by Landlord in
pursuit of its remedies hereunder or in recovering possession of the Premises and renting the Premises to others from time to time plus other damages suffered
or incurred by Landlord on account of such Default (including, but not limited to late fees or other charges incurred by Landlord under any mortgage). Tenant
also shall be liable for additional damages which at Landlord’s election shall be either one or a combination of the following: (a) an amount equal to the Base
Rent and additional rent due or which would have become due from the date of such default through the remainder of the Lease Term, less the amount of
rental, if any, which Landlord receives during such period from others to whom the Premises may be rented (other than any additional rent received by
Landlord as a result of any failure of such other person to perform any of its obligations to Landlord), which amount shall be computed and payable in
monthly installments, in advance, on the first day of each calendar month following such default and continuing until the date on which the Lease Term would
have expired but for such default, it being understood that separate suits may be brought from time to time to collect any such damages for any month(s) (and
any such separate suit shall not in any manner prejudice the right of Landlord to collect any damages for any subsequent month(s)), or Landlord
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may defer initiating any such suit until after the expiration of the Lease Term (in which event such deferral shall not be construed as a waiver of Landlord’s
rights as set forth herein and Landlord’s cause of action shall be deemed not to have accrued until the expiration of the Lease Term), and it being further
understood that if Landlord elects to bring suits from time to time prior to reletting the Premises, Landlord shall be entitled to its full damages through the
date of the award of damages without regard to any base rent, additional rent or other sums that are or may be projected to be received by Landlord upon
reletting of the Premises; or (b) an amount equal to the sum of (i) all base rent, additional rent and other sums due or which would be due and payable under
this Lease as of the date of such default through the end of the scheduled Lease Term, plus (ii) all expenses (including broker and attorneys’ fees) and value of
all vacancy periods projected by Landlord to be incurred in connection with the reletting of the Premises, minus (iii) any base rent, additional rent and other
sums which Tenant proves by a preponderance of the evidence would be received by Landlord upon reletting of the Premises from the end of the vacancy
period projected by Landlord through the expiration of the scheduled Lease Term. Such amount shall be discounted using a discount factor equal to the yield
of the Treasury Note or Bill, as appropriate, having a maturity period approximately commensurate to the remainder of the Term, and such resulting amount
shall be payable to Landlord in a lump sum on demand, it being understood that upon payment of such liquidated and agreed final damages, Tenant shall be
released from further liability under this Lease with respect to the period after the date of such payment, and that Landlord may bring suit to collect any such
damages at any time after an Event of Default shall have occurred. In the event Landlord relets the Premises together with other premises or for a term
extending beyond the scheduled expiration of the Lease Term, it is understood that Tenant will not be entitled to apply any base rent, additional rent or other
sums generated or projected to be generated by either such other premises or in the period extending beyond the scheduled expiration of the Lease Term
(collectively, the “Extra Rent”) against Landlord’s damages. Similarly in proving the amount that would be received by Landlord upon a reletting of the
Premises as set forth in clause (iii) above, Tenant shall not take into account the Extra Rent. The provisions contained in this Section shall be in addition to,
and shall not prevent the enforcement of, any claim Landlord may have against Tenant for anticipatory breach of this Lease. Nothing herein shall be construed
to affect or prejudice Landlord’s right to prove, and claim in full, unpaid rent accrued prior to termination of this Lease. If Landlord is entitled, or Tenant is
required, pursuant to any provision hereof to take any action upon the termination of the Lease Term, then Landlord shall be entitled, and Tenant shall be
required, to take such action also upon the termination of Tenant’s right of possession.

19.3 All rights and remedies of Landlord set forth herein are in addition to all other rights and remedies available to Landlord at law or in equity. All rights
and remedies available to Landlord hereunder or at law or in equity are expressly declared to be cumulative. The exercise by Landlord of any such right or
remedy shall not prevent the concurrent or subsequent exercise of any other right or remedy. No delay in the enforcement or exercise of any such right or
remedy shall constitute a waiver of any default by Tenant hereunder or of any of Landlord’s rights or remedies in connection
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therewith. Landlord shall not be deemed to have waived any default by Tenant hereunder unless such waiver is set forth in a written instrument signed by
Landlord. If Landlord waives in writing any default by Tenant, such waiver shall not be construed as a waiver of any covenant, condition, or agreement set
forth in this Lease except as to specific circumstances described in such written waiver.

19.4 If Landlord shall institute proceedings against Tenant and a compromise or settlement thereof shall be made, neither shall the same constitute a
waiver of default or of any other covenant, condition, or agreement set forth herein, nor of any of Landlord’s rights hereunder. Neither the payment by Tenant
of a lesser amount than the installments of base rent, additional rent, or of any sums due hereunder nor any endorsement or statement on any check or letter
accompanying a check for payment of rent or other sums payable hereunder shall be deemed an accord and satisfaction, and Landlord may accept such check
or payment without prejudice to Landlord’s right to recover the balance of such rent or other sums or to pursue any other remedy available to Landlord. No
re-entry by Landlord, and no acceptance by Landlord of keys from Tenant, shall be considered an acceptance of a surrender of this Lease.

19.5 If Tenant defaults in the making of any payment or in the doing of any act herein required to be made or done by Tenant, then Landlord may, but shall
not be required to, make such payment or do such act. If Landlord elects to make such payment or do such act, all costs and expenses incurred by Landlord,
plus interest thereon at the rate per annum that is two percent (2%) higher than the “prime rate” reported in The Wall Street Journal (the “Interest Rate™),
from the date paid by Landlord to the date of payment thereof by Tenant, shall be immediately paid by Tenant to Landlord; provided however, that nothing
contained herein shall be construed as permitting Landlord to charge or receive interest in excess of the maximum legal rate then allowed by law. The taking
of such action by Landlord shall not be considered as a cure of such default by Tenant or prevent Landlord from pursuing any remedy it is otherwise entitled
to in connection with such default.

19.6 If Tenant fails to make any payment of base rent or of additional rent on or before the date such payment is due and payable, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord a late charge of five percent (5%) of the amount of such payment. In addition, such payment shall bear interest at the Interest Rate from the date
such payment became due to the date of payment thereof by Tenant; provided, however, that nothing contained herein shall be construed as permitting
Landlord to charge or receive interest in excess of the maximum legal rate then allowed by law. Such late charge and interest shall constitute additional rent
due and payable hereunder with the next installment of base rent due hereunder.

19.7 If Landlord employs an attorney to enforce Tenant’s covenants and obligations under this Lease, whether or not Landlord proceeds to recover
possession or otherwise commence any other proceeding against Tenant, Tenant shall be liable for all costs and expenses sustained by Landlord in the
enforcement of such covenants and obligations, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and expenses, costs of collection and court costs.
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19.8 Tenant hereby waives all rights of redemption granted by or under any present or future laws.
20. BANKRUPTCY.
20.1 The following shall be Events of Bankruptcy (each an “Event of Bankruptcy”) under this Lease:

(a) Tenant’s or Guarantor’s becoming insolvent, as that term is defined in Title 11 of the United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”), or under the
insolvency laws of any state, district, commonwealth, or territory of the United States (the “Insolvency Laws”);

(b) The appointment of a receiver or custodian for any or all of Tenant’s or Guarantor’s property or assets, or the institution of a foreclosure action on
any of Tenant’s real or personal property;

(c) The filing by Tenant or Guarantor of a voluntary petition under the provisions of the Bankruptcy Code or Insolvency Laws;

(d) The filing of an involuntary petition against Tenant or Guarantor as the subject debtor under the Bankruptcy Code or Insolvency Laws, which either
i) is not dismissed within forty-five (45) days of filing, or (ii) results in the issuance of an order for relief against the debtor; or
y y 8 8

(e) Tenant’s or Guarantor’s making or consenting to an assignment for the benefit of creditors or a common law composition of creditors.

20.2 (a) On occurrence of an Event of Bankruptcy, Landlord shall have all rights and remedies available to Landlord pursuant to Section 19, provided that
while a case in which Tenant is the subject debtor under the Bankruptcy Code is pending and only for so long as Tenant or its Trustee in Bankruptcy
(“Trustee”) is in compliance with the provisions of Sections 20.2(b), (c), and (d) below, Landlord shall not exercise its rights and remedies pursuant to
Section 19.

(b) If Tenant becomes the subject debtor in a case pending under the Bankruptcy Code, Landlord’s right to terminate this Lease pursuant to
Section 20.2(a) shall be subject to the rights of the Trustee to assume or assign this Lease. Trustee shall not have the right to assume or assign this Lease
unless Trustee promptly (i) cures all defaults under this Lease, (ii) compensates Landlord for monetary damages incurred as a result of such defaults, and
(iii) provides adequate assurance of future performance on the part of Tenant as debtor in possession or on the part of the assignee tenant.
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(c) Landlord and Tenant hereby agree in advance that adequate assurance of future performance, as used in Section 20.2(b) above, shall mean that all of
the following minimum criteria must be met: (i) Tenant’s gross receipts in the ordinary course of business during the thirty (30) day period immediately
preceding the initiation of the case under the Bankruptcy Code must be at least two (2) times greater than the nextmonthly installment of annual base rent and
additional rent due under this Lease; (ii) both the average and median of Tenant’s gross receipts in the ordinary course of business during the six (6) month
period immediately preceding the initiation of the case under the Bankruptcy Code must be at least (2) times greater than the next monthly installment of
annual base rent and additional rent due under this Lease; (iii) Tenant must pay its estimated pro rata share of the cost of all services provided by Landlord
(whether directly or through agents or contractors and whether previously included as part of the annual base rent), in advance of the performance or
provision of such services; (iv) Trustee must agree that Tenant’s business shall be conducted in a first class manner, and that no liquidating sales, auctions, or
other non-first class business operations shall be conducted on the Premises; (v) Trustee must agree that the use of the Premises as stated in this Lease will
remain unchanged and that no prohibited use shall be permitted; (vi) Trustee must agree that the assumption or assignment of this Lease will not violate or
affect the rights of other tenants in the Building; (vii) Trustee must pay to Landlord at the time the next monthly installment of annual base rent is due under
this Lease, in addition to such installment of annual base rent, an amount equal to the monthly installments of annual base rent and additional rent due under
this Lease for the next six (6) months under this Lease, said amount to be held by Landlord in escrow until either Trustee or Tenant defaults in its payment of
rent or other obligations under this Lease (whereupon Landlord shall have the right to draw on such escrowed funds) or until the expiration of this Lease
(whereupon the funds shall be returned to Trustee or Tenant); and (viii) Tenant or Trustee must agree to pay to Landlord at any time Landlord is authorized to
and does draw on the escrow account the amount necessary to restore such escrow account to the original level required by Section 20.2(c)(vii).

(d) If Tenant is unable to (i) cure its defaults, (ii) reimburse the Landlord for its monetary damages, (iii) pay the rent due under this Lease and all other
payments required of Tenant under this Lease on time (or within five (5) days of the due date) or (iv) meet the criteria and obligations imposed by
Section 20.2(c) above, Tenant agrees in advance that it has not met its burden to provide adequate assurance of future performance, and this Lease may be
terminated by Landlord in accordance with Section 20.2(a) above.

21. SUBORDINATION.

21.1 This Lease is subject and subordinate to the lien, operation, and effect of any and all mortgages (which term “mortgages” shall include both
construction and permanent financing and shall include deeds of trust and similar security instruments) that may now encumber all or any portion of the
Project, and to any and all renewals, extensions, modifications, recastings or refinancings thereof. This Lease shall also be
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subject and subordinate to the lien, operation, and effect of (i) any new first mortgage that hereafter may encumber all or any portion of the Project, and

(ii) any second or junior mortgages that may hereafter encumber all or any portion of the Project, provided the holder of the first mortgage consents to such
subordination and delivers a non-disturbance agreement reasonably acceptable to Tenant. At any time after the execution of this Lease, the holder of any
mortgage to which this Lease is subordinate shall have the right to declare this Lease to be superior to the lien of such mortgage and Tenant agrees to execute
all documents required by such holder in confirmation thereof.

21.2 In confirmation of the foregoing subordination, Tenant shall, at Landlord’s request, promptly execute and deliver any requisite or appropriate
certificate or other document. If: (a) Tenant does not execute and deliver any requisite or appropriate certificate or other document within ten (10) days of
Landlord’s request therefor, (b) Landlord provides Tenant with a second (2nd) written notice after the expiration of such ten (10) day period and (c) Tenant
fails to execute and deliver such certificate or other document within three (3) business days after Landlord’s second (2nd) notice, Tenant shall pay to
Landlord liquidated damages, as additional rent, in an amount equal to One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per day until Tenant executes and delivers such
certificate or other document. The parties agree that: (i) at Landlord’s sole option, such failure to deliver timely such certificate or other documents after
Landlord’s second (2nd) notice shall constitute an immediate default by Tenant with no further grace or cure period, and (ii) it would be difficult to ascertain
Landlord’s actual damages in connection with Tenant’s failure to timely deliver such certificate or other document and such liquidated damages are a
reasonable estimate of Landlord’s damages and are not a penalty, and shall be in addition to any other rights or remedies of Landlord under this Lease. Tenant
agrees that if any proceedings are brought for the foreclosure of any mortgage encumbering all or any portion of the Project, Tenant shall attorn to the
purchaser at such foreclosure sale, if requested to do so by such purchaser, and shall recognize such purchaser as the landlord under this Lease, and Tenant
waives the provisions of any statute or rule of law, now or hereafter in effect, which may give or purport to give Tenant any right to terminate or otherwise
adversely affect this Lease and the obligations of Tenant hereunder in the event any such foreclosure proceeding is prosecuted or completed. Tenant agrees
that on such attornment, such purchaser shall not (a) be bound by any payment of annual base rent or additional rent for more than one (1) month in advance,
except prepayments in the nature of security for the performance by Tenant of its obligations under this Lease but only to the extent such prepayments have
been delivered to such purchaser, (b) be bound by any amendment of this Lease made without the consent of any lender providing construction or permanent
financing for all or any portion of the Project, (c) be liable for damages for any act or omission of any prior landlord, or (d) be subject to any offsets or
defenses that Tenant might have against any prior landlord; provided, however, that after succeeding to Landlord’s interest under this Lease, such purchaser
shall perform in accordance with the terms of this Lease all obligations of Landlord arising after the date such purchaser acquires title to the Building.
Landlord agrees to use reasonable efforts to obtain the required consent of any lender providing financing for all or any portion of the Project, to any
amendment to this Lease, where such consent is required. On request by such purchaser, Tenant shall
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execute and deliver an instrument or instruments confirming its attornment. In all events, at the request of Landlord and within the time period specified in
this Section, Tenant shall execute and deliver to Landlord a subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement in the form attached hereto as a part
hereof as Exhibit E. Subject to Landlord’s lenders’ approval of this Lease as set forth in Section 25.21, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant, concurrent with the
full execution and delivery of this Lease, a subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement in the form attached hereto at Exhibit E executed by
Landlord’s current mortgagee(s). Subordination of this Lease to any future mortgagee of Landlord shall be contingent upon execution and delivery of a
subordination, non-disturbance, and attornment agreement in form reasonably acceptable to Tenant and such mortgagee.

21.3 (a) After receiving notice from any person, firm, or other entity that it holds a mortgage, deed of trust, or a ground lease on the Building or the Land,
no notice from Tenant to Landlord alleging any default by Landlord shall be effective unless and until a copy of the same is given to such holder, trustee, or
ground lessor; provided, however, that Tenant shall have been furnished with the name and address of such holder, trustee, or ground lessor. The curing of any
of Landlord’s defaults by such holder, trustee, or ground lessor shall be treated as performance by Landlord, but nothing herein contained in this Section 21
shall obligate or be deemed to obligate such holder, trustee, or ground lessor to cure any of Landlord’s defaults.

(b) In addition to the time afforded Landlord for the curing of any default, any such holder, trustee, or ground lessor shall have an additional thirty
30) days after the expiration of the period allowed to Landlord for the cure of any such default within which to commence a cure.
y p p y

(c) If any lender providing construction or permanent financing or any refinancing for all or any portion of the Project, requires, as a condition of such
financing, that modifications to this Lease be obtained, and provided that such modifications: (i) relate exclusively to ministerial acts, (ii) are reasonable,
(iii) do not adversely affect in a material manner Tenant’s use and occupancy of the Premises as herein permitted, (iv) do not increase the rent and other sums
to be paid by Tenant hereunder, (v) do not reduce the services provided to Tenant under this Lease, (vi) do not materially decrease Landlord’s obligations
under this Lease, and (vii) do not materially affect the rights and obligations of Tenant under this Lease, Landlord may submit to Tenant a written amendment
to this Lease incorporating such required changes, and Tenant hereby covenants and agrees to execute, acknowledge, and deliver such amendment to
Landlord within ten (10) days of Tenant’s receipt thereof.

22. HOLDING OVER.

If Tenant provides Landlord with written notice no later than twenty (24) months prior to the expiration of the Lease Term, Tenant may hold over in the
entire Premises (i.e., the entire Premises leased by Tenant immediately prior to the expiration of the Lease) for a
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term of between one (1) to twelve (12) months (“Permitted Holdover Period”) at the then-current escalated annual base rental (i.e., if such holdover period
extends beyond October 31, 2017, the annual base rent payable for the period beginning on November 1, 2017 and ending twelve (12) months after the
expiration of the Lease Term shall be an amount equal to the product of the annual base rent payable during Lease Year 13 multiplied by 1.025). Tenant shall
identify the Permitted Holdover Period in its written notice to Landlord. If Tenant holds over either: (i) without such notice to Landlord, or (ii) after the
Permitted Holdover Period, then (x) the holdover rent shall be an amount equal to 150% of the then-current base rental rate, plus all additional rent, and

(y) Tenant shall become a tenant by the month. As a monthly tenant, Tenant shall be subject to all the terms, conditions, covenants, and agreements of this
Lease, except that (a) Section 23.1 shall have no further force or effect, and (b) Landlord may withhold its consent to a proposed assignment or subletting in
the exercise of its sole and absolute subjective discretion. Tenant shall give to Landlord at least thirty (30) days’ written notice of any intention to quit the
Premises, and Tenant shall be entitled to thirty (30) days’ written notice to quit the Premises, unless Tenant is in default hereunder, in which event Tenant
shall not be entitled to any notice to quit, the usual thirty (30) days’ notice to quit being hereby expressly waived. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of
this Section 22.1, if Tenant shall hold over after the expiration of the Lease Term or any Permitted Holdover Period, if applicable, and if Landlord shall desire
to regain possession of the Premises promptly at the expiration thereof, then at any time before Landlord’s acceptance of rent from Tenant as a monthly tenant
hereunder, Landlord, at its option, may forthwith re-enter and take possession of the Premises without process, or by any legal process in force in the State of
Maryland.

23. COVENANTS OF LANDLORD.

23.1 Landlord covenants that it has the right to make this Lease for the term aforesaid, and that if Tenant shall pay all rent when due and punctually
perform all the covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of this Lease to be performed by Tenant, Tenant shall, during the term hereby created, freely,
peaceably, and quietly occupy and enjoy the full possession of the Premises without molestation or hindrance by Landlord or any party claiming through or
under Landlord, subject to the provisions of Section 23.2 hereof. Tenant acknowledges and agrees that its leasehold estate in and to the Premises vests on the
date this Lease is executed, notwithstanding that the term of this Lease will not commence until a future date.

23.2 Landlord hereby reserves to itself and its successors and assigns the following rights (all of which are hereby consented to by Tenant): (i) except as
otherwise expressly set forth in Section 10.1(b), to change the street address or name of the Building, or both; (ii) to change the arrangement or location, or
both, of entrances, passageways, doors, doorways, corridors, elevators, stairs, toilets, or other public parts of the Building, provided such changes do not
materially and adversely interfere with Tenant’s use or occupancy of the Premises, except that such rights shall not apply to Tenant’s dedicated entry and
lobby area, and Tenant’s skywalk; (iii) to erect, use, and
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maintain pipes and conduits in and through the Premises, provided that Landlord shall use its reasonable efforts to minimize the disruption to Tenant’s use and
occupancy of the Premises and provided such changes do not materially or adversely interfere with Tenant’s use or occupancy of the Premises; and

(iv) except as otherwise expressly set forth herein, to grant to anyone the exclusive right to conduct any particular business or undertaking in the Building.
Landlord may exercise any or all of the foregoing rights without being deemed to be guilty of an eviction, actual or constructive, a violation of the covenant
of quiet enjoyment, or a disturbance or interruption of the business of Tenant or of Tenant’s use or occupancy of the Premises.

23.3 Landlord has not received any written notice from a governmental authority indicating that the Project is not in compliance with any Legal
Requirements for which Landlord has not previously effectuated a cure.

24. PARKING.

24.1 Except as expressly set forth in Section A.(1) of Rider No. 1 to this Lease, Tenant will have the right at any time during the Lease Term to lease up to
six hundred forty-four (644) parking permits for spaces in the Garage (“Maximum Permits”), provided, however, that if at any time Tenant leases less than
the Maximum Permits, then if Tenant desires to lease more permits than it is leasing (but in no event may Tenant lease more than the Maximum Permits),
Tenant shall provide Landlord with written notice specifying the additional permits Tenant desires to lease and Landlord shall have a period of sixty (60) days
to secure for, and provide to, Tenant such additional parking permits (but in no event shall Landlord be required to secure for, or provide to, Tenant more
parking permits than the Maximum Permits). Except as expressly set forth in Section A.(1) of Rider No. 1 to this Lease, at all times during the Lease Term,
Tenant shall lease a minimum of five hundred (500) parking permits for spaces in the Garage. During Lease Year 1, the cost for such parking permits shall be
One Hundred Fifty Dollars ($150) per permit monthly, including tax. Thereafter, the cost for parking permits shall escalate by three percent (3%) on each
anniversary of the Effective Date. Subject to inclement weather or other events of force majeure, Tenant shall have access to its allotment of parking permits
in the garage twenty-four (24) hours per day, three hundred and sixty-five (365) days of the year. The parking permits shall allow for the parking of standard-
sized passenger automobiles (including reasonable standard-sized passenger trucks and sport utility vehicles not in excess of such that a standard passenger
automobile parking space comfortably can accommodate) in the Garage not designated for the exclusive use of particular tenants in the Building.

24.2 The Garage will be operated on a self-parking basis and no specific parking spaces will be allocated for use by Tenant. Each user of the Garage will
have the right to park in any available stall in accordance with regulations of uniform applicability promulgated for all users of the Garage by Landlord or the
Garage operator.

71




24.3 Tenant agrees that it and its employees shall observe reasonable safety precautions in the use of the Garage and shall at all times abide by all rules and
regulations promulgated by Landlord or the Garage operator governing the use of the Garage, including any requirement now or hereafter in effect that an
identification or parking sticker be displayed at all times in all cars parked in the Garage. Any automobile not displaying such a sticker may be towed away at
the automobile owner’s expense.

24.4 The Garage will remain open on Monday through Friday (excluding legal holidays) during the Building Hours of Operation on such days. Landlord
reserves the right to close the Garage during periods of unusually inclement weather. At all times when the Garage is closed, monthly permit holders shall be
afforded access to the Garage by means of a magnetic card or other procedure provided by Landlord or the Garage operator.

24.5 Landlord does not assume any responsibility for, and shall not be held liable for, any damage or loss to any automobiles parked in the Garage or to
any personal property located therein, or for any injury sustained by any person in or about the Garage.

25. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

25.1 Tenant acknowledges that neither Landlord nor any broker, agent, or employee of Landlord has made any representations or promises with respect to
the Premises or the Building except as herein expressly set forth, and no rights, privileges, easements, or licenses are being acquired by Tenant except as
herein expressly set forth.

25.2 Nothing contained in this Lease shall be construed as creating a partnership or joint venture of or between Landlord and Tenant, or to create any other
relationship between the parties hereto other than that of landlord and tenant.

25.3 Landlord recognizes Colliers Pinkard as the broker procuring this Lease and Julien J. Studley (“Studley”) as a cooperating broker, and Landlord shall
pay Colliers Pinkard a commission pursuant to a separate agreement between Colliers Pinkard and Landlord, and Landlord shall pay Studley a commission
pursuant to a separate agreement between Landlord and Studley. Landlord and Tenant each represents and warrants to the other that, except as provided
above, neither of them has employed or dealt with any broker, agent, or finder in carrying on the negotiations relating to this Lease. Tenant shall indemnify
and hold Landlord harmless from and against any claim or claims for brokerage or other commissions asserted by any broker, agent, or finder engaged by
Tenant or with whom Tenant has dealt in connection with this Lease, other than the brokers named in the first sentence of this Section 25.3.

25.4 Tenant agrees, at any time and from time to time, on not less than five (5) days’ prior written notice by Landlord, to execute, acknowledge, and
deliver to Landlord a statement in writing in the form of Exhibit F attached hereto as a part hereof. Such statement shall, among other things, (i) certify that
this Lease is unmodified and in full
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force and effect (or if there have been any modifications, that the Lease is in full force and effect as modified and stating the modifications), (ii) state the dates
to which the rent and any other charges hereunder have been paid by Tenant, (iii) state whether, to the best knowledge of Tenant after due inquiry, Landlord is
in default in the performance of any covenant, agreement, or condition contained in this Lease, and if so, specifying the nature of such default, (iv) state the
address to which notices to Tenant are to be sent, and (v) state such other information as may be reasonably requested by Landlord. Any such statement
delivered by Tenant may be relied on by any owner of the Building or the Land, any prospective purchaser of the Building or the Land, any mortgagee or
prospective mortgagee of the Building or the Land or of Landlord’s interest therein, or any prospective assignee of any such mortgagee. If: (a) Tenant does
not execute and deliver such statement within ten (10) days of Landlord’s request therefor, (b) Landlord provides Tenant with a second (2nd) written notice
after the expiration of such ten (10) day period and (c) Tenant fails to execute and deliver such certificate or other document within three (3) business days
after Landlord” second (2nd) notice, Tenant shall pay to Landlord liquidated damages, as additional rent, in an amount equal to One Thousand Dollars
($1,000) per day until Tenant executes and delivers such statement. The parties agree that: (i) at Landlord’s sole option, such failure to deliver timely such
statement after Landlord’s second (2nd) notice shall constitute an immediate default by Tenant with no further grace or cure period and (ii) it would be
difficult to ascertain Landlord’s actual damages in connection with Tenant’s failure to timely deliver such statement and such liquidated damages are a
reasonable estimate of Landlord’s damages and are not a penalty, and shall be in addition to any other rights or remedies of Landlord under this Lease.

25.5 All notices or other communications required hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly given if delivered in person (with receipt
therefor), or if sent by a nationally recognized overnight delivery service (with return receipt therefor) or if sent by certified mail, return receipt requested,
postage prepaid, to the following addresses:

If to Landlord: East Pratt Street Associates Limited Partnership
c/o Boston Properties, Inc.
Suite 700
401 9th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20004

With concurrent copies to: Boston Properties, Inc.
111 Huntington Avenue
Suite 300
Boston, Massachusetts 02199-7610

and

Kevin L. Shepherd, Esquire
Venable LLP
1800 Mercantile Bank & Trust Building
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Two Hopkins Plaza
Baltimore, Maryland 21201-2978

If to Tenant: T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.
Attention: Corporate Secretary
100 E. Pratt Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21202

With concurrent copies to: T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.
Attention: Corporate Controller
100 E. Pratt Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21202

and

T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc.
Attention: Corporate Counsel
100 E. Pratt Street

Baltimore, Maryland 21202

Either party may change its address for the giving of notices by notice given in accordance with this Section.

25.6 If any provision of this Lease or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder
of this Lease, or the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected
thereby, and each provision of this Lease shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

25.7 Feminine or neuter pronouns shall be substituted for those of the masculine form, and the plural shall be substituted for the singular number, in any
place or places herein in which the context may require such substitution.

25.8 The provisions of this Lease shall be binding on, and shall inure to the benefit of, the parties hereto and each of their respective representatives,
successors, and assigns, subject to the provisions hereof restricting assignment or subletting by Tenant.

25.9 This Lease contains and embodies the entire agreements of the parties hereto and supersedes all prior agreements, negotiations, and discussions
between the parties hereto. Any representation, inducement, or agreement that is not contained in this Lease shall not be of any force or effect. This Lease
may not be modified or changed in whole or in part in any manner other than by an instrument in writing duly signed by both parties hereto.
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25.10 This Lease shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland.
25.11 Section headings are used herein for the convenience of reference and shall not be considered when construing or interpreting this Lease.

25.12 The submission of an unsigned copy of this document to Tenant for Tenant’s consideration does not constitute an offer to lease the Premises or an
option to or for the premises. This document shall become effective and binding only on the execution and delivery of this Lease by both Landlord and
Tenant.

25.13 Time is of the essence of each provision of this Lease.

25.14 This Lease shall not be recorded, except that on the request of either party, the parties agree to execute, in recordable form, a short-form
memorandum of this Lease, provided that such memorandum shall not contain any of the specific rental terms set forth herein. Such memorandum may be
recorded in the land records of Baltimore City, Maryland and the party desiring such recordation shall pay all recordation costs (including any applicable
recordation and transfer taxes).

25.15 The Rentable Area in the Building and in the Premises shall be determined in accordance with the definition of Rentable Area contained in this
Lease.

25.16 Tenant hereby represents and warrants to Landlord that all necessary corporate or partnership action has been taken to enter this Lease and that the
person signing this Lease on behalf of Tenant has been duly authorized to do so.

25.17 Except as otherwise provided in Section 3.2 and Section 4.3 of this Lease, any additional rent owed by Tenant to Landlord, and any cost, expense,
damage, or liability shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord no later than the later of (i) twenty (20) days after the date Landlord notifies Tenant of the amount of
such additional rent or such cost, expense, damage, or liability, or (ii) the day the next monthly installment of base rent is due. If any payment hereunder is
due after the end of the Lease Term, such additional rent or such cost, expense, damage, or liability shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord not later than twenty
(20) days after Landlord notifies Tenant of the amount of such additional rent or such cost, expense, damage, or liability.

25.18 All of Tenant’s duties and obligations hereunder, including but not limited to Tenant’s duties and obligations to pay base rent, additional rent, and the
costs, expenses, damages, and liabilities incurred by Landlord for which Tenant is liable, shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease for
any reason whatsoever.

25.19 If either party is in any way delayed, interrupted, or prevented from performing any of its obligations under this Lease (except, with respect to
Tenant, any obligation set forth in Section 13 of this Lease or the obligation to pay sums due under this Lease), and such delay, interruption, or prevention is
due to fire, act of God,
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governmental act, action or inaction (including, but not limited to, government delays in issuing any required building, construction, use, occupancy, or other
permit or performing any inspection or review in connection therewith) strike, labor dispute, inability to procure materials, or any other cause beyond such
delayed party’s reasonable control (whether similar or dissimilar), then such delayed party shall be excused from performing the affected obligations for the
period of such delay, interruption, or prevention so long as such party exercises due diligence in dealing with such matter.

25.20 Landlord and Tenant each hereby covenant and agree that each provision of this Lease has been jointly and mutually authorized by both Landlord
and Tenant; and, if of any dispute arising out of any provision of this Lease, Landlord and Tenant do hereby waive any claim of authorship against the other
party.

25.21 This Lease shall be subject to and contingent on Landlord’s receiving the approval of all of the terms and conditions contained herein by the lender
that is the beneficiary of the deed of trust encumbering all or any portion of the Project. Landlord agrees to use its reasonable efforts to secure such approval.
If such approval cannot be obtained, Landlord shall notify Tenant, and this Lease shall terminate and all rights, obligations, and liabilities of the parties
hereunder shall be released and discharged. Landlord shall notify Tenant not more than fifteen (15) business days after the date on which Tenant delivers a
fully executed copy of this Lease to Landlord whether such beneficiary has approved or disapproved this Lease.

AA, BB, CC, DD, and EE. attached hereto and made a part hereof. The following table identifies the rider and exhibits attached to this Lease as a part hereof:

Rider/Exhibit Reference Description
Rider No. 1 Renewal Options
Exhibit A Premises
Exhibit B Rules and Regulations
Exhibit C Table of Rental Area / Area of All Floors of the Building
Exhibit D Existing Equipment Space
Exhibit E Form of SNDA
Exhibit F Form of Statement of Tenant
Exhibit G Riser Space
Exhibit H Janitorial Standards
Exhibit I [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]
Exhibit J [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]
Exhibit K [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]
Exhibit L Example of Calculation of Varying Forward Overages and Shortages of
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Rider/Exhibit Reference Description
Capped Costs
Exhibit M Landlord’s Construction Rules and Regulations
Exhibit N Building Signage Location
Exhibit O Garage Operation, Maintenance and Security Procedures
Exhibit P [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]
Exhibit Q Garage Lighting Levels
Exhibit R Capital Improvements List
Exhibit S Landlord’s 2004 — 2008 Capital Plans
Exhibit T Second Point of Entry Location
Exhibit U Storage Space
Exhibit V Rights of Existing Tenants
Exhibit W Capped Costs Line Items
Exhibit X TRP Lobby Drawings
Exhibit Y Parking Garage Walkway Diagrams/Drawings
Exhibit Z Form of Declaration and Certificate
Exhibit AA Approved Contractors
Exhibit BB Recorded Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions
Exhibit CC Form of Guaranty of Lease
Exhibit DD Amendments to Rules and Regulations
Exhibit EE Base Building Electrical System

25.23 Tenant shall not disclose the economic and business terms of this Lease to any person or entity, other than to its respective employees, agents,
consultants, contractors, and outside counsel, without Landlord’s prior written consent except as may be required by applicable Legal Requirements.

25.24 (a) Landlord hereby leases to Tenant approximately two thousand three hundred eighty-seven (2,387) square feet of area (the “Storage Space”)
during the Lease Term. The location of the Storage Space is shown on Exhibit U attached hereto as a part hereof. Tenant accepts the Storage Space in its “AS
IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition. Landlord shall have no obligations with respect to the build-out of the Storage Space.

(b) Tenant shall pay as an annual fee, as additional rent, the sum of Ten Dollars ($10) per square foot of area in the Storage Space (i.e., $23,870),
payable in equal monthly installments in advance on or before the first day of each month throughout the term hereof. All storage fees shall be paid in
accordance with Section 3.1 of this Lease and any amounts not paid when due shall bear interest from the date due until paid at the Interest Rate.
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(c) This Section is for lease of Storage Space for self-service storage only. Without charge, Landlord shall provide lighting and HVAC to the extent
provided in the Storage Space as of the date of this Lease. Otherwise, Landlord shall not be obligated to provide additional HVAC, electrical, or cleaning or
janitorial services. At its sole cost and expense, Tenant (i) shall pay for all replacement lighting, bulbs, tubes, ballasts, and starters required for the Storage
Space, and (ii) may request Landlord to provide additional HVAC, electrical, cleaning, and janitorial services.

(d) If Tenant is in default under this Section and fails to cure such default within thirty (30) days after written notice by Landlord to Tenant, Landlord may,
at its option, cancel Tenant’s rights under this Section by a second written notice to Tenant (which cancellation shall be effective upon delivery of such second
notice). In such event, Landlord shall have all remedies available to it at law or in equity.

(e) Landlord, its agents and employees, shall not be liable for loss or damage to any personal property in the Building, including the Storage Space, caused
by fire, theft, explosion, strikes, riots, or by any other cause, and Tenant hereby (i) waives any claim against Landlord in respect thereto, and (ii) agrees to
indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to Landlord) and hold Landlord harmless against all claims for any loss or damage to any such
personal property from any cause whatsoever, regardless of whether caused by Landlord’s act or omission, other than the negligence of Landlord or its
employees, contractors or agents. The relationship between Landlord and Tenant constitutes an agreement to use the Storage Space subject to the terms and
conditions herein only, and that neither such relationship nor the storage of any such personal property in the Building, including the Storage Space, shall
constitute a bailment or create the relationship of bailor and bailee.

(f) If less than all or substantially all of the Storage Space shall be damaged by fire or other casualty that renders it unusable by Tenant, the fee provided
for herein shall be reduced pro rata (based on the ratio of the Storage Space that is usable and unusable) from the date such area becomes unusable until it
again becomes usable. Landlord will cause the Storage Space to be repaired with due diligence to the extent of any insurance proceeds available for such
repair. If all or substantially all of the Storage Space is damaged by fire or other casualty, Landlord may elect not to repair it and may terminate Tenant’s rights
under this Section on written notice to Tenant (such termination to be effective as of the delivery of such notice to Tenant).

(g) If all or any substantial part of the Storage Space is taken by eminent domain proceedings, then on written notice to the other, either party may
terminate this Section and the lease of the Storage Space. If less than all or substantially all of the Storage Space is so taken, Landlord may by written notice
to Tenant reduce the area leased hereunder to the extent of any partial taking and the fee charged for the Storage Space shall be equitably reduced based on the
ratio of the Storage Space taken and not taken.
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(h) Tenant shall comply with all Legal Requirements governing the use and occupation of the Storage Space. Tenant covenants not to suffer any waste,
damage, disfigurement, or injury to the Storage Space or any other part of the Building, and Tenant specifically covenants not to store in the Storage Space
any Hazardous Materials, or any other materials that in Landlord’s reasonable judgment are likely to result in higher premiums for the casualty insurance
covering the Building.

(i) Landlord reserves the following rights, exercisable without notice and without liability to Tenant, and Tenant hereby waives any claims of an eviction,
constructive or actual, or of disturbance of Tenant’s use or possession of the Storage Space, or for setoff or abatement hereunder, in each case by reason of
Landlord’s exercise of these rights:

(i) To retain at all times and to use in appropriate instances keys to all doors within and into the Storage Space. No locks on these doors shall be
changed without the prior written consent of Landlord. This provision shall not apply to Tenant’s safes or other areas maintained by Tenant for the safety and
security of monies, securities, negotiable instruments, or like items or areas containing proprietary items or information.

(ii) To make repairs, alterations, additions, or improvements, whether structural or otherwise, in and about the Building, or any part thereof, and for
such purposes to enter on the Storage Space and, during the continuation of any such work, to temporarily close doors, entryways, public spaces, and
corridors in the Building and to interrupt or temporarily suspend services and facilities without liability, cost, or abatement of the fee.

(iii) To enter the Storage Space in lawful manner for any other lawful purpose.

(j) Rules and Regulations. Tenant shall perform, observe, and comply with the Rules and Regulations of the Building that form a part of this Lease, to the
extent they may affect use of the Storage Space, as the same may be amended from time to time by Landlord. Tenant shall make no alterations or
improvements to the Storage Space without Landlord’s prior written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.

(k) Keys. If keys are supplied by Landlord to Tenant in connection with the rights granted herein, Tenant shall surrender such keys to Landlord on the
termination of Tenant’s rights under this Section.

(1) Subordination. The subordination of this Section and rights of Tenant granted herein to any mortgages, deeds of trust, or ground leases now or hereafter
placed against the Building shall be governed by the provisions of Section 21 of this Lease. Tenant agrees to execute and deliver a certificate in respect to this
Section similar to the
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certificates required by Section 25.4 of this Lease at any time any certificate under such Section 25.24 is required.

(m) Reduction. Tenant may, at its option, reduce the total square footage comprising the Storage Space by giving Landlord a sixty (60) day written notice
of reduction desired. Tenant agrees that any such reduction that will require an alteration of the existing demising walls shall be completed by Landlord at
Tenant’s expense.

(n) Cancellation. Tenant may cancel this Section at any time for any reason by giving Landlord a thirty (30) day notice of cancellation.

(o) Surrender. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease or upon the earlier termination or cancellation of this Section, Tenant shall surrender
the Storage Space to Landlord in the same condition that the Storage Space was in when delivered to Tenant, subject to ordinary wear and tear, broom swept
and free and clear of all of Tenant’s property, equipment and debris.

(p) Balance of the Lease. Whenever either party exercises a right granted in this Section to terminate or cancel this Section 25.24, or this Section 25.24 is
terminated or expires in accordance with its terms, such cancellation, termination, or expiration shall in no way affect the validity and status of the balance of
this Lease, which shall remain in full force and effect without change.

25.25 LANDLORD AND TENANT HEREBY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM TO
WHICH THEY OR ANY OF THEM MAY BE A PARTY ARISING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY RELATED TO THIS LEASE, THE
RELATIONSHIP OF LANDLORD AND TENANT UNDER THIS LEASE, TENANT’S USE OR OCCUPANCY OF THE PREMISES, OR ANY
CLAIM OF INJURY OR DAMAGE. IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THIS WAIVER CONSTITUTES A WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY OF ALL
CLAIMS AGAINST ALL PARTIES TO SUCH ACTIONS OR PROCEEDINGS. THIS WAIVER IS KNOWINGLY, WILLINGLY, AND
VOLUNTARILY MADE BY LANDLORD AND TENANT, AND EACH PARTY REPRESENTS THAT NO REPRESENTATIONS OF FACT OR
OPINION HAVE BEEN MADE BY ANY INDIVIDUAL TO INDUCE THIS WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY OR TO IN ANY WAY MODIFY OR
NULLIFY ITS EFFECT. LANDLORD AND TENANT ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT THIS PROVISION IS A SPECIFIC AND
MATERIAL ASPECT OF THIS LEASE. LANDLORD AND TENANT EACH REPRESENT THAT IT HAS BEEN REPRESENTED (OR HAS
HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO BE REPRESENTED) IN THE SIGNING OF THIS LEASE AND IN THE MAKING OF THIS WAIVER BY
INDEPENDENT LEGAL COUNSEL, AND THAT IT HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO DISCUSS THIS WAIVER WITH COUNSEL.
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26. CONTRACTION.

26.1 Notwithstanding anything in the Lease to the contrary, Tenant shall have the one-time right, exercisable at its option, to terminate the Lease for all,
and only all, of the tenth (10th) floor space of the Premises (“Termination Option”) with such termination to be effective at any time after the expiration of
Lease Year 5 (the actual termination date hereinafter referred to the “10th Floor Early Termination Date”). The Termination Option may be only exercised
by Tenant by providing Landlord with not less than twelve (12) months written notice and paying Landlord, prior to the 10th Floor Early Termination Date, a
termination fee in an amount equal to the sum of the unamortized amounts of the Renovation Improvements Allowance and the brokerage commissions
payable in connection with the Lease, all as allocable to the space terminated on a square foot basis and using a nine percent (9%) amortization rate and 12.5-
year amortization term. On or before the 10th Floor Early Termination Date Tenant shall surrender the tenth (10th) floor space to Landlord in the condition
required for the surrender of the Premises on the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. Promptly after the 10th Floor Early Termination Date,
Landlord and Tenant shall promptly execute and deliver an amendment to this Lease setting forth any necessary conforming modifications to Section 1.2,
Section 3 and Section 14.1(k) of this Lease (it being acknowledged that Section 14.1(k) shall be deleted from this Lease). Tenant shall have no right to
terminate this Lease in accordance with this Section if Tenant is in default of any of its obligations under this Lease, past any applicable notice and cure
period, on the date Tenant exercises such termination right or on the effective date of termination.

26.2 Tenant’s rights under this Section 26 shall not be exercisable by any subtenant of Tenant.
27. EXPANSION.

27.1 Tenant shall have the right (the “First Offer Right”) to lease any office space in the Building at such time as any such space becomes available
during the Lease Term (the “First Offer Space”); provided, however, that such First Offer Right shall be subject to the rights of existing tenants (i.e., tenants
with leases for portions of the Building as of the date of this Lease), or the renewal and expansion rights of future tenants (i.e., tenants with leases for portions
of the Building executed after the date of this Lease). The rights of existing tenants in any of the First Offer Space are set forth in Exhibit V attached to this
Lease as a part hereof. The annual base rent for any space leased by Tenant pursuant to the First Offer Right shall be equal to the FMV Rental Rate
determined in accordance with Section A.1(d) and (e) of the Rider No. 1 to this Lease. The annual base rent for the First Offer Space shall be payable in equal
monthly installments at the times and in the manner as provided with respect to and in addition to, the monthly installments of the annual base rent set forth in
Section 3.1 of this Lease. For purposes hereof, if the lease of an existing tenant expires and the lease contains no further rights to renew the term, and no other
tenant has rights to the space, the space
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shall be deemed to have become “available” on the expiration or earlier termination of the term thereof.

27.2 Before the First Offer Space is offered to the public or any other tenant of the Building and at least one hundred twenty (120) days before such
space is expected to become available, Landlord shall notify Tenant in writing of the date or dates that all or any portion of the First Offer Space shall become
available, and Tenant shall have a period of twenty (20) days in which to notify Landlord in writing of Tenant’s intention to exercise its First Offer Right and
to occupy and lease that portion of the First Offer Space so offered. If Tenant fails to notify Landlord within the applicable period of Tenant’s intention to
lease and occupy all or a part of the First Offer Space (Tenant shall have the right to lease less than all of the First Offer Space only if, in Landlord’s
reasonable determination, the remaining space retains a reasonably marketable configuration and size), Landlord shall be free for a period of one (1) year after
the expiration of such period to offer the First Offer Space to the public and to enter into a lease or leases for all or any portion thereof on such terms as
Landlord in its sole and absolute subjective discretion deems appropriate. If Landlord does not enter into a lease for such space with another tenant or
Landlord is not involved in ongoing or continuing negotiations with a prospective tenant for such space at the end of such one (1) year period, Landlord shall
again offer such space to Tenant. Landlord’s obligation to deliver the First Offer Space shall be subject to the condition that the existing tenant shall have
vacated the space. The date for delivery of the space to Tenant shall automatically extend for a period of time equal to the period for which an existing tenant
remains in the space beyond its lease term. Landlord shall use diligent efforts to remove such holdover tenant.

27.3 The exercise by Tenant of the First Offer Right and the leasing of all or any portion of the First Offer Space shall be on and subject to the
following terms and conditions:

(a) Tenant shall not be entitled to exercise the First Offer Right, or to lease the First Offer Space, if on the date on which Landlord would be
obligated to notify Tenant that the First Offer Space shall become available as described in Section 27.2 above or at any time thereafter prior to the
commencement of the term of such First Offer Space, this Lease is not in full force and effect or Tenant is in default, violation, or breach of any term,
condition or obligation imposed on Tenant by the Lease, unless the same is expressly waived by Landlord in writing.

(b) On the exercise of Tenant’s First Offer Right, the lease by Tenant of the First Offer Space shall commence on the earlier date (the “First Offer
Space Commencement Date”) of (i) sixty (60) days after the date on which such space is vacated by its former tenant, or (ii) Tenant’s occupancy of all or
any portion of the First Offer Space, and shall continue through the balance of the Lease Term, under and subject to the terms of the Lease, with the same
force and effect as though the Lease had originally provided for the rental of the First Offer Space. The annual rent applicable to the First Offer Space shall be
adjusted as of the first day of any Renewal Term in
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accordance with Section A.(1) of Rider No. 1 to this Lease. Tenant shall also pay as additional rent its pro rata share of Operating Expenses and Real Estate
Taxes attributable to the First Offer Space in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease.

(c) The First Offer Space shall be delivered to Tenant in an “AS IS” condition, potentially including any existing tenant improvements made for the
original tenant in the condition such improvements exist at the time of Tenant’s exercise of the First Offer Right, although Landlord shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to enforce any restoration or removal clauses set forth in the lease of such original tenant. Any improvements to the First Offer Space shall
be made in accordance with Sections 9.1 and 9.2 of this Lease.

(d) From and after the First Offer Space Commencement Date, all references in the Lease to the Premises shall, for all purposes of this Lease, be
deemed to mean both the aggregate Rentable Area of the Premises and of the First Offer Space, and Tenant’s attributable share of the common facilities.
Tenant’s share of Operating Expenses and Real Estate Taxes shall be adjusted accordingly to reflect the leasing of the First Offer Space.

(e) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Section 27, from and after the First Offer Space Commencement Date, all of the covenants and
agreements set forth in this Lease shall apply to the First Offer Space.

27.4 Tenant’s rights under this Section 27 are personal to and may be exercised only by the initial Tenant hereunder and shall not be exercisable by any
assignee or subtenant of such initial Tenant.

28. PURCHASE OPTION.
28.1 Tenant shall have the right of first refusal to purchase the Building on the following terms and conditions:

(a) If (i) Landlord receives an unsolicited offer to purchase the Building (whether by sale of the Building as an asset or by sale or transfer of 100% of
the ownership interests in the entity that constitutes the Landlord [or similar transfer if the primary purpose of such sale or transfer of ownership interests,
instead of the sale of the Building as an asset, is to avoid the payment of Maryland and Baltimore City transfer and recordation taxes]) and (ii) Landlord
intends to accept such offer (hereinafter referred to as an “Acceptable Offer”), then Landlord shall send to Tenant a duplicate copy of the Acceptable Offer
together with a notice stating that Landlord intends to accept such Acceptable Offer (the “Offer Notice”). Within ten (10) business days of Landlord’s giving
Tenant an Offer Notice, Tenant shall have the right to advise Landlord in writing that Tenant desires to purchase the Building in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Acceptable Offer.
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(b) If Tenant timely advises Landlord that it desires to purchase the Building in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Acceptable Offer,
Landlord and Tenant shall enter into a contract of sale for the Building in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Acceptable Offer within thirty
(30) days of Tenant notifying Landlord that it desires to purchase the Building. The contract of sale shall provide, among other things, that the Lease shall
terminate as of the day of settlement of the contract of sale, with all rent payable under the Lease to be adjusted as of such date unless Tenant elects that the
sale shall be subject to the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Lease other than the provisions of this section.

(c) If: (i) Tenant timely advises Landlord that Tenant does not desire to purchase the Building in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Acceptable Offer, (ii) Tenant does not advise Landlord within ten (10) business days of Landlord’s giving Tenant an Offer Notice that it desires to purchase
the Building in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Acceptable Offer, or (iii) Landlord and Tenant fail to enter into a contract of sale for the
Building in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Acceptable Offer within the thirty (30) day time period therefor under subsection (b) above, then
Landlord shall have the unrestricted and unfettered right to enter into a contract of sale for, and to actually sell, transfer and convey, the Building to any party
on terms and conditions acceptable to Landlord in the exercise of Landlord’s sole and absolute subjective discretion.

(d) Tenant shall have no right to exercise any rights under this Section 28.1 to purchase the Building if Tenant is in default of any of its obligations
under this Lease, past any applicable notice and cure period, on the date Tenant notifies Landlord that it desires to purchase the Building in accordance with
the Acceptable Offer pursuant to subsection (b) above or at any time thereafter prior to the closing under any contract of sale.

28.2 (a) If, during the Lease Term, Landlord intends to sell the Building as a single asset (i.e., a transaction that does not involve the sale, conveyance
or transfer of the Building and the sale, conveyance or transfer of other real estate [other than the Building] owned by Landlord or one of Landlord’s Affiliates
[as defined below] pursuant to a single transaction) (whether by sale of the Building as an asset or by sale or transfer of 100% of the ownership interests in the
entity that constitutes the Landlord [or similar transfer if the primary purpose of such sale or transfer of ownership interests, instead of the sale of the Building
as an asset, is to avoid the payment of Maryland and Baltimore City transfer and recordation taxes), Landlord shall notify Tenant of Landlord’s intent to sell
the Building (the “Sale Notice”) and include in such Sale Notice the purchase price at which Landlord desires to sell the Building (the “Target Asking
Price”). Landlord and Tenant shall have fifteen (15) business days to negotiate the terms and conditions of a contract of sale for the purchase and sale of the
Building, which negotiations shall be conducted in good faith. If the parties agree within such fifteen (15) business day period on the fundamental terms and
conditions of the purchase and sale of the Building, the parties shall use reasonable, good faith efforts to execute and deliver a contract of sale for the Building
within twenty (20) business days after the expiration of the initial fifteen (15) business day period. If the parties
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fail to execute a contract of sale for the Building within such twenty (20) business day period despite the exercise of such reasonable, good faith efforts,
Landlord shall thereafter have the unrestricted and unfettered right to negotiate to sell, transfer and convey, and to actually sell, transfer and convey, the
Building to any party on terms and conditions acceptable to Landlord in the exercise of Landlord’s sole and absolute subjective discretion. Notwithstanding
Landlord’s right and ability to sell, transfer and convey the Building, and negotiate therefor, as set forth in the preceding sentence, Landlord shall continue to
review offers (but shall have no obligations whatsoever to accept or negotiate such offers) made by Tenant prior to executing a contract of sale for the
Building with a third party. As used in this Section 28 and in Section 4.1 of this Lease, “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company,
association, trust, or partnership (i) that Controls (as herein defined) Landlord, (ii) that is under the Control of Landlord through stock or membership or
partnership interest ownership or otherwise or (iii) that is under common Control with Landlord. As used in this Section 28, “Control”, “Controls” or
“Controlled” shall mean the power to directly or indirectly influence the direction, management, or policies of Landlord or such other entity.

(b) Tenant shall have no right to exercise any rights under this Section 28.2 to purchase the Building if Tenant is in default of any of its obligations
under this Lease, past any applicable notice and cure period, on the date Tenant receives the Sale Notice or at any time thereafter prior to the closing under
any contract of sale.

28.3 Tenant’s rights under this Section 28 are personal to and may be exercised only by the initial Tenant hereunder and shall not be exercisable by any
assignee (other than an assignee by merger, consolidation or other corporate reorganization of Tenant) or subtenant of such initial Tenant.

28.4 Tenant’s rights under this Section 28 shall not be applicable to: (i) a sale, conveyance or transfer of any partnership or other equity interest of the
entity that constitutes the Landlord or the sale, conveyance or transfer of any of the equitable interests in any of the entities holding, either directly or
indirectly, an equitable interest in Landlord, except that Tenant’s rights under this Section 28 shall be applicable to a sale, conveyance or transfer of 100% of
the partnership or other equity interests of the entity that constitutes the Landlord (or a similar transfer if the primary purpose of such sale or transfer of
partnership or other equity interests, instead of the sale of the Building as an asset, is to avoid the payment of Maryland and Baltimore City transfer and
recordation taxes), (ii) a transaction that involves the sale, conveyance or transfer of the Building (or 100% of the partnership or other equity interests of the
entity that constitutes the Landlord [or similar transfer if the primary purpose of such sale or transfer of ownership interests, instead of the sale of the Building
as an asset, is to avoid the payment of Maryland and Baltimore City transfer and recordation taxes) that also includes a sale, conveyance or transfer of other
real estate (other than the Building) or other partnership or other equity interests owned by Landlord or one of Landlord’s Affiliates, (iii) a transaction that
involves the sale, conveyance or transfer of the Building (or 100% of the partnership or other equity interests of the entity that constitutes the Landlord) to an
entity that is an Affiliate of Landlord, (iv) any condemnation or eminent domain action or proceeding by any governmental or quasi-governmental authority
for
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any public or quasi-public use or purpose, including a sale thereof under threat of such a taking or (v) any foreclosure proceeding or sale or any sale in lieu of
a foreclosure.

28.5 Subject to any confidentially restrictions in the contract of sale, if Landlord executes and delivers a contract of sale for the sale of the Building
with a party other than Tenant, Landlord shall provide written notification of such event not less than five (5) business days after the full execution and
delivery of the contract of sale.

28.6 If Tenant does not purchase the Building in accordance with the provisions of this Section 28.1 and Landlord sells, conveys, or transfers the
Building to another person or entity, such sale shall be subject to the terms, covenants, and conditions of the Lease; including the provisions of this
Section 28; provided, however, that the provisions of this Section 28 shall terminate upon, and shall thereafter be of no further force or effect after, any sale,
transfer or conveyance made pursuant to any condemnation or eminent domain action or proceeding by any governmental or quasi-governmental authority for
any public or quasi-public use or purpose, including a sale thereof under threat of such a taking, but only with respect to that portion of the Building subject to
such sale, transfer or conveyance.

29. GUARANTY. As a material inducement to Landlord to enter into this Lease with Tenant, T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (“Guarantor”) has executed and
delivered to Landlord a Guaranty of Lease in the form attached as Exhibit CC, and Landlord is relying upon such inducement in making this Lease with
Tenant. Tenant shall notify Landlord of any merger, dissolution or other event terminating the legal existence of the Guarantor within ten (10) days after the
occurrence of any such merger, dissolution or other event.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON NEXT PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed this Lease with the specific intention of creating a document under seal on or as of the

day and year first above written.

WITNESS:

/s/ Ann B. Dumont

WITNESS:

The undersigned, Boston Properties Limited Partnership,
hereby joins in the execution and delivery of this Lease
solely for the purposes of acknowledging and agreeing to
its guaranty obligations expressly set forth in Section 9.4(h)
of this Lease.

BOSTON PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, a Delaware limited partnership

By: Boston Properties, Inc., a Delaware
corporation, its General Partner

By: /s/ E. Mitchell Norville ( SEAL)
Name: E. Mitchell Norville
Title: Senior Vice President
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EAST PRATT STREET ASSOCIATES LIMITED
PARTNERSHIP, a Maryland limited partnership

By: Boston Properties LL.C, a Delaware limited liability company, its
general partner

By: Boston Properties Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited
partnership, its Managing Member

By: Boston Properties, Inc., a Delaware corporation, its General
Partner

By: /s/ E. Mitchell Norville ( SEAL)
Name: E. Mitchell Norville
Title: Senior Vice President

T. ROWE PRICE ASSOCIATES, INC.

By: /s/ Mark B. Ruhe (SEAL)
Name: Mark B. Ruhe
Title: Vice President




RIDER NO. 1

THIS RIDER NO. 1 is attached to and made a part of that certain Amended, Amended and Consolidated Lease Agreement dated November 9, 2004 (the
“Lease”), by and between EAST PRATT STREET ASSOCIATES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (“Landlord”) and T. ROWE PRICE ASSOCIATES,
INC. (“Tenant”). The terms used in this Rider that are defined in the Lease have the same meanings as provided in the Lease.

WITNESSETH, that for and in consideration of the parties entering into the Lease Agreement described above, and for other good and valuable
consideration, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties further covenant and agree as follows:

Renewal Options.

(1) Landlord hereby grants to Tenant the conditional right, exercisable at Tenant’s option, to renew the term of the Lease for two (2) additional terms of
five (5) years each. If exercised and if the conditions applicable thereto have been satisfied, each renewal term (a “Renewal Term”) shall commence
immediately following the end of the term then ending. The right of renewal herein granted to Tenant shall be subject to, and shall be exercised in accordance
with, the following terms and conditions:

(a) Tenant shall exercise its right of renewal with respect to each Renewal Term by giving Landlord written notice of the exercise thereof (the
“renewal option notice”) not less than twenty-four (24) months and not more than thirty-six (36) months prior to the term then ending. If a renewal option
notice is not given in a timely manner, Tenant’s right of renewal with respect to the Renewal Term shall lapse and be of no further force or effect. If Tenant is
in default under the Lease beyond any applicable notice and cure period, on the date the renewal option notice is given or at any time thereafter on or before
the commencement date of the Renewal Term, then, at Landlord’s option, the renewal option notice shall be ineffective and Tenant’s right of renewal as to the
Renewal Term shall lapse and be of no further force or effect.

(b) Tenant’s right to exercise its options to renew shall not be conditioned on a minimum occupancy level of the Premises (i.e., Tenant may have
subleased all or any portion of the Premises in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Lease and shall still retain its right to renew as set forth
herein).

(c) Tenant shall have the right to renew the Lease Term in accordance with this Section A for less than the entire Premises provided that: (x) (i) the
renewal Premises shall be for no less than two (2) full floors if the renewal Premises consists of the bottom of the low-rise portion of the Building up, plus the
TRP Lobby Space or (ii) the renewal Premises shall be for no less than five (5) full floors if the renewal Premises are from the top of the low-rise portion of
the Building down; (y) the floors of the Building subject to the renewal are contiguous; and (z) all portions of the renewal Premises are in full-floor
increments. Notwithstanding anything in Section 24.1
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of the Lease to the contrary, if Tenant renews for less than the entire Premises, then (i) the maximum number of parking permits allocated to Tenant in the first
sentence of Section 24.1 of the Lease shall be reduced by one (1) parking permit for every One Thousand (1,000) square feet of Rentable Area that the
Premises for which Tenant has renewed the Lease is less than the square feet of Rentable Area contained in the original Premises described in Section 1.2 of
the Lease, and (ii) the minimum number of parking permits Tenant is required to lease pursuant to the second sentence of Section 24.2 of the Lease shall be
reduced by one (1) parking permit for every One Thousand (1,000) square feet of Rentable Area that the Premises for which Tenant has renewed the Lease is
less than the square feet of Rentable Area contained in the original Premises described in Section 1.2 of the Lease. Notwithstanding anything in the Lease to
the contrary, if Tenant renews for less than the entire original Premises described in section 1.2 of the Lease, Tenant shall not longer have exclusive use of the
Low-Rise Elevators and Landlord and Tenant shall agree on reasonable terms and conditions for the use of, and the allocation of the costs and expenses for
maintaining, repairing and replacing, the Low-Rise Elevators. Landlord and Tenant shall promptly execute and deliver an amendment to this Lease
evidencing their agreement on such terms and conditions relating to the use and maintenance of the Low-Rise Elevators.

(d) Promptly following Landlord’s timely receipt of a renewal option notice for a Renewal Term, Landlord and Tenant shall commence negotiations
concerning the amount of annual base rent that shall be payable during each year of the Renewal Term, it being intended that such annual base rent shall be
equal to the then prevailing fair market rent for the Premises (“FMV Rental Rate”). The parties shall have forty-five (45) days after Landlord’s receipt of the
renewal option notice in which to agree on the FMV Rental Rate that shall be payable during each year of the Renewal Term. The parties shall be obligated to
conduct such negotiations in good faith. Among the factors to be considered by the parties during such negotiations shall be (i) the general office rental
market in the Baltimore City, Maryland area, (ii) rental rates then being obtained (or quoted if comparables are not readily available) by other building owners
for office buildings of comparable size, location, quality, and age to the Building in the Baltimore City, Maryland area, (iii) the rental rates then being
obtained by Landlord for comparable office space, in “AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition, in the Building, (iv) escalations and pass
throughs provided in the Lease, (v) concession packages then being obtained (or offered if comparables are not readily available) by other building owners for
office buildings in the Baltimore City, Maryland area of comparable size, location, quality and age to the Building, and (vi) concession packages then being
obtained by Landlord for comparable office space in “AS IS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS” condition in the Building. If the parties agree on the base
rent payable during each year of the Renewal Term and any concession prevailing at such time, they shall promptly execute and deliver an amendment to the
Lease stating the rent so agreed on.

(e) If, during such forty-five (45) day period referred to in subparagraph (d) above, the parties are unable to agree on the FMV Rental Rate payable
during each year of the Renewal Term, then the FMV Rental Rate for each year of the
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Renewal Term shall be determined in accordance with the appraisal procedure set forth in this subparagraph (e). Within ten (10) days after the expiration of
such forty-five (45) day period, the parties shall appoint an appraiser who shall be mutually agreeable to both Landlord and Tenant, shall be a Member,
Appraisal Institute, and shall be knowledgeable in office rentals in the Baltimore City, Maryland market. If the parties are unable to agree on an appraiser
within such ten (10) day period, then each party, within five (5) days after the expiration of the aforesaid ten (10) day period, shall appoint an appraiser (with
the same qualifications) and the two (2) appraisers shall together appoint a third appraiser with the same qualifications. The appraiser or appraisers so
appointed then shall determine, within sixty (60) days after the appointment of such appraiser or appraisers, the then FMV Rent for each year of the Renewal
Term for the Premises. Among the factors to be considered by the appraiser(s) in determining the FMV Rental Rate for each year of the Renewal Term for the
Premises shall be those factors set out in subparagraph (d) above. The figure arrived at by the appraiser (or the average of the figures arrived at by the three
appraisers, if applicable) shall be used as the fair market base rent for such renewal term. If the three appraiser method is chosen, then if any appraiser’s
estimate of FMV Rental Rate is either (x) less than ninety percent (90%) of the average figure or (y) more than one hundred ten percent (110%) of such
average, then the FMV Rental Rate will be either (1) the average of the remaining two (2) appraisal figures falling within such a range of percentages, (2) the
remaining appraisal that is within such range of percentages or (3) if none of the figures are within such range, the average of the three (3) appraisals.
Landlord and Tenant shall each bear the cost of its appraiser and shall share equally the cost of the third appraiser.

(f) During the Renewal Term, all the terms, conditions, covenants, and agreements set forth in the Lease shall continue to apply and be binding on
Landlord and Tenant, except as otherwise set forth herein or in the Lease and that (i) the base rent payable during each year of the Renewal Term shall be the
amount agreed on by Landlord and Tenant in the manner provided in Sections (d) and (e) above, and (ii) in no event shall Tenant have the right to renew the
term of the Lease, or any renewal term thereof, beyond the expiration of the second (2nd) five-year Renewal Term.

(2) Tenant’s rights under this Rider No. 1 to the Lease are personal to and may be exercised only by the initial Tenant hereunder and shall not be
exercisable by any assignee or subtenant of such initial Tenant.
Initials of:

/sl Mark B. Ruhe
Landlord Tenant
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Exhibit 10.07

T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
1998 DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION PLAN
As Amended and Restated Effective December 16, 2004*

1. PURPOSES OF THE DIRECTOR PLAN:

T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.** (the “Company”) has adopted the 1998 Director Stock Option Plan (the “Director Plan”) to provide for the issuance of
options to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock, par value $.20 per share (the “Stock™) as a means of long-term compensation for members of
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) in order to provide Non-Employee Directors with an equity interest in the Company in order to attract
and retain well-qualified individuals to serve as Non-Employee Directors and to further align the interests of Non-Employee Directors of the Company with
those of the stockholders of the Company. For purposes of this Plan, Non-Employee Directors are persons who are members of the Board and are not
employees of the Company or any of its affiliates or subsidiaries.

2. ADMINISTRATION:

The Director Plan shall be administered by the Board; provided that any decision regarding the price, timing, or amount of options to be granted hereunder
shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board who are not participants in the Director Plan. Such disinterested majority shall
also have the right to make discretionary awards of options in addition to the grants specified in Section 5(b).

3. STOCK SUBJECT TO OPTION:

The Company has reserved an aggregate of 404,116 authorized but unissued shares of Stock for issuance and delivery under the Director Plan, which
amount includes 4,116 shares carried over from the 1995 Director Stock Option Plan (the “1995 Director Plan”) that remained available for grant upon its
expiration on April 30, 2002, and which amount is subject to further adjustment as provided in paragraph 6 hereof; provided that, shares tendered as
consideration for the exercise of any option and shares subject to the unexercised portion of any outstanding option which expires, is canceled, or is
terminated for any reason may again be subject to awards under the Director Plan.

4. ELIGIBILITY:

The individuals who shall be eligible to participate in the Director Plan shall be all Non-Employee Directors of the Company. Except for the issuance of
replenishment options pursuant to Section 5(c)(iii), no individual shall be granted an option under this Director Plan unless such individual is a member of the
Board on the applicable grant date.

3

All references herein to a number of shares of Stock have been adjusted to reflect the 2-for-1 stock split that was effected April 30, 1998.

ok T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. is the successor to T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc., pursuant to a share exchange consummated on December 28, 2000, and

has assumed all obligations of T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. with respect to this plan and options outstanding hereunder.
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5. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF OPTIONS:

Options under the Director Plan are intended to be non-statutory stock options not qualifying under any section of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the “Code”). All stock options granted under the Director Plan shall be subject to the following provisions:

(a) Option Price. The exercise price per share with respect to each option shall be 100% of the fair market value of the Stock on the date the option is
granted. For purposes hereof, fair market value shall be the last reported sale price in the Nasdaq National Market (or any other recognized securities
market on which the stock is traded if not then traded on the Nasdaq National Market) on the date of grant, or the next succeeding business day on which
the Nasdaq National Market (or such other market) is open for business and reports an actual transaction in the Company’s Stock. If the Stock is not then
traded on any recognized market, fair market value shall be as determined by the Board in accordance with applicable Federal income tax and securities
regulations.

(b) Option Grants.

(i) Each Non-Employee Director in office on December 16, 2004, shall be granted options semi-annually, as of the close of business on the third
business day following the earnings release for the first and third fiscal quarter of each year, as to 2,000 shares of Stock on each such grant date.

(ii) Each person first elected or appointed as a Non-Employee Director after December 16, 2004, shall be granted, as of the close of business on
the date of the first regular meeting of the Board held on or after the date of such Non-Employee Director’s election or appointment, an option to
purchase 8,000 shares of Stock and, as of the close of business on the third business day following the earnings release for the first and third fiscal
quarter of each succeeding year, an option to purchase 2,000 shares of Stock.

(c) Exercise of Options.

(i) Each option granted under this Director Plan shall become exercisable in full one year after the initial grant (irrespective of whether the Non-
Employee Director is then a member of the Board) or upon the Non-Employee Director’s earlier death, but shall not be exercisable as to any shares
prior thereto. Except as provided in paragraph (ii) below, full payment for shares acquired shall be made in cash, by certified check or other means
acceptable to the Company at or prior to the time that an option, or any part thereof, is exercised. The participant will have no rights as a stockholder
with respect to any option granted under this Director Plan until shares of Stock as to which the option has been exercised are issued by the
Company.

(ii) Shares of the Company’s Stock with a value equal to the exercise price or a combination of cash and Stock with a value equal to the exercise
price may be used as payment for shares acquired.

(iii) Until further action by the Board to provide otherwise, options granted under the Director Plan on or after December 16, 2004, shall not
contain a replenishment feature that would cause a replenishment option to be granted automatically upon the
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exercise of all or any part of the stock option through the surrender of shares of Stock in full or partial payment of the exercise price.

(d) Term of Option. Options shall terminate and no longer be exercisable on the earlier to occur of the expiration of: (i) ten (10) years after the
date such option was granted (or the grant date of the Original Option, as applicable) or (ii) five (5) years after the Non-Employee Director ceases to
be a member of the Board for any reason.

(e) Options Nonassignable and Nontransferable. Options granted under the Director Plan are not transferable by the Non-Employee Director
otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and are exercisable during the Non-Employee Director’s lifetime only by the Non-
Employee Director; except that with the consent of the Board, this Option may be transferred to a family member or a trust, partnership or the like
for the benefit of the Non-Employee Director or such family members. No assignment or transfer of this option, or of the rights represented thereby,
whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, shall vest in the assignee
or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this option, the same shall terminate and
be of no force or effect.

6. ADJUSTMENTS UPON CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION:

The aggregate number of shares of stock on which option awards under the Director Plan may be granted to persons participating under the Director Plan,
the number of shares thereof covered by each award, the price per share thereof in each award, and any numerical limitations contained herein relating to
awards shall be proportionately adjusted for any increase or decrease in the number of issued shares of Stock of the Company resulting from a subdivision or
consolidation of shares or other capital adjustment, or the payment of a stock dividend or other increase or decrease in such shares, effected without receipt of
consideration by the Company; provided, however, that any fractional shares resulting from any such adjustment shall be eliminated. In the case of other
changes in the Company’s capitalization, adjustments shall be made to the extent determined by the Board as necessary or appropriate to reflect the
transaction and as permitted under applicable securities and tax laws.

If the Company shall be a party to any merger or consolidation (whether or not the Company is the surviving or resulting entity), then automatically
following the transaction and without further action on the part of the company or the successor, any award granted shall pertain to and apply solely to the
securities or other form of consideration to which a holder of the number of shares of Stock subject to the award would have been entitled in the transaction.

7. EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE DIRECTOR PLAN:

The Director Plan was adopted by the Board on February 2, 1998 and became effective on April 16, 1998, upon its approval by the stockholders of the
Company on that date. The Director Plan as amended and restated herein, was adopted by the Board effective as of December 16, 2004.

8. TERMINATION DATE:

No options may be granted under the Director Plan after December 31, 2007. Subject to paragraph 5(d), options granted before December 31, 2007 under
the Director Plan may be exercised after that date in accordance with their terms.
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9. AMENDMENT:

This Director Plan may be amended, suspended, terminated or restated, in whole or in part, at any time by the Board; provided, however, that any
provisions of this Plan regarding the amount and price of options to be awarded to Non-Employee Directors and the timing of awards, or that which may be
deemed to set forth a formula that determines the amount, price, and timing of awards may not be amended more than once every six months, other than to
comport with any changes in the Code, the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, or the rules under such statutes; and, provided
further, however, that no such amendment shall become effective without the approval of the stockholders of the Company to the extent stockholder approval
is required in order to comply with Rule 16b-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

10. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS:

The grant, holding and vesting of all options under the Director Plan shall be subject to any and all requirements and restrictions that may, in the opinion of
the Board, be necessary or advisable for the purposes of complying with any statute, rule or regulation of any governmental authority, or any agreement,
policy or rule of any stock exchange or other regulatory organization governing any market on which the Stock is traded.

11. MISCELLANEOUS:
(a) Expenses. The Company shall bear all expenses and costs in connection with the administration of the Director Plan.

(b) Applicable Law. The validity, interpretation and administration of this Plan and any rules, regulations, determinations or decisions made
hereunder, and the rights of any and all persons having or claiming to have any interest herein or hereunder, shall be determined exclusively in
accordance with the laws of the State of Maryland, without regard to the choice of the laws provisions thereof.

(c) Headings. The headings herein are for reference purposes only and shall not affect the meaning or interpretation of the Director Plan.

(d) Notices. All notices or other communications made or given pursuant to this Director Plan shall be in writing and shall be sufficiently made
or given if hand-delivered or mailed by certified mail, addressed to any Non-Employee Director at the address contained in the records of the
Company or to the Company at its principal office.

(e) Federal Securities Law Requirement. Awards granted hereunder shall be subject to all conditions required under Rule 16b-3 to qualify the
award for any exception from the provisions of Section 16(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 available under that Rule.
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Forms of option agreements
available for
awards and replenishment options
issued under the
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T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
1998 DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION PLAN

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
REGARDING OPTION GRANTS
(INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS)

Effective:

This Statement of Additional Terms and Conditions Regarding Option Grants (the “Terms”) shall be delivered with the “Notice of Grant of Stock Options
and Option Agreement” (the “Award Notice”) which shall detail the specifics of the applicable option award (the “Option”). Upon execution of the Award
Notice by the Director and by an authorized officer or agent of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (the “Company”), there shall be created a binding and enforceable
contract (the “Agreement”) respecting the Option subject to the terms and conditions of the Award Notice and the Terms.

1. Grant of Option.

Subject to the Terms, the Company has granted to the person identified in the Award Notice attached hereto (the “Optionee”) commencing on the Issuance
Date set forth in the Award Notice and ending on the Expiration Date of the Option set forth in the Award Notice, the option to purchase from the Company at
the option price set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Price”) up to, but not exceeding in the aggregate, the number of shares of the Company’s Common
Stock set forth under the caption “Shares” in the Award Notice.

2. Exercise of Option.

(a) The shares of stock subject to this Option shall become exercisable in full on [insert first anniversary of date of grant], irrespective of whether the
Optionee is then a director of the Company, or the Optionee’s earlier death.

(b) No less than 50 shares of Common Stock may be purchased upon any one exercise of the Option unless the number of shares purchased at such time
is the total number of shares in respect of which the Option is then exercisable.

(c) In no event shall the Option be exercisable for a fractional share.

(a) The Option shall be exercised by the Optionee delivering to the Company, from time to time, on any business day (the “Exercise Date”), written
notice specifying the number of shares the Optionee then desires to purchase (the “Notice”) and paying the Option Price for such shares. The Option Price
may be paid (i) by cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in United States dollars
equal to the Option Price for the number of shares specified in the Notice, such payment to be delivered with the Notice, (ii) by tender of shares of
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Common Stock of the Company that constitute “mature” shares for financial accounting purposes, with a value (determined in accordance with paragraph
3(c)) equal to or less than the Option Price plus cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an
amount in United States dollars equal to the amount, if any, by which the Option Price exceeds the value of such shares of the Company’s stock (determined
in accordance with paragraph 3(c)), (iii) by broker-assisted cashless exercise of the Option, or (iv) by a combination of these methods. Such Company’s stock
and cash shall be delivered to the Company no later than the end of the first business day after the Exercise Date. In the case of payment in shares, such
payment shall be made by attestation in form suitable to the Company or delivery of the necessary share certificates, with executed stock powers attached, or
transfer instructions, in the case of shares held in street name by a bank, broker, or other nominee, to the Company.

(b) Within three business days after the Exercise Date, the Company shall, subject to the receipt of withholding tax to the extent required by the
Company, issue to the Optionee the number of shares with respect to the Option so exercised, and shall deliver to the Optionee a certificate or certificates
therefor or shall make such transfer to a bank, broker or nominee as designated by the Optionee.

(c) For purposes of paragraph 3(a), the value of shares of Common Stock tendered to exercise the Option shall be the last reported sale price of such
shares on the Nasdaq National Market System (or any other recognized securities market on which the stock is traded if not then traded on the Nasdaq
National Market) on the Exercise Date, or, if no trades occurred on the Exercise Date, the next succeeding business day on which the Nasdaq National Market
(or such other market) is open for business and reports an actual transaction in the Company’s Common Stock. If the Common Stock is not then traded on any
recognized securities market, the value of the tendered shares shall be determined by the Board of Directors.

(d) In the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, the Company may in lieu of requiring the exercise of the Option and the payment of the Option
Price, authorize the payment of cash to the Optionee in an amount equal to the market value of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option less the Option
Price in exchange for the cancellation of the Option.

4. Exercisability Upon the Occurrence of Certain Events.

(a) Notwithstanding any provisions limiting exercisability in whole or in part, and unless the Board of Directors shall have otherwise determined
(within the limits specified in this paragraph) to revoke or to limit, in its sole and conclusive discretion, the acceleration provided for herein, the following
shall apply: the Option will become exercisable in full immediately following the date on which the Board of Directors no longer may revoke or modify the
acceleration contemplated by this paragraph and shall remain exercisable for a one-year period thereafter. After the expiration of any such one-year period,
the Option shall remain exercisable only to the extent, if any, provided in the Agreement without taking into consideration the effect of this paragraph. The
Board of Directors’ discretion to revoke or limit the acceleration contemplated by this paragraph may be exercised at any time before or within 20 business
days after the Effective Date (as hereinafter defined) or the Approval Date (as hereinafter defined), as applicable; provided, however, that such discretion to
revoke or limit the acceleration may not be exercised after the persons who were directors of the Company immediately before the Transaction (as hereinafter
defined) shall cease to constitute a majority of the Board of Directors of the Company or any successor to the Company. In the event the Approval Date and
an Effective Date arise from substantially identical facts and circumstances (as determined by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion) and unless the
Board of Directors shall have determined to limit the effect of this sentence, such one-year period (and the 20-day period referred to in the immediately
preceding
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sentence) shall commence only once and upon the first to occur of the Approval Date or the Effective Date.
(b) For purposes of the foregoing paragraph, the following terms have the meanings indicated:

(i) “Approval Date” shall mean the date of the approval of the Company’s Board of Directors of an agreement providing for an exchange offer,
merger, consolidation or other business combination, sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or any combination of the
foregoing transactions as a result of the consummation of which the persons who were directors of the Company immediately before the transaction shall
cease to constitute a majority of the Board of Directors of the Company or any successor to the Company or the persons who were stockholders of the
Company immediately before the Approval Date will own less than a majority of the outstanding voting stock of the Company or any successor to the
Company.

(ii) “Effective Date” shall mean the date on which a “Change of Control,” as defined below, occurs. Anything in these Terms to the contrary
notwithstanding, if a Change of Control occurs, and if the Optionee’s employment with the Company had terminated prior to the date on which the
Change of Control occurred, and if it is reasonably demonstrated by the Optionee that such termination of employment either was at the request of a third
party who had taken steps reasonably calculated to effect the Change of Control or otherwise arose in connection with or in anticipation of the Change of
Control, then, for all purposes of these Terms, the term “Effective Date” shall mean the date immediately prior to the date of such termination of
employment.

(iii) A “Change of Control” shall be deemed to have taken place on the date of the earlier to occur of either of the following events: a) a third party,
including a “group” as defined in Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, becomes the beneficial owner of 25% or more of the
Company’s outstanding Common Stock, or b) as the result of, or in connection with, any cash tender or exchange offer, merger, consolidation or other
business combination, sale or disposition of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, or contested election, or any combination of the foregoing
transactions (a “Transaction”), the persons who were directors of the Company immediately before the Transaction shall cease to constitute a majority of
the Board of Directors of the Company or any successor to the Company or the persons who were stockholders of the Company immediately before the
Transaction shall cease to own at least a majority of the outstanding voting stock of the Company or any successor to the Company.

5. Termination.
The Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect upon the first occurrence of any one of the following events:
(a) The Expiration Date set forth in the Award Notice; or

(b) Five years after the date the Optionee ceases to be a director of the Company for any reason, during which period any installments which first
become exercisable may thereafter be exercised.
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6. Optionee.

Whenever the word “Optionee” is used in any provision of these Terms under circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to apply
to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom this Option may be transferred by will, by the laws of descent and distribution or otherwise
pursuant to these Terms, it shall be deemed to include such person.

7. Assignability.

This Option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee except that, with the consent of the Board of Directors, the Option may be transferred to a family member or a trust, partnership
or the like for the benefit of the Optionee or such family member; provided, however, that the term “family member” shall not include an ex-spouse and no
transfers may be made pursuant to any divorce or separation proceedings or settlements. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented
thereby, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, except as provided for under the immediately preceding sentence, shall vest in
the assignee or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate
and be of no force or effect.

8. The Company’s Rights.

The existence of this Option shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all
adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company’s capital structure or its business or any merger or consolidation of the
Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the Common Stock
or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business or any other corporate
act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

9. Recapitalization.

The shares with respect to which the Option is granted are shares of the Common Stock of the Company as constituted on the date of the Agreement,
but if, and whenever, prior to the delivery by the Company of all of the shares of Common Stock with respect to which this Option is granted, the Company
shall effect a subdivision or consolidation of shares, or other capital readjustment, or the payment of a stock dividend, or other increase or decrease in the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, without receiving compensation therefor in money, services or property, then (i) in the event of any increase
in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option shall be proportionately increased
(except that any fraction of a share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the operation of these Terms), and the cash consideration
payable per share shall be proportionately reduced, and (ii) in the event of a reduction in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of
Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option shall be proportionately reduced (except that any fractional share resulting from any such adjustment
shall be excluded from the operation of these Terms), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately increased.
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10. Merger and Consolidation.

After a merger of one or more corporations into the Company, or after a consolidation of the Company and one or more corporations in which the
Company shall be the surviving or resulting corporation, the Optionee shall, at no additional cost, be entitled upon any exercise of this Option, to receive
(subject to any required action by stockholders) in lieu of the number of shares as to which this Option shall then be so exercised, the number and class of
shares of stock or other securities to which the Optionee would have been entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreement of merger or consolidation, if,
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, the Optionee had been the holder of record of a number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal
to the number of shares as to which this Option shall be so exercised; provided, that anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or upon any merger or consolidation, in which the Company is not the surviving or resulting corporation, this
Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect, except to the extent that such surviving or resulting corporation may issue a substituted option.

11. Preemption of Applicable Laws or Regulations.

Anything in these Terms to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time specified herein for the issuance of shares to the Optionee, any law, regulation
or requirements of any governmental authority having jurisdiction in the premises shall require either the Company or the Optionee to take any action in
connection with the shares then to be issued, the issuance of such shares shall be deferred until such action shall have been taken.

12. Resolution of Disputes.

Any dispute or disagreement which shall arise under, or as a result of, or pursuant to, these Terms shall be determined by the Board of Directors in its
absolute and unfettered discretion, and any such determination or any other determination by the Board of Directors under or pursuant to these Terms and any
interpretation by the Board of Directors of these Terms, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all persons affected thereby.

13. Notice.

Any notice which either party hereto may be required or permitted to give to the other shall be in writing, and may be delivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: to the Secretary of the Company, or to the Company (attention of the Secretary), at 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore,
Maryland 21202, or at such other address as the Company, by notice to the Optionee, may designate in writing from time to time to the Optionee at the
Optionee’s address as shown on the records of the Company, or at such other address as the Optionee, by notice to the Secretary of the Company, may
designate in writing from time to time.

14. Construction.

These Terms have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the Plan and wherever a conflict may arise between these Terms and the terms of
the Plan, the terms of the Plan shall control.
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15. Nonstatutory Nature of Option.
The option created by the Agreement shall not be treated as an incentive stock option under Internal Revenue Code section 422.
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T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
DIRECTOR STOCK OPTION PLANS

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
REGARDING OPTION GRANTS

REPLENISHED OPTIONS

This Statement of Additional Terms and Conditions Regarding Option Grants (the “Terms”) shall be delivered with the “Notice of Grant of Stock Options
and Option Agreement” (the “Award Notice”) which shall detail the specifics of the applicable replenishment option award (the “Option”). Upon execution of
the Award Notice by the Non-Employee Director and by an authorized officer or agent of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (the “Company™), there shall be created a
binding and enforceable contract (the “Agreement”) respecting the Option subject to the terms and conditions of the Award Notice and the Terms.

The Company has and its stockholders have approved the T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. 1995 and 1998 Director Stock Option Plans (collectively, the “Plan™),
pursuant to which the Company may enter into stock option agreements with its Non-Employee Directors. These agreements provide that, if a Non-Employee
Director exercises all or part of a non-qualified stock option grant through the surrender of shares of the Company’s Common Stock, the Non-Employee
Director will automatically receive an Option to purchase at the closing price of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of exercise a number of shares
equal to the number of shares surrendered, unless the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has suspended or limited the issuance of such
replenishment options.

1. Grant of Option.

Subject to the Terms, the Company has granted to the person identified in the Award Notice attached hereto (the “Optionee”) commencing on the
Issuance Date set forth in the Award Notice and ending on the Expiration Date set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Period”), the option to purchase
from the Company at the option price set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Price”) up to, but not exceeding in the aggregate, the number of shares of the
Company’s Common Stock set forth under the caption “Shares” in the Award Notice. The number of shares so granted shall be equal in number to the number
of shares the Optionee delivered to the Company in full or partial payment of the exercise price of non-qualified stock options.

2. Exercise of Option.

(a) This Option is immediately exercisable in full and may be exercised in whole or in part from time to time during the Option Period, subject to the
Terms.

(b) The Board may in its discretion place limitations on the extent to which shares of Common Stock of the Company may be tendered by the Optionee
as payment of the Option Price pursuant to paragraph 3(a) hereof.
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(c) No less than 50 shares of Common Stock may be purchased upon any one exercise of the Option unless the number of shares purchased at such
time is the total number of shares in respect of which the Option is then exercisable.

(d) In no event shall the Option be exercisable for a fractional share.
(e) In no event shall any additional replenishment option be granted upon the exercise of this Option.

3. Method of Exercising Option and Payment of Option Price.

(a) The Option shall be exercised by the Optionee delivering to the Company, from time to time, on any business day (the “Exercise Date”), written
notice specifying the number of shares the Optionee then desires to purchase (the “Notice”) and paying the Option Price for the shares specified in the Notice.
The Option Price may be paid:

(i) by cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in United States
dollars equal to the Option Price for the number of shares specified in the Notice, such payment to be delivered with the Notice,

(i) unless limited by the Board, by tender of shares of Common Stock of the Company with a value (determined in accordance with paragraph
3(c)) equal to or less than the Option Price plus cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the
Company for an amount in United States dollars equal to the amount, if any, by which the aggregate Option Price exceeds the value of
such shares of the Company’s stock (determined in accordance with paragraph 3(c)), or

(iii) through such other means, acceptable to the Board in its sole discretion, as may be provided by an independent third party to facilitate
exercise or payment.

The Company stock and cash shall be delivered to the Company not later than the end of the first business day after the Exercise Date. In the case of payment
in shares, such payment shall be made by attestation of ownership in a form satisfactory to the Company or by delivery of the necessary share certificates,
with executed stock powers attached, or, in the case of shares held in street name by a bank, broker, or other nominee, transfer instructions to the Company.

(b) Within three business days after the Company receives the aggregate Option Price and withholding taxes to the extent required by the Company, the
Company will issue to the Optionee the number of shares with respect to which the Option shall be so exercised, and will deliver to the Optionee a certificate
or certificates therefor, or will make such transfer to a bank, broker or nominee as designated by the Optionee.

(c) For purposes of paragraph 3(a), the value of shares of Common Stock tendered to exercise the Option shall be the last reported sale price of such
shares on the Nasdaq National Market System (or any other recognized securities market on which the stock is traded if not then traded on the Nasdaq

National Market) on the Exercise Date, or, if no trades occurred on the Exercise Date, the next
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succeeding business day on which the Nasdaq National Market (or such other market) is open for business and reports an actual transaction in the Company’s
Common Stock. If the Common Stock is not then traded on any recognized securities market, the value of the tendered shares shall be determined by the
Board.

(d) In the sole discretion of the Board, the Company may in lieu of requiring the exercise of the Option and the payment of the Option Price, authorize
the payment of cash to the Optionee in an amount equal to the market value of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option less the Option Price in
exchange for the cancellation of the Option.

4. Termination.
The Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect upon the first occurrence of any one of the following events:
(a) The Expiration Date set forth in the Award Notice;

(b) The expiration of five years after the Optionee ceases to be a director of the Company for any reason; provided, however, that any day on which the
Company has restricted employee securities transactions under then-applicable securities transactions policies and procedures shall not be included in
determining such five-year period. During such five-year period, the Optionee shall have the right to exercise the Option only to the extent exercisable on the
date of termination.

5. Optionee.

Whenever the word “Optionee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to
apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom this Option may be transferred by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, it shall
be deemed to include such person.

6. Assignability.

This Option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee; except that with the consent of the Board, this Option may be transferred to a family member or a trust, partnership or the like
for the benefit of the Optionee or such family members. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or
involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, except by will the laws of descent and distribution or by consent of the Committee, shall vest in the assignee or
transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate and be of no
force or effect.

7. Rights as a Stockholder.

The Optionee shall not be deemed for any purpose to be a stockholder of the Company with respect to any shares as to which this Option shall not have
been exercised and payment and issue made as herein provided.
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8. The Company’s Rights.

The existence of this Option shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all
adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company’s capital structure or its business or any merger or consolidation of the
Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the Common Stock
or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business or any other corporate
act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

9. Recapitalization.

The shares with respect to which this Option is granted are shares of the Common Stock of the Company as constituted on the date of this Agreement,
but if, and whenever, prior to the delivery by the Company of all of the shares of Common Stock with respect to which this Option is granted, the Company
shall effect a subdivision or consolidation of shares, or other capital readjustment, or the payment of a stock dividend, or other increase or decrease in the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, without receiving compensation therefor in money, services or property, then

(@) in the event of any increase in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this
Option shall be proportionately increased (except that any fraction of a share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the
operation of this Agreement), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately reduced, and

(b)  in the event of a reduction in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option
shall be proportionately reduced (except that any fractional share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the operation of this
Agreement), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately increased.

10. Merger and Consolidation.

After a merger of one or more corporations into the Company, or after a consolidation of the Company and one or more corporations in which the
Company shall be the surviving or resulting corporation, the Optionee shall, at no additional cost, be entitled upon any exercise of this Option, to receive
(subject to any required action by stockholders) in lieu of the number of shares as to which this Option shall then be so exercised, the number and class of
shares of stock or other securities to which the Optionee would have been entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreement of merger or consolidation, if,
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, the Optionee had been the holder of record of a number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal
to the number of shares as to which such Option shall be so exercised; provided, that anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or upon any merger or consolidation, in which the Company is not the surviving or resulting corporation, this
Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect, except to the extent that such surviving or resulting corporation may issue a substituted option.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time specified herein for the issue of shares to the Optionee, any law, regulation
or requirements of any governmental
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authority having jurisdiction in the premises shall require either the Company or the Optionee to take any action in connection with the shares then to be
issued, the issue of such shares shall be deferred until such action shall have been taken.

12. Resolution of Disputes.

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 hereof, any dispute or disagreement which shall arise under, or as a result of, or pursuant to, this Agreement
shall be determined by the Board in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, and any such determination or any other determination by the Board under or
pursuant to this Agreement and any interpretation by the Board of the terms of this Agreement, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all persons affected
thereby.

13. Amendments.

The Board shall have the right, in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, to alter or amend this Agreement, from time to time in any manner for the
purpose of promoting the objectives of the Plan but only if all agreements granting options to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant to
the Plan which is in effect and not wholly exercised at the time of such alteration or amendment shall also be similarly altered or amended with substantially
the same effect, and any alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Board shall, upon adoption thereof by the Board, become and be binding and
conclusive on all persons affected thereby without requirement for consent or other action with respect thereto by any such person. The Company shall give
written notice to the Optionee of any such alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Board as promptly as practical after the adoption thereof. The
foregoing shall not restrict the ability of the Optionee and the Company by mutual consent to alter or amend this Agreement in any manner which is
consistent with the Plan and approved by the Board.

14. Notice.

Any notice which either party hereto may be required or permitted to give to the other shall be in writing, and may be delivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: to the Secretary of the Company, or to the Company (attention of the Secretary), at 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore,
Maryland 21202, or at such other address as the Company, by notice to the Optionee, may designate in writing from time to time to the Optionee at the
Optionee’s address as shown on the records of the Company, or at such other address as the Optionee, by notice to the Secretary of the Company, may
designate in writing from time to time.

15. Construction.

This Agreement has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the Plan specified on the Award Notice, which Plan is incorporated herein by
reference.

16. Non-Qualified Nature of the Option.
The Option shall not be treated as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code section 422.
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Exhibit 10.08

Schedule of Non-Employee Director Compensation
Effective January 1, 2005

Cash fees are paid semiannually, on the last business days of June and December, or at the beginning of the following year if payment is deferred pursuant to
the Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan.

Annual Retainer Fee $ 75,000
Committee Meeting Fees, per meeting $ 1,500
Committee Annual Retainer Fees:
Audit Committee Chairperson $ 10,000
Audit Committee Member $ 5,000
Executive Compensation Committee Chairperson $ 5,000
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Chairperson $ 5,000

Stock option grants pursuant to the 1998 Director Stock Option Plan have an exercise price equal to the fair market value on the date of grant date, vest one
year after the grant date, and have a 10-year term.

8,000
Initial stock option grant upon election to the Board shares
2,000
Semiannual stock option grant shares



Exhibit 10.09

T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
OUTSIDE DIRECTORS DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

ARTICLE 1. ESTABLISHMENT, OBJECTIVES AND DURATION

1.1 ESTABLISHMENT OF THE PLAN. T. Rowe Price Group, Inc., a Maryland corporation (“Price Group”), hereby establishes this deferred
compensation plan for non-employee directors known as the “T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan” (hereinafter referred
to as the “Plan”), as set forth in this document. The Plan is effective as of January 1, 2005 (the “Effective Date”) and will remain in effect as provided in
Section 1.3 hereof.

1.2 PLAN OBJECTIVES. The objective of the Plan is to enable Outside Directors to elect to have their cash fees for services on the Board of Directors
accumulated and paid in a single sum payment immediately following the close of the calendar year during which such fees are earned.

1.3 DURATION OF THE PLAN. The Plan commences on January 1, 2005 and will remain in effect until the Board of Directors terminates it pursuant to
Section 7.1.

ARTICLE 2. DEFINITIONS

Whenever used in the Plan, the following terms will have the meanings set forth below, and when the meaning is intended, the initial letter of the word will
be capitalized:

“ACCOUNT” means a bookkeeping reserve account to which an Outside Director’s Fees are credited under this Plan.

“AFFILIATES” means, with respect to any person, any other person that, directly or indirectly, is in control of, is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the first person.

“BOARD?” or “BOARD OF DIRECTORS” means the Board of Directors of Price Group.

“CODE” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, or any successor to it.
“DEFERRAL ELECTION” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 6.1.

“DIRECTOR” means any individual who is a member of the Board of Directors.

“FEES” means the Retainers and Meeting Fees earned by an Outside Director during a Plan Year.




“MEETING FEE” means the cash fee established by the Board and paid to an Outside Director for each attendance at a meeting of the Board of Directors
or of a Board committee (including telephonic meetings but excluding execution of unanimous written consents).

“OUTSIDE DIRECTOR” means a Director who, at the time in question, is not an employee of Price Group or any of its Affiliates.
“PLAN” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 1.1.
“PLAN YEAR” means the 12-month period beginning on January 1 and ending on the next following December 31.

“RETAINER” means the cash retainer fee established by the Board and paid to an Outside Director, for a Plan Year or for a portion of such year, for
services performed as a member of the Board of Directors or of a committee of the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 3. ADMINISTRATION

3.1 THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. The Plan will be administered by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors will act by a majority of its
members at the time in office and eligible to vote on any particular matter, and may act either by a vote at a meeting or in writing without a meeting.

3.2 AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. Except as limited by law and subject to the provisions herein, the Board of Directors has full
power to: construe and interpret the Plan and any agreement or instrument entered into under the Plan; establish, amend or waive rules and regulations for the
Plan’s administration; and amend the terms and conditions of the Plan. Further, the Board of Directors will make all other determinations which may be
necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. As permitted by law and consistent with Section 3.1, the Board of Directors may delegate some or
all of its authority under this Plan.

3.3 DECISIONS BINDING. All determinations and decisions made by the Board of Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Plan will be final,
conclusive and binding on all persons, including Price Group, its stockholders, all Affiliates, Outside Directors and their estates and beneficiaries.

ARTICLE 4. ELIGIBILITY
Each Director who is an Outside Director during a Plan Year will be eligible to participate in the Plan for that year.
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ARTICLE 5. RETAINERS AND MEETING FEES

Unless the Outside Director has made a Deferral Election with respect to them, all Retainers and Meeting Fees earned by an Outside Director during a Plan
Year will be paid to the Outside Director at such times during the Plan Year as may be determined by the Board.

ARTICLE 6. DEFERRAL

6.1 DEFERRAL ELECTION. Any Outside Director may elect to defer all, but not less than all, of his or her Fees payable to him or her for a Plan Year by
filing with the Secretary of Price Group a written notice to that effect on the Deferral Election Form attached hereto as Exhibit A (a “Deferral Election”) in
accordance with the following rules. An Outside Director without a Deferral Election in effect may elect to defer all, but not less than all, of his or her Fees:
(a) with respect to any Fees payable for any Plan Year, by filing a Deferral Election on or before the December 31st preceding the Plan Year; and (b) with
respect to any Fees for any portion of a Plan Year following the date on which the Director first becomes an Outside Director, by filing a Deferral Election
within thirty days following that date. A Deferral Election may not be revoked or modified with respect to Fees payable for any Plan Year for which it is
effective and the Deferral Election, unless terminated or modified as described below, will apply to Fees payable with respect to each subsequent Plan Year.
An Outside Director may terminate or modify his or her current Deferral Election for any subsequent Plan Year by filing a new Deferral Election on or before
December 31st of the then-current Plan Year. An effective Deferral Election will also terminate on the date a Director ceases to be an Outside Director.

6.2 ACCOUNT. The Fees the Outside Director elects to defer will be credited to an Account as of the date the compensation would otherwise have been
payable to the Outside Director. No interest or other earnings will be allocated or credited to the Account.

6.3 DISTRIBUTIONS. The aggregate amount credited to an Outside Director’s Account each Plan Year will be distributed, in a single sum cash payment,
to him or her on or as soon as practicable after the first business day of the Plan Year immediately following the Plan Year in which the Fees were earned. If
an Outside Director dies before he or she has received payment of all amounts due hereunder, the balance remaining in the Outside Director’s Account shall
be distributed to his or her estate in a single sum cash payment as soon as practicable following the Outside Director’s death. To the extent necessary to
comply with Code section 409A, the Board or its Compensation Committee may specify such additional rules regarding distributions and elections as it
deems appropriate.

ARTICLE 7. MISCELLANEOUS

7.1 MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION. The Board may at any time and from time to time, alter, amend, modify or terminate the Plan in whole or in
part.

7.2 INDEMNIFICATION. Each person who is or has been a member of the Board will be indemnified and held harmless by Price Group against and from
any loss, cost, liability, or
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expense that may be imposed upon or reasonably incurred by that person in connection with or resulting from any claim, action, suit, or proceeding to which
that person may be a party or in which that person may be involved by reason of any action taken or failure to act under the Plan and against and from any
and all amounts paid by that person in a settlement approved by Price Group, or paid by that person in satisfaction of any judgment in any such action, suit, or
proceeding against that person, provided he or she gives Price Group an opportunity, at its own expense, to handle and defend the action, suit or proceeding
before that person undertakes to handle and defend it. The foregoing right of indemnification will not be exclusive of any other rights of indemnification to
which an individual may be entitled under Price Group’s Certificate of Incorporation or By-Laws, as a matter of law, or otherwise, or any power that Price
Group may have to indemnify him or her or hold him or her harmless.

7.3 SUCCESSORS. All obligations of Price Group under the Plan with respect to a given Plan Year will be binding on any successor to Price Group,
whether the existence of the successor is the result of a direct or indirect purchase of all or substantially all of the business and/or assets of Price Group, or a
merger, consolidation, or otherwise.

7.4 RESERVATION OF RIGHTS. Nothing in this Plan or in any award agreement granted hereunder will be construed to limit in any way the Board’s
right to remove an Outside Director from the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE 8. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION

8.1 GENDER AND NUMBER. Except where otherwise indicated by the context, any masculine term used herein will also include the feminine; the plural
will include the singular and the singular will include the plural.

8.2 SEVERABILITY. If any provision of the Plan is held illegal or invalid for any reason, the illegality or invalidity will not affect the remaining parts of
the Plan, and the Plan will be construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had not been included.

8.3 REQUIREMENTS OF LAW. The issuance of payments under the Plan will be subject to all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.

8.4 SECURITIES LAW AND TAX LAW COMPLIANCE. To the extent any provision of the Plan or action by the Board would subject any Outside
Director to liability for interest or additional taxes under Code section 4094, it will be deemed null and void, to the extent permitted by law and deemed
advisable by the Board.

8.5 UNFUNDED STATUS OF THE PLAN. The Plan is intended to constitute an “unfunded” plan. With respect to any payments not yet made to an
Outside Director by Price Group, nothing contained herein will give any rights to an Outside Director that are greater than those of a general creditor of Price
Group.
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8.6 GOVERNING LAW. The Plan will be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Maryland, determined without regard to
its conflict of law rules.

8.7 NONTRANSFERABILITY. An Outside Director’s Account may not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienated or hypothecated,
other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution, or pursuant to a domestic relations order (as defined in Code section 414(p)). All rights with
respect to an Account will be available during the Outside Director’s lifetime only to the Outside Director or the Outside Director’s guardian or legal
representative. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, require an Outside Director’s guardian or legal representative to supply it with evidence the
Board of Directors deems necessary to establish the authority of the guardian or legal representative to act on behalf of the Outside Director.

sk ok ok ok 3k
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EXHIBIT A

T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
OUTSIDE DIRECTORS DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

DEFERRAL ELECTION

As of , 20 , the individual whose name appears below, who is an Outside Director of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.
(“Price Group”), hereby elects to defer, under the terms of the T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. Outside Directors Deferred Compensation Plan (the “Plan”), all of
the cash compensation payable to him or her in connection with the individual’s services on the Board of Directors of Price Group or a committee of such
Board of Directors. This Deferral Election will become effective as of the date it is accepted by the Secretary of Price Group and shall remain in full force and
effect until the earlier of the date the Outside Director modifies or terminates it in accordance with the terms of the Plan and the date the Director ceases to be
an Outside Director of Price Group. Any term capitalized herein but not defined will have the meaning set forth in the Plan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Outside Director has duly executed this Deferral Election as of the date first written above.

Outside Director’s Signature

Outside Director’s Name (please print)

Received by T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.

By:
Title: Secretary

Date:




Forms of option agreements
available for
awards and replenishment options
issued under the
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.
2001 and 2004
Stock Incentive Plans
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T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
[2001][2004] STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
REGARDING OPTION GRANTS (INCENTIVE STOCK OPTIONS)

Effective:

This Statement of Additional Terms and Conditions Regarding Option Grants (the “Terms”) shall be delivered with the “Notice of Grant of Stock Options
and Option Agreement” (the “Award Notice”) which shall detail the specifics of the applicable option award (the “Option”). Upon execution of the Award
Notice by the recipient and by an authorized officer or agent of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (the “Company”), there shall be created a binding and enforceable
contract (the “Agreement”) respecting the options subject to the terms and conditions of the Grant Notice and the Terms.

1. Grant of Option. Subject to the Terms, the Company has granted to the person identified in the Award Notice attached hereto (the “Optionee”)
commencing on the Issuance Date set forth in the Award Notice and ending on the Expiration Date of the option set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option
Period”), the option to purchase from the Company at the option price set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Price”) up to, but not exceeding in the
aggregate, the number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock set forth under the caption “Shares” in the Award Notice.

2. Exercise of Option.
(a) The shares of stock subject to this Option shall become exercisable in installments set forth in the Award Notice.

(b) The Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) may in its discretion place limitations on the
extent to which shares of Common Stock of the Company may be tendered by the Optionee as payment upon exercise of the Option pursuant to paragraph
3(a) hereof. In no event shall a replenishment option be granted upon the exercise of the Option by tender of shares of Common Stock.

(c) To the extent that the Option is not immediately exercisable in full, the Committee may in its discretion accelerate the time at which the Option may
be exercised.
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(d) To the extent not exercised, installments shall accumulate and be exercisable by the Optionee, in whole or in part, in any subsequent year included
in the Option Period but not later than the expiration of the Option Period.

(e) No less than 50 shares of Common Stock may be purchased upon any one exercise of the Option unless the number of shares purchased at such time
is the total number of shares in respect of which the Option is then exercisable.

(f) In no event shall the Option be exercisable for a fractional share.

3. Method of Exercising Option and Payment of Option Price.

(a) The Option shall be exercised by the Optionee delivering to the Company, from time to time, on any business day (the “Exercise Date”), written
notice specifying the number of shares the Optionee then desires to purchase (the “Notice”) and paying the Option Price for the shares specified in the Notice.
The Option Price may be paid (i) by cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in
United States dollars equal to the Option Price for the number of shares specified in the Notice, such payment to be delivered with the Notice, (ii) unless
limited by the Committee, by tender of shares of Common Stock of the Company with a value (determined in accordance with paragraph 3(c)) equal to or less
than the Option Price plus cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in United States
dollars equal to the amount, if any, by which the aggregate Option Price exceeds the value of such shares of the Company’s stock (determined in accordance
with paragraph 3(c)), (iii) by broker-assisted cashless exercise procedures satisfactory to the Committee, or (iv) by a combination thereof. Such Company’s
stock and cash shall be delivered to the Company no later than the end of the first business day after the Exercise Date. In the case of payment in shares, such
payment shall be made by delivery of the necessary share certificates, with executed stock powers attached, or transfer instructions, in the case of shares held
in street name by a bank, broker, or other nominee, to the Company or by attestation of ownership in a form satisfactory to the Company.

(b) Within three business days after the Exercise Date, the Company shall, subject to the receipt of the aggregate Option Price and withholding taxes, to
the extent required by the Company, issue to the Optionee the number of shares with respect to which the Option shall be so exercised, and shall deliver to the
Optionee a certificate or certificates therefor or shall make such transfer to a bank, broker or nominee as designated by the Optionee.

(c) For purposes of paragraph 3(a), unless determined otherwise by the Committee in accordance with the Plan, the value of shares of Common Stock
tendered to exercise the Option shall be the last-reported sale price of such shares on the Nasdaq National Market System on the Exercise Date, or, if the
Common Stock is not quoted on the Nasdaq National Market System, the mean between the closing bid and asked prices of such shares on the Nasdaq
System on the Exercise Date, or, if the foregoing are inapplicable, as otherwise determined by the Committee.
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(d) In the sole discretion of the Committee, the Company may in lieu of requiring the exercise of an Option and the payment of the Option Price,
authorize the payment of cash to the Optionee in an amount equal to the market value of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option less the Option Price
in exchange for the cancellation of the Option.

4. Exercisability Upon the Occurrence of Certain Events.

[See provisions of Section 7(c)(ii) of applicable plan]
5. Termination.
The Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect upon the first occurrence of any one of the following events:
(a) The expiration date set forth in the Award Notice;

(b) The expiration of 30 days after termination of the Optionee’s employment with the Company, except in the case of the Optionee’s death or
retirement with the consent of the Company; provided, however, that any day on which the Company has restricted employee securities transactions under
then-applicable securities transactions policies and procedures shall not be included in determining such 30-day period. During such period, the Optionee
shall have the right to exercise the Option only to the extent exercisable on the date of termination;

(c) The expiration of thirteen months after the date of the Optionee’s retirement with the consent of the Company. During such thirteen-month period
the Optionee shall have the right to exercise the Option to the extent the right to exercise the same has accrued prior to such retirement but has not been
exercised prior to such retirement, subject, in addition, however, to acceleration by the Committee pursuant to paragraph 2(c); or

(d) The expiration of seven months after the date of death of the Optionee if said death occurs while (i) the Optionee is in the employ of the Company
or (ii) within the period of time after retirement with the consent of the Company during which the Optionee was entitled to exercise the Option. During such
seven-month period the Optionee’s estate, personal representative or beneficiary shall have the right to exercise the Option in full.

Retirement at the Optionee’s normal retirement date or at an optional retirement date in accordance with the provisions of a retirement plan of the
Company under which the Optionee is then covered shall constitute a retirement with the consent of the Company for the purposes of this Agreement. The
Committee shall have absolute and uncontrolled discretion to determine whether any other termination of Optionee’s employment is to be considered as
retirement with the consent of the Company for the purposes of this Agreement and whether an authorized leave of absence or absence on military or
government service or otherwise shall constitute a termination of employment for the purposes of this Agreement. Employment by the Company shall be
deemed to include employment of the Optionee by, and to continue during any
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period in which Optionee is in the employ of, an “Affiliate” of the Company as that term is defined in the Plan. Unless determined otherwise by the
Committee, if the Affiliate with which the Optionee is employed ceases to be an entity in which the Company maintains a proprietary interest by reason of
stock ownership or otherwise, the Optionee will be considered to have had a termination of employment for purposes of this Agreement upon such cessation.
Any determination made by the Committee with respect to any matter referred to in this paragraph 5 shall, subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 hereof, be
final and conclusive on all persons affected thereby.

6. Optionee.

Whenever the word “Optionee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to
apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom this Option may be transferred by will, by the laws of descent and distribution or
otherwise pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, it shall be deemed to include such person.

7. Assignability.

This option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of
law or otherwise, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, shall vest in the assignee or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but
immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate and be of no force or effect.

8. The Company’s Rights.

The existence of this Option shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all
adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company’s capital structure or its business or any merger or consolidation of the
Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the Common Stock
or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business or any other corporate
act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

9. Recapitalization.

The shares with respect to which this Option is granted are shares of the Common Stock of the Company as constituted on the date of this Agreement,
but if, and whenever, prior to the delivery by the Company of all of the shares of Common Stock with respect to which this Option is granted, the Company
shall effect a subdivision or consolidation of shares, or other capital readjustment, or the payment of a stock dividend, or other increase or decrease in the
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number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, without receiving compensation therefor in money, services or property, then (a) in the event of any increase
in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option shall be proportionately increased
(except that any fraction of a share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the operation of this Agreement), and the cash consideration
payable per share shall be proportionately reduced, and (b) in the event of a reduction in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of
Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option shall be proportionately reduced (except that any fractional share resulting from any such adjustment
shall be excluded from the operation of this Agreement), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately increased.

10. Merger and Consolidation.

After a merger of one or more corporations into the Company, or after a consolidation of the Company and one or more corporations in which the
Company shall be the surviving or resulting corporation, the Optionee shall, at no additional cost, be entitled upon any exercise of this Option, to receive
(subject to any required action by stockholders) in lieu of the number of shares as to which this Option shall then be so exercised, the number and class of
shares of stock or other securities to which the Optionee would have been entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreement of merger or consolidation, if,
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, the Optionee had been the holder of record of a number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal
to the number of shares as to which such Option shall be so exercised; provided, that anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or upon any merger or consolidation, in which the Company is not the surviving or resulting corporation, this
Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect, except to the extent that such surviving or resulting corporation may issue a substituted option.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time specified herein for the issue of shares to the Optionee, any law, regulation
or requirements of any governmental authority having jurisdiction in the premises shall require either the Company or the Optionee to take any action in
connection with the shares then to be issued, the issue of such shares shall be deferred until such action shall have been taken.

12. Resolution of Disputes.

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 hereof, any dispute or disagreement which shall arise under, or as a result of, or pursuant to, this Agreement
shall be determined by the Committee in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, and any such determination or any other determination by the Committee
under or pursuant to this Agreement and any interpretation by the Committee of the terms of this Agreement, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all
persons affected thereby.
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13. Amendments.

The Committee shall have the right, in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, to alter or amend this Agreement, from time to time in any manner for
the purpose of promoting the objectives of the Plan but only if all agreements granting options to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant
to the Plan which is in effect and not wholly exercised at the time of such alteration or amendment shall also be similarly altered or amended with
substantially the same effect, and any alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Committee shall, upon adoption thereof by the Committee, become
and be binding and conclusive on all persons affected thereby without requirement for consent or other action with respect thereto by any such person. The
Company shall give written notice to the Optionee of any such alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Committee as promptly as practical after the
adoption thereof. The foregoing shall not restrict the ability of the Optionee and the Company by mutual consent to alter or amend this Agreement in any
manner which is consistent with the Plan and approved by the Committee.

14. Notice.

Any notice which either party hereto may be required or permitted to give to the other shall be in writing, and may be delivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: to the Secretary of the Company, or to the Company (attention of the Secretary), at 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore,
Maryland 21202, or at such other address as the Company, by notice to the Optionee, may designate in writing from time to time to the Optionee at the
Optionee’s address as shown on the records of the Company, or at such other address as the Optionee, by notice to the Secretary of the Company, may
designate in writing from time to time.

15. Construction.

This Agreement has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the Plan specified in the Award Notice (the “Plan”), which is incorporated herein
by reference.

16. Provisions Concerning Incentive Stock Options.

Stock Option™), to the fullest extent permitted under Code section 422, and this Agreement shall be so construed. The aggregate fair market value (determined
as of the effective date of this grant) of shares of stock with respect to which all Incentive Stock Options first become exercisable by the Optionee in any
calendar year under the Plan or any other plan of the Company (and its parent and subsidiary corporations, as may exist from time to time) may not exceed
$100,000 or such other amount as may be permitted from time to time under Code section 422. To the extent that such aggregate fair market value shall
exceed $100,000 or other applicable amount in any calendar year, such stock options shall be treated as nonstatutory stock options with respect to the amount
of aggregate fair market value thereof that exceeds the Code section 422 limit. For this purpose, the
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Incentive Stock Options will be taken into account in the order in which they were granted. In such case, the Company may designate the shares of stock that
are to be treated as stock acquired pursuant to the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option and the shares of stock that are to be treated as stock acquired
pursuant to a nonstatutory stock option by issuing separate certificates for such shares and identifying the certificates as such in the stock transfer records of
the Company.

Except with respect to exercise after the death or disability of the Optionee, at all times during the period beginning with the date of the granting of an
Incentive Stock Option and ending on the day three months before the date of such exercise, the Optionee must be an employee of the Company or a
subsidiary, as that term is defined in Code section 424(f), in order for such option to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option. Therefore, in the event that the
Optionee retires with the consent of the Company, as provided in paragraph 5 hereof, any part of the Incentive Stock Option which is not exercised within
three months of such termination will be exercisable as a nonstatutory stock option for the remainder of the thirteen-month exercise period. Similarly, if the
entity with which the Optionee is employed ceases to be a subsidiary of the Company, as that term is defined in Code section 424(f), then the Option will be
treated as a nonstatutory stock option unless exercised within three months of such cessation.

(b) Notice of Disqualifying Disposition. If the Optionee makes a disposition (as that term is defined in Code section 424(c)) of any shares of stock
acquired pursuant to this Option within two years of the Grant Date or within one year after the shares of Stock are transferred to the Optionee, the Optionee
shall notify the Company of such disposition in writing within 30 days of the disposition.

17. Withholding of Taxes.

At the time the Option is exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, the Optionee hereby authorizes
withholding from payroll or any other payment of any kind due the Optionee and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision for foreign, federal, state and
local taxes required by law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Option. The Company may require the Optionee to make a cash payment
to cover any withholding tax obligation as a condition of exercise of the Option. If the Optionee does not make such payment when requested, the Company
may refuse to issue any stock certificate under the Plan until arrangements satisfactory to the Company for such payment have been made.

The Company may, in its sole discretion, permit the Optionee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax obligation which may arise in
connection with the Option either by electing to have the Company withhold from the shares to be issued upon exercise that number of shares, or by electing
to deliver to the Company already-owned shares, in either case having a fair market value equal to the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory minimum
withholding amount due.
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T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
[2001][2004] STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
REGARDING OPTION GRANTS (NON-QUALIFIED OPTIONS)

Effective:

This Statement of Additional Terms and Conditions Regarding Option Grants (the “Terms”) shall be delivered with the “Notice of Grant of Stock Options
and Option Agreement” (the “Award Notice”) which shall detail the specifics of the applicable option award (the “Option”). Upon execution of the Award
Notice by the recipient and by an authorized officer or agent of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (the “Company”), there shall be created a binding and enforceable
contract (the “Agreement”) respecting the options subject to the terms and conditions of the Grant Notice and the Terms.

1. Grant of Option. Subject to the Terms, the Company has granted to the person identified in the Award Notice attached hereto (the “Optionee”)
commencing on the Issuance Date set forth in the Award Notice and ending on the Expiration Date of the option set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option
Period”), the option to purchase from the Company at the option price set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Price”) up to, but not exceeding in the
aggregate, the number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock set forth under the caption “Shares” in the Award Notice.

2. Exercise of Option.
(a) The shares of stock subject to this Option shall become exercisable in installments set forth in the Award Notice.

(b) The Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) may in its discretion place limitations on the
extent to which shares of Common Stock of the Company may be tendered by the Optionee as payment of the Option Price pursuant to paragraph 3(a) hereof.

(c) To the extent the Option is not immediately exercisable in full, the Committee may in its discretion accelerate the time at which the Option may be
exercised.

(d) To the extent not exercised, installments shall accumulate and be exercisable by the Optionee, in whole or in part, in any subsequent year included
in the Option Period but not later than the expiration of the Option Period.
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(e) No less than 50 shares of Common Stock may be purchased upon any one exercise of the Option unless the number of shares purchased at such time
is the total number of shares in respect of which the Option is then exercisable.

(®) In no event shall the Option be exercisable for a fractional share.

3. Method of Exercising Option and Payment of Option Price.

(a) The Option shall be exercised by the Optionee delivering to the Company, from time to time, on any business day (the “Exercise Date”), written
notice specifying the number of shares the Optionee then desires to purchase (the “Notice”) and paying the Option Price for the shares specified in the Notice.
The Option Price may be paid (i) by cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in
United States dollars equal to the Option Price for the number of shares specified in the Notice, such payment to be delivered with the Notice, (ii) unless
Iimited by the Committee, by tender of shares of Common Stock of the Company with a value (determined in accordance with paragraph 3(c)) equal to or less
than the Option Price plus cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in United States
dollars equal to the amount, if any, by which the aggregate Option Price exceeds the value of such shares of the Company’s stock (determined in accordance
with paragraph 3(c)), (iii) by broker-assisted cashless exercise procedures satisfactory to the Committee, or (iv) by a combination thereof. Such Company’s
stock and cash shall be delivered to the Company not later than the end of the first business day after the Exercise Date. In the case of payment in shares, such
payment shall be made by delivery of the necessary share certificates, with executed stock powers attached, or transfer instructions, in the case of shares held
in street name by a bank, broker, or other nominee, to the Company or by attestation of ownership in a form satisfactory to the Company.

(b) Within three business days after the Exercise Date, the Company shall, subject to the receipt of the aggregate Option Price and withholding taxes, to
the extent required by the Company, issue to the Optionee the number of shares with respect to which the Option shall be so exercised, and shall deliver to the
Optionee a certificate or certificates therefor, or shall make such transfer to a bank, broker or nominee as designated by the Optionee.

(c) For purposes of paragraph 3(a), unless determined otherwise by the Committee in accordance with the Plan, the value of shares of Common Stock
tendered to exercise the Option shall be the last-reported sale price of such shares on the Nasdaq National Market System on the Exercise Date, or, if the
Common Stock is not quoted on the Nasdaq National Market System, the mean between the closing bid and asked prices of such shares on the Nasdaq
System on the Exercise Date, or, if the foregoing are inapplicable, as otherwise determined by the Committee.

(d) In the sole discretion of the Committee, the Company may in lieu of requiring the exercise of the Option and the payment of the Option Price,
authorize the payment
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of cash to the Optionee in an amount equal to the market value of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option less the Option Price in exchange for the
cancellation of the Option.

4. Exercisability Upon the Occurrence of Certain Events.

[See provisions of Section 7(c)(ii) of applicable plan]
5. Termination.
The Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect upon the first occurrence of any one of the following events:
(a) The expiration date set forth in the Award Notice;

(b) The expiration of 30 days after termination of the Optionee’s employment with the Company, except in the case of the Optionee’s death or
retirement with the consent of the Company; provided, however, that any day on which the Company has restricted employee securities transactions under
then-applicable securities transactions policies and procedures shall not be included in determining such 30-day period. During such period, the Optionee
shall have the right to exercise the Option only to the extent exercisable on the date of termination;

(c) The expiration of thirteen months after the date of the Optionee’s retirement with the consent of the Company. During such thirteen-month period
the Optionee shall have the right to exercise the Option to the extent the right to exercise the same has accrued prior to such retirement but has not been
exercised prior to such retirement, subject, in addition, however, to acceleration by the Committee pursuant to paragraph 2(c); or

(d) The expiration of seven months after the date of death of the Optionee if said death occurs while (i) the Optionee is in the employ of the Company
or (ii) within the period of time after retirement with the consent of the Company during which the Optionee was entitled to exercise the Option. During such
seven-month period the Optionee’s estate, personal representative or beneficiary shall have the right to exercise the Option in full.

Retirement at the Optionee’s normal retirement date or at an optional retirement date in accordance with the provisions of a retirement plan of the
Company under which the Optionee is then covered shall constitute a retirement with the consent of the Company for the purposes of this Agreement. The
Committee shall have absolute and uncontrolled discretion to determine whether any other termination of Optionee’s employment is to be considered as
retirement with the consent of the Company for the purposes of this Agreement and whether an authorized leave of absence or absence on military or
government service or otherwise shall constitute a termination of employment for the purposes of this Agreement. Employment by the Company shall be
deemed to include employment of the Optionee by, and to continue during any period in which Optionee is in the employ of, an “Affiliate” of the Company as
that term is defined in the Plan. Unless determined otherwise by the Committee, if the Affiliate with which the Optionee is employed ceases to be an entity in
which the Company maintains a proprietary
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interest by reason of stock ownership or otherwise, the Optionee will be considered to have had a termination of employment for purposes of this Agreement
upon such cessation. Any determination made by the Committee with respect to any matter referred to in this paragraph 5 shall, subject to the provisions of
paragraph 13 hereof, be final and conclusive on all persons affected thereby.

6. Optionee.

Whenever the word “Optionee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to
apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom this Option may be transferred by will, by the laws of descent and distribution or
otherwise pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, it shall be deemed to include such person.

7. Assignability.

[This Option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of
law or otherwise, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, shall vest in the assignee or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but
immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate and be of no force or effect.]

[This Option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee except that with the consent of the Committee, an Option may be transferred to a family member or a trust, partnership or the
like for the benefit of Optionee or such family member. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or
involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, except by will, the laws of descent and distribution or by consent of the Committee, shall vest in the assignee or
transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate and be of no
force or effect.]

8. The Company’s Rights.

The existence of this Option shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all
adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company’s capital structure or its business or any merger or consolidation of the
Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the Common Stock
or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business or any other corporate
act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.
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9. Recapitalization.

The shares with respect to which this Option is granted are shares of the Common Stock of the Company as constituted on the date of this Agreement,
but if, and whenever, prior to the delivery by the Company of all of the shares of Common Stock with respect to which this Option is granted, the Company
shall effect a subdivision or consolidation of shares, or other capital readjustment, or the payment of a stock dividend, or other increase or decrease in the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, without receiving compensation therefor in money, services or property, then (a) in the event of any increase
in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option shall be proportionately increased
(except that any fraction of a share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the operation of this Agreement), and the cash consideration
payable per share shall be proportionately reduced, and (b) in the event of a reduction in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of
Common Stock then remaining subject to this Option shall be proportionately reduced (except that any fractional share resulting from any such adjustment
shall be excluded from the operation of this Agreement), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately increased.

10. Merger and Consolidation.

After a merger of one or more corporations into the Company, or after a consolidation of the Company and one or more corporations in which the
Company shall be the surviving or resulting corporation, the Optionee shall, at no additional cost, be entitled upon any exercise of this Option, to receive
(subject to any required action by stockholders) in lieu of the number of shares as to which this Option shall then be so exercised, the number and class of
shares of stock or other securities to which the Optionee would have been entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreement of merger or consolidation, if,
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, the Optionee had been the holder of record of a number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal
to the number of shares as to which such Option shall be so exercised; provided, that anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or upon any merger or consolidation, in which the Company is not the surviving or resulting corporation, this
Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect, except to the extent that such surviving or resulting corporation may issue a substituted option.

11. Preemption of Applicable Laws or Regulations.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time specified herein for the issue of shares to the Optionee, any law, regulation
or requirements of any governmental authority having jurisdiction in the premises shall require either the Company or the Optionee to take any action in
connection with the shares then to be issued, the issue of such shares shall be deferred until such action shall have been taken.
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12. Resolution of Disputes.

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 hereof, any dispute or disagreement which shall arise under, or as a result of, or pursuant to, this Agreement
shall be determined by the Committee in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, and any such determination or any other determination by the Committee
under or pursuant to this Agreement and any interpretation by the Committee of the terms of this Agreement, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all
persons affected thereby.

13. Amendments.

The Committee shall have the right, in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, to alter or amend this Agreement, from time to time in any manner for
the purpose of promoting the objectives of the Plan but only if all agreements granting options to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant
to the Plan which is in effect and not wholly exercised at the time of such alteration or amendment shall also be similarly altered or amended with
substantially the same effect, and any alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Committee shall, upon adoption thereof by the Committee, become
and be binding and conclusive on all persons affected thereby without requirement for consent or other action with respect thereto by any such person. The
Company shall give written notice to the Optionee of any such alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Committee as promptly as practical after the
adoption thereof. The foregoing shall not restrict the ability of the Optionee and the Company by mutual consent to alter or amend this Agreement in any
manner which is consistent with the Plan and approved by the Committee.

14. Notice.

Any notice which either party hereto may be required or permitted to give to the other shall be in writing, and may be delivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: to the Secretary of the Company, or to the Company (attention of the Secretary), at 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore,
Maryland 21202, or at such other address as the Company, by notice to the Optionee, may designate in writing from time to time to the Optionee at the
Optionee’s address as shown on the records of the Company, or at such other address as the Optionee, by notice to the Secretary of the Company, may
designate in writing from time to time.

15. Construction.

This Agreement has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the Plan specified in the Award Notice (the “Plan”), which is incorporated herein
by reference.

16. Non-Qualified Nature of the Option.
The Option created by this Agreement shall not be treated as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code section 422.
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17. Withholding of Taxes.

At the time the Option is exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, the Optionee hereby authorizes
withholding from payroll or any other payment of any kind due the Optionee and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision for foreign, federal, state and
local taxes required by law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Option. The Company may require the Optionee to make a cash payment
to cover any withholding tax obligation as a condition of exercise of the Option. If the Optionee does not make such payment when requested, the Company
may refuse to issue any stock certificate under the Plan until arrangements satisfactory to the Company for such payment have been made.

The Company may, in its sole discretion, permit the Optionee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax obligation which may arise in
connection with the Option either by electing to have the Company withhold from the shares to be issued upon exercise that number of shares, or by electing
to deliver to the Company already-owned shares, in either case having a fair market value equal to the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory minimum
withholding amount due.
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T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
[2001][2004] STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

STATEMENT OF ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
REGARDING OPTION GRANTS

(NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT)
(REPLENISHED OPTIONS),

This Statement of Additional Terms and Conditions Regarding Option Grants (the “Terms”) shall be delivered with the “Notice of Grant of Stock Options
and Option Agreement” (the “Award Notice”) which shall detail the specifics of the applicable option award (the “Option”). Upon execution of the Award
Notice by the Employee and by an authorized officer or agent of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. (the “Company”), there shall be created a binding and enforceable
contract (the “Agreement”) respecting the Option subject to the terms and conditions of the Grant Notice and the Terms.

1. Grant of Option.

Subject to the Terms, the Company has granted to the person identified in the Award Notice attached hereto (the “Optionee”) commencing on the
Issuance Date set forth in the Award Notice and ending on the Expiration Date set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Period”), the option to purchase
from the Company at the option price set forth in the Award Notice (the “Option Price”) up to, but not exceeding in the aggregate, the number of shares of the
Company’s Common Stock set forth under the caption “Shares” in the Award Notice.

2. Exercise of Option.

(a) This Option is immediately exercisable in full and may be exercised in whole or in part from time to time during the Option Period, subject to the
Terms.

(b) The Executive Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Committee”) may in its discretion place limitations on the
extent to which shares of Common Stock of the Company may be tendered by the Optionee as payment of the Option Price pursuant to paragraph 3(a) hereof.

(c) No less than 50 shares of Common Stock may be purchased upon any one exercise of the Option unless the number of shares purchased at such time
is the total number of shares in respect of which the Option is then exercisable.
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(d) In no event shall the Option be exercisable for a fractional share.
(e) In no event shall any additional replenishment option be granted upon the exercise of this Option.

3. Method of Exercising Option and Payment of Option Price.

(a) The Option shall be exercised by the Optionee delivering to the Company, from time to time, on any business day (the “Exercise Date”), written
notice specifying the number of shares the Optionee then desires to purchase (the “Notice”) and paying the Option Price for the shares specified in the Notice.
The Option Price may be paid:

(i) by cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the order of the Company for an amount in United States
dollars equal to the Option Price for the number of shares specified in the Notice, such payment to be delivered with the Notice,

(i) unless limited by the Committee, by tender of shares of Common Stock of the Company with a value (determined in accordance with
paragraph 3(c)) equal to or less than the Option Price plus cash, check, wire transfer, bank draft or postal or express money order to the
order of the Company for an amount in United States dollars equal to the amount, if any, by which the aggregate Option Price exceeds the
value of such shares of the Company’s stock (determined in accordance with paragraph 3(c)),

(iii) by broker-assisted cashless exercise procedures satisfactory to the Committee, or
(iv) by a combination thereof.

Such Company’s stock and cash shall be delivered to the Company not later than the end of the first business day after the Exercise Date. In the case of
payment in shares, such payment shall be made by delivery of the necessary share certificates, with executed stock powers attached, or transfer instructions,
in the case of shares held in street name by a bank, broker, or other nominee, to the Company or by attestation of ownership in a form satisfactory to the
Company.

(b) Within three business days after the Company receives the aggregate Option Price and withholding taxes to the extent required by the Company, the
Company will issue to the Optionee the number of shares with respect to which the Option shall be so
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exercised, and will deliver to the Optionee a certificate or certificates therefor, or will make such transfer to a bank, broker or nominee as designated by the
Optionee.

(c) For purposes of paragraph 3(a), the value of shares of Common Stock tendered to exercise the Option shall be the last-reported sales price of such
shares on the Nasdaq National Market System on the Exercise Date, or, if the Common Stock is not quoted on the Nasdaq National Market System, the mean
between the closing bid and asked prices of such shares on the Nasdaq System on the Exercise Date, or, if the foregoing are inapplicable, as otherwise
determined by the Committee.

(d) In the sole discretion of the Committee, the Company may in lieu of requiring the exercise of the Option and the payment of the Option Price,
authorize the payment of cash to the Optionee in an amount equal to the market value of shares of Common Stock subject to the Option less the Option Price
in exchange for the cancellation of the Option.

4. Termination.
The Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect upon the first occurrence of any one of the following events:
(a) The expiration date set forth in the Award Notice;

(b) The expiration of 30 days after termination of the Optionee’s employment with the Company, except in the case of the Optionee’s death or
retirement with the consent of the Company; provided, however, that any day on which the Company has restricted employee securities transactions under
then-applicable securities transactions policies and procedures shall not be included in determining such 30-day period. During such period, the Optionee
shall have the right to exercise the Option only to the extent exercisable on the date of termination;

(c) The expiration of [seven][thirteen] months after the date of the Optionee’s retirement with the consent of the Company; provided, however, that any
day on which the Company has restricted employee securities transactions under then-applicable securities transaction policies and procedures shall not be
included in determining such [seven-month][thirteen-month] period. During such [seven-month][thirteen-month] period, the Optionee shall have the right to
exercise the Option only to the extent exercisable on the date of retirement.

(d) The expiration of seven months after the date of death of the Optionee if said death occurs while (i) the Optionee is in the employ of the Company
or (ii) within the period of time after retirement with the consent of the Company during which the Optionee was entitled to exercise the Option. During such
seven-month period the Optionee’s estate, personal representative or beneficiary shall have the right to exercise the Option in full.
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Retirement at the Optionee’s normal retirement date or at an optional retirement date in accordance with the provisions of a retirement plan of the
Company under which the Optionee is then covered shall constitute a retirement with the consent of the Company for the purposes of this Agreement. The
Committee shall have absolute and uncontrolled discretion to determine whether any other termination of Optionee’s employment is to be considered as
retirement with the consent of the Company for the purposes of this Agreement and whether an authorized leave of absence or absence on military or
government service or otherwise shall constitute a termination of employment for the purposes of this Agreement. Any determination made by the Committee
with respect to any matter referred to in this paragraph 4 shall, subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 hereof, be final and conclusive on all persons affected
thereby. Employment by the Company shall be deemed to include employment of Optionee by, and to continue during any period in which Optionee is in the
employ of, an “Affiliate” of the Company as that term is defined in the Plan. Unless determined otherwise by the Committee, if the Affiliate with which the
Optionee is employed ceases to be an entity in which the Company maintains a proprietary interest by reason of stock ownership or otherwise, the Optionee
will be considered to have had a termination of employment for purposes of this Agreement upon such cessation.

5. Optionee.

Whenever the word “Optionee” is used in any provision of this Agreement under circumstances where the provision should logically be construed to
apply to the estate, personal representative, or beneficiary to whom this Option may be transferred by will, by the laws of descent and distribution or
otherwise pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, it shall be deemed to include such person.

6. Assignability.

[This Option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of
law or otherwise, except by will or the laws of descent and distribution, shall vest in the assignee or transferee any interest or right herein whatsoever, but
immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate and be of no force or effect.]

[This Option is not transferable by the Optionee otherwise than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and is exercisable during the Optionee’s
lifetime only by the Optionee; except that with the consent of the Committee, this Option may be transferred to a family member or a trust, partnership or the
like for the benefit of the Optionee or such family members. No assignment or transfer of this Option, or of the rights represented thereby, whether voluntary
or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, except by will, the laws of descent and distribution or by consent of the Committee, shall vest in the assignee
or transferee any interest
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or right herein whatsoever, but immediately upon any attempt to assign or transfer this Option the same shall terminate and be of no force or effect.]

7. Rights as a Stockholder.

The Optionee shall not be deemed for any purpose to be a stockholder of the Company with respect to any shares as to which this Option shall not have
been exercised and payment and issue made as herein provided.

8. The Company’s Rights.

The existence of this Option shall not affect in any way the right or power of the Company or its stockholders to make or authorize any or all
adjustments, recapitalizations, reorganizations or other changes in the Company’s capital structure or its business or any merger or consolidation of the
Company, or any issue of bonds, debentures, preferred or other stocks with preference ahead of or convertible into, or otherwise affecting the Common Stock
or the rights thereof, or the dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or any sale or transfer of all or any part of its assets or business or any other corporate
act or proceeding, whether of a similar character or otherwise.

9. Recapitalization.

The shares with respect to which this Option is granted are shares of the Common Stock of the Company as constituted on the date of this Agreement,
but if, and whenever, prior to the delivery by the Company of all of the shares of Common Stock with respect to which this Option is granted, the Company
shall effect a subdivision or consolidation of shares, or other capital readjustment, or the payment of a stock dividend, or other increase or decrease in the
number of shares of Common Stock outstanding, without receiving compensation therefor in money, services or property, then

(a) in the event of any increase in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this
Option shall be proportionately increased (except that any fraction of a share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the
operation of this Agreement), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately reduced, and

(b) in the event of a reduction in the number of such shares outstanding, the number of shares of Common Stock then remaining subject to this
Option shall be proportionately reduced (except that any fractional share resulting from any such adjustment shall be excluded from the operation of
this Agreement), and the cash consideration payable per share shall be proportionately increased.
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10. Merger and Consolidation.

After a merger of one or more corporations into the Company, or after a consolidation of the Company and one or more corporations in which the
Company shall be the surviving or resulting corporation, the Optionee shall, at no additional cost, be entitled upon any exercise of this Option, to receive
(subject to any required action by stockholders) in lieu of the number of shares as to which this Option shall then be so exercised, the number and class of
shares of stock or other securities to which the Optionee would have been entitled pursuant to the terms of the agreement of merger or consolidation, if,
immediately prior to such merger or consolidation, the Optionee had been the holder of record of a number of shares of Common Stock of the Company equal
to the number of shares as to which such Option shall be so exercised; provided, that anything herein contained to the contrary notwithstanding, upon the
dissolution or liquidation of the Company, or upon any merger or consolidation, in which the Company is not the surviving or resulting corporation, this
Option shall terminate and be of no force or effect, except to the extent that such surviving or resulting corporation may issue a substituted option.

11. Preemption of Applicable Laws or Regulations.

Anything in this Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, if, at any time specified herein for the issue of shares to the Optionee, any law, regulation
or requirements of any governmental authority having jurisdiction in the premises shall require either the Company or the Optionee to take any action in
connection with the shares then to be issued, the issue of such shares shall be deferred until such action shall have been taken.

12. Resolution of Disputes.

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 13 hereof, any dispute or disagreement which shall arise under, or as a result of, or pursuant to, this Agreement
shall be determined by the Committee in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, and any such determination or any other determination by the Committee
under or pursuant to this Agreement and any interpretation by the Committee of the terms of this Agreement, shall be final, binding and conclusive on all
persons affected thereby.

13. Amendments.

The Committee shall have the right, in its absolute and uncontrolled discretion, to alter or amend this Agreement, from time to time in any manner for
the purpose of promoting the objectives of the Plan but only if all agreements granting options to purchase shares of the Company’s Common Stock pursuant
to the Plan which is in effect and not wholly exercised at the time of such alteration or amendment shall also be similarly altered or amended with
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substantially the same effect, and any alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Committee shall, upon adoption thereof by the Committee, become
and be binding and conclusive on all persons affected thereby without requirement for consent or other action with respect thereto by any such person. The
Company shall give written notice to the Optionee of any such alteration or amendment of this Agreement by the Committee as promptly as practical after the
adoption thereof. The foregoing shall not restrict the ability of the Optionee and the Company by mutual consent to alter or amend this Agreement in any
manner which is consistent with the Plan and approved by the Committee.

14. Notice.

Any notice which either party hereto may be required or permitted to give to the other shall be in writing, and may be delivered personally or by mail,
postage prepaid, addressed as follows: to the Secretary of the Company, or to the Company (attention of the Secretary), at 100 East Pratt Street, Baltimore,
Maryland 21202, or at such other address as the Company, by notice to the Optionee, may designate in writing from time to time to the Optionee at the
Optionee’s address as shown on the records of the Company, or at such other address as the Optionee, by notice to the Secretary of the Company, may
designate in writing from time to time.

15. Construction.

This Agreement has been entered into in accordance with the terms of the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan, which is incorporated herein by reference.
16. Non-Qualified Nature of the Option.

The Option shall not be treated as an incentive stock option within the meaning of Internal Revenue Code section 422.
17. Withholding of Taxes.

At the time the Option is exercised, in whole or in part, or at any time thereafter as requested by the Company, the Optionee hereby authorizes
withholding from payroll or any other payment of any kind due the Optionee and otherwise agrees to make adequate provision for foreign, federal, state and
local taxes required by law to be withheld, if any, which arise in connection with the Option. The Company may require the Optionee to make a cash payment
to cover any withholding tax obligation as a condition of exercise of the Option. If the Optionee does not make such payment when requested, the Company
may refuse to issue any stock certificate under the Plan until arrangements satisfactory to the Company for such payment have been made.
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The Company may, in its sole discretion, permit the Optionee to satisfy, in whole or in part, any withholding tax obligation which may arise in
connection with the Option either by electing to have the Company withhold from the shares to be issued upon exercise that number of shares, or by electing
to deliver to the Company already-owned shares, in either case having a fair market value equal to the amount necessary to satisfy the statutory minimum
withholding amount due.
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SUBSIDIARIES OF T. ROWE PRICE GROUP, INC.
DECEMBER 31, 2004

Exhibit 21

Subsidiary companies and place of incorporation Ownership
T. Rowe Price Advisory Services, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Associates, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price (Canada), Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Investment Services, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Retirement Plan Services, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Savings Bank (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Services, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Stable Asset Management, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
TRP Finance, Inc. (Delaware) 100%
T. Rowe Price International, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
TRP Suburban Second, Inc. (Maryland) 100%
T. Rowe Price Global Asset Management Limited (United Kingdom) 100%
100%

T. Rowe Price Global Investment Services Limited (United Kingdom)

Other subsidiaries have been omitted because, when considered in the aggregate, they do not constitute a significant subsidiary.



EXHIBIT 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements on Form S-8 (No. 33-7012, No. 33-37573, No. 33-72568, No. 33-58749, No. 333-
20333, No. 333-90967, No. 333-59714, No. 333-120882 and No. 333-120883) of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. of our reports dated February 4, 2005, with
respect to the consolidated balance sheets of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, management’s assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004, which reports appear in the December 31, 2004, Annual Report on Form 10-K of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.

/s KPMG LLP

Baltimore, Maryland
February 28, 2005



Exhibit 31.1
RULE 13a-14 (a) CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, George A. Roche, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Form 10-K Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

February 28, 2005

/s/ George A. Roche, President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
RULE 13a-14 (a) CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Kenneth V. Moreland, certify that:
1. T have reviewed this Form 10-K Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant
and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter
that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

February 28, 2005

/s/ Kenneth V. Moreland, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

We certify, to the best of our knowledge, based upon a review of the Form 10-K Annual Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004 of T. Rowe Price
Group, Inc., that:

(1) The Form 10-K Annual Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained and incorporated by reference in the Form 10-K Annual Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of T. Rowe Price Group, Inc.

February 28, 2005
/s/ George A. Roche, Principal Executive Officer
/s/ Kenneth V. Moreland, Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement has been provided to T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. and will be retained by T. Rowe Price Group, Inc. and furnished to
the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



